3

V.

For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!



http://www.adobe.com/go/reader


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA - Amended

Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton,
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at
the time and location given below.

Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date//Time:  Tuesday, November 28, 2023 at 7:30 p.m.
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.

Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom:

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89108309499?pwd=InbJUIoKvthKhOWFugjTqabR49evE4.1

Meeting ID: 891 0830 9499

Passcode: 531473

One tap mobile
+13126266799,,891083094994,,,,*531473# US (Chicago)
+16469313860,,891083094994#,,,,*531473# US

In-person: Council Chambers (2™ Floor of Public Safety Building)
321 South Fourth St, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Live streamed:

The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live, Spectrum Channel 981 and TDS
Channel 981. The WSTO-TV app is also available on Roku, Apple TV, Fire TV, Android and
108S.

Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson,
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher
and Christina Wozniak Scanlon

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF THE MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to
attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at
cchristen@cityofstoughton.com

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call
2. Certification of compliance with open meetings law
3. Public Comment Period:

A. If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form and submit
it by 6:30 p.m. on November 28, 2023, http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.




https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89108309499?pwd=InbJUIoKvthKhOWFugjTqabR49evE4.1

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:cchristen@cityofstoughton.com

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/



4. Communications and Presentations:
A. Stoughton Utilities - DuPont/3M settlement
B. Tax Increment Financing Request — STI Holdings (time limit of 20 minutes)
C. Tax Increment Financing request —211 S Water St (time limit of 20 minutes)
D. Cromwell Court Parkland

5. Consent Agenda:
A. Council Minutes- 11/14/2023
B. Committee Minutes and Reports: Redevelopment Authority (10/11/23); Plan Commission (10/09/23);
Finance (10/24/2023); Library Board (10/18/23); Seniors in Need (10/18/23)

OLD BUSINESS

6. None

NEW BUSINESS

7. R-183-2023 Irrevocable standby letter of credit — Eldon Land Development, LLC (Finance Committee
recommended approval 7-0 on 11/14/2023)

8. R-184-2023 Declaration of Official Intent 01-2024 (Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on
11/14/2023)

9. R-185-2023 Library Special Gift Fund restricted fund balance (Finance Committee recommend
approval 7-0 on 11/14/2023)

10. R-186-2023 Final Condominium Plat for Lot 6 at 51 West Subdivision (Plan Commission
recommends approval 6-0 on November 13, 2023)

11. O-31-2023 Amending Ordinance Chapter 70-176, by creating subsection (91) Parking Prohibited at
all times: (91) Oak Opening Drive south from Rutland Dunn Town Line Road to the south plat line of
the 51 West Development (Public Safety approved 6-0 on 10/25/23) FIRST READING

12. 0-32-2023 Amending Ordinance Chapter 70-181 No parking during school hours: (1) East-and
West sides of Lincoln Avenue between Jackson Street and the-seuth-Hine-of the Hillerest Platextended
to 800 Lincoln and "no parking " signs shall be erected accordingly. (Public Safety recommends
approval 6-0 on 10/25/23) FIRST READING

13. R-187-2023 Aqueous Film-Forming Foam (AFFF) Product Liability Litigation (MDL 2873)***
TIME SENSITIVE ITEM

14. Discussion and possible action regarding 211 S Water St Tax Increment Financing request (Finance
Commiittee considering on November 28, 2023) ** TIME SENSITIVE ITEM

15. Discussion and possible action regarding Cromwell Court Parkland**

16. Offer to purchase 521 Glacier Moraine Drive (Finance Committee considering November 28, 2023)





TIME SENSITIVE ITEM

17. Presentation and discussion regarding STI Holdings, Inc. Tax Increment Financing request (Finance
Commiittee considering on November 28, 2023) **

**The Common Council may convene in closed session per State Statute 19.85(1) (e) Deliberating or
negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session.

*#*The Common Council may move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(g): Conferring with
legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to
be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved.

ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through
appropriate aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at
(608) 873-6677.

By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89108309499?pwd=InbJUIoKvthKhOWFugjTqabR49evE4.1

Meeting ID: 891 0830 9499
Passcode: 531473

One tap mobile
+13126266799,,891083094994,,,,*531473# US (Chicago)
+16469313860,,891083094994,,,,*531473# US

Dial by your location

*+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

* +1 646 931 3860 US

*+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
*+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
*+1 305 224 1968 US

*+1 309 205 3325 US

*+1 253205 0468 US

e +1253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

* +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
*+1 360 209 5623 US



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89108309499?pwd=InbJUIoKvthKhOWFugjTqabR49evE4.1



*+1 386 347 5053 US
*+1 507 473 4847 US
*+1 564 217 2000 US
*+1 669 444 9171 US
*+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
*+1 689 278 1000 US
*+1 719 359 4580 US

Meeting ID: 891 0830 9499
Passcode: 531473

Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kr2 7pPw4




https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kr27pPw4




211 S Water
Steet

TIF Request for
necessary financial
assistance to create
much needed naturally
affordable housing to
the downtown area and
bring vibrance to
downtown businesses





Providing a needed facelift while
maintaining the historic character

Current Building Proposed Exterior





Interior would be transformed into 18
modern, high-end, yet affordable
apartments, while maintaining the historic

components






TIF Request

» Tax Incremental Financing is now
more essential than ever

» A combination of interest rates
being at the highest point in
decades, construction costs being
at their highest point ever, and
banks tightening credit parameters
have caused new real estate
development to all but cease

» The current financial shortfall on
our project without TIF is
insurmountable

While it used to be possible to get
a loan at 80% of costs, current \
market conditions will allow us to \\
qualify for a loan at just ~ 45% of \
costs \

Current shortfall without TIF \
support: ~$750,000+ |

Current shortfall with TIF support:
$300,000+

Equity required without TIF
support: 54% of total costs

Equity required with TIF support:
41% of total costs





Creative Solutions - Financing/Equity

» Returns to ownership are still quite minimal, even with the requested TIF
support, however Justin and | are determined to make this project a reality
and are working to implement the following creative strategies. We believe
success with these ideas, along with the requested TIF support, will allow for
us to move the project forward

Historic Preservation Tax Credits
Deferred Development Fee
Deferred building/land purchase
Preferred Equity Partner

vV v v vy

Construction loan- discussing the project with 7+ banks/credit unions to
ensure we receive best in market loan terms

v

Energy Grants






Creative Solutions - Building

» Keeping the core components of the building as-is to save on labor/material
costs

» Exterior brick shell
» Concrete, wood and tile flooring
» Exposed ceilings and interior walls

» Re-use existing window and door openings

» Working with a local general contractor and local subcontractors to keep costs
as low as possible

» Value engineering the project to reduce construction costs without reducing
quality of the product we want to provide to downtown residents






Creative Solutions - Ineligible/No-Value
Add

» CPACE Financing - debt tool available to developers/owners looking to
increase energy efficiency

WHEDA Low Cost Loan Programs
Wisconsin Economic Development Grants

Stoughton RDA Revolving Loan Fund

vV v v Vv

Adding a third story to the existing building






Project Benefits

» Improve an underutilized asset into a thoughtfully renovated Class-A multifamily
project with unique historic charm and sustainability upgrades

» Provide naturally affordable housing to a downtown market with high demand

» Increased tax base - Projected to increase the assessed value of the 211 S Water
Street parcel by 9x

» The current TIF request provides the City with 15% of incremental taxes for 20
years, and 100% of incremental taxes thereafter

» New TID provides assistance to other downtown property owners now. Our 20-year
payback cap also provides an abundance of tax revenue to assist other requests
the final 7-years of the TID

» $85,000 in Park Fees
» Provide for ~ $150,000 in annual revenue to downtown businesses






Affordable Downtown Living

Floor Plan # of Units Avg. Unit SF Income Avg Rent
1/1.00 E 1 ] 4 443 $48,000 $1,000
1/1.00 LOFT 1 1 r 1 590 $14,400 $1,200
1/1.00 ] ] 10 650 $144,000 $1,200
ONE-BEDROOMS " 15 591 4 $206,400 $1,147
~2/2.00 2 2 2 840 $34,800 $1,450
TWO-BEDROOMS T 840 $34,800 $1,450
3/2.00 3 2 ] 1,040 $21,600 $1,800
THREE-BEDROOMS 1 " 1,040 $21,600 " $1,800
! 4
TOTAL 18 643 $262,800 $1,217
Monthly Rent Level
Limits (Dane County)
. One Two Three
Studio Bedroom Bedroom Bedroom
50% AMI 50.00% $1,069 $1,145 $1,374 $1,588
60% AMI 60.00% $1,283 $1,374 $1,649 $1,905

80% AMI 80.00% $1,710 $1,832 $2,198 $2,540






Economic Benefits of the Project

» Increased property taxes (projected to increase assessed value by 9x)
» $85,000 in Park Fees
» $150,000/year in projected increased revenue to downtown businesses

211 S. Water Street - Economic Benefit to Downtown
Businesses

Tenants: 25

frequency/month Cost/visit Monthly  Annually
Dining - Food 8 $15 $3,000 $36,000

Dining - Drinks 8 $10 $2,000  $24,000
Coffee 8 $5 $1,000 $12,000
Shopping 4 $50 $5,000  $60,000
Entertainment 2 $25 $1,250 $15,000

$12,250 $147,000






Sustainability

» Bringing new, upgraded utilities to the project (water main, electric service,
etc.) \

» Will use 3 separate dumpsters during demolition/construction to ensure \
proper recycling, re-use, and waste removal \

» Project will feature low flow toilet and bath fixtures, energy efficient \
mechanical equipment, and energy efficient lighting

» Project will feature in-unit bike racks for tenants to decrease emissions from
vehicles

» We are keeping as many existing components as possible (exterior brick,
interior flooring, walls, etc.) to decrease use of nhew material

» Downtown housing provides the ability to walk to restaurants, shopping,
entertainment






Hometown Connection

» Justin and | are both born and raised in Stoughton and are deeply rooted in
the community. We are very passionate about this project and believe it will
truly help the downtown thrive.

» We are using a General Contractor, KSW, that has ties to the area and plan to
use as many local subcontractors as possible.

» If all goes well, we would like this to be the first of many projects that can
benefit our community and look forward to continuing to work with the City
and its elected council leaders on this, as well as future endeavors.






We greatly appreciate your time and
consideration for our project. We

believe this can be a great asset for the
City, its residents, and its businesses.

We would be happy to answer any questions you may have. Thank you.







2 y s o = : ' h: : /Iﬁﬁ?ﬂ:ﬁib;ﬁt‘ -/'l
FE PHASE § g - ‘.i| :
PW 3) et e |
i |
'!i
L
Al e
1 {513}
: : i ]
: S GibgoF ...
; STOUGHTON. || _
| e E 3 ::J | :
b = |'»d ,I
i o 1
sli:al;\;\{:nk .- . =
| i 1 |
T T e L
------ it \" ! o ’ j =i i
N ,
TOWN OF e E |
RUTLAND £ . %!
e . 8.
w-r-#_’_*r“'_"—_
Bl g : }mmmm :
B R Ty e v | T
S . (o (| M0

L]

LEGEND

5R-5 - T2 UNITS

FO- 92 UHITS

TR-& - 16 UNITS
MR-10 - 25 UNITS
FARKLAMND

FRIVATE OPEN SPACE
ROW & ALLEY

JOAnanD

PHASING

SR=% - 27 UNITS
FD - 33 UNITS

MR-10 - 25 UNITS

5SR-S - 45 UNITS
PO - 37 UNITS

10 0700

P - 22 UNITS
TR=& - 18 UNITS

© 0 O

Il











Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date//Time:  Tuesday, November 14, 2023 at 7:00 p.m.
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.

Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Patrick Butler, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson,
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Daniel Payton, Lisa Reeves, Jonathan Schroerlucke, Brett Schumacher
and Christina Wozniak Scanlon

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m.

Roll Call

Clerk Christen called the roll, and 10 alders were present. Wozniak Scanlon and Majewski were absent and
excused.

Certification of compliance with open meetings law
Mayor Swadley noted the meeting had been properly noticed.

Public Comment Period:
No one signed up

Communications and Presentations:
A. Property title search — Greenspire properties
B. (Potential) Sale of Greenspire property to Stoughton Housing Authority
Director Ehlinger updated the Council that the title search cleared and there was nothing further to do for it.
C. Emmi Roth — Gary Becker provided an update that a meeting had been held, and the City offered $1.8
million towards their $3.5 million solar installation request. They were grateful but this is short of the initial
request and will discuss this at the corporate level. Becker also noted that there may be funds available as
well from the USDA Rural Energy program, upwards of $1 million, with application due by December 13,
2023.
D. Mayor Swadley informed the council that Director Dan Glynn has accepted a position in Minnesota, his
end date is November 30, 2023, with the City.

5. Consent Agenda:

A. Council Minutes — November 7, 2023

B. Committee Minutes and Reports: Housing Authority (8/16/23); Redevelopment Authority (9/13/23);
Personnel (8/07/23, 9/13/23, 9/25/23); Food Pantry (8/16/23); Finance (9/12/23, 9/26/23, 10/10/23);,
Public Safety Committee (9/27/23); Landmarks (10/1/23)

C. R-177-2023 Resolution authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve a Class B
Beer License for Benjoe Food, LLC, Ombeni Pallangyo, Owner/Agent, dba Ben's, for the
premises located at 210 & 214 West Water Street.

Motion by Jenson, second by Shcroerlucke to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 9-0-1 abstention.
(Ligocki)





OLD BUSINESS

R-164-2023 Conditional use request for a Bed and Breakfast at 217-219 S. Fourth Street.

Motion by Caravello, second by Schroerlucke to approve R-164-2023 Conditional use request for a Bed
and Breakfast at 217-219 S. Fourth Street. (Confirmed by Ashley Kirch this is a Bed and Breakfast not
an Air B & B.)Motion carried 10-0.

NEW BUSINESS

R-173-2023 Billing Services Agreement — EMS Management & Consultants, Inc.

Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-173-2023 Billing Services Agreement — EMS
Management & Consultants, Inc. Motion carried 10-0.

R-174-2023 Waiver agreement to allow Quarles & Brady to represent Stoughton Hospital for easement
negotiations.

Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-174-2023 Waiver agreement to allow Quarles
& Brady to represent Stoughton Hospital for easement negotiations. Motion carried 10-0.

R-175-2023 Real estate purchase and sale agreement — Stoughton Riverfront Development, LLC.

Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-175-2023 Real estate purchase and sale
agreement — Stoughton Riverfront Development, LLC. Motion carried 10-0.

R-176-2023 Agreement to undertake development — Stoughton Riverfront Development Phase 1.

Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-176-2023 Agreement to undertake development
— Stoughton Riverfront Development Phase 1. Motion carried 10-0.

R-178-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the restructure of the Public
Works Department combining the Public Works and the Parks & Recreation departments into one
centralized department implementing the attached organizational chart.

Motion by Reeves, second by Schroerlucke to approve R-178-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper
City officials to approve the restructure of the Public Works Department combining the Public Works
and the Parks & Recreation departments into one centralized department implementing the attached
organizational chart. Discussion followed.

Motion to amend by Hirsch to use the new design for Parks & Rec and retain the Park Director position.
No second to the motion, motion dies.

Motion to amend by Hirsch, second by Ligocki that the proposed Superintendent position become a
Director and all departments proposed to be under the Parks and Rec. Superintendent be removed from
the umbrella of Public Works. Motion fails 1-9.

Motion by Ligocki, second by Butler to rename the Public Works Department to Public Works, Parks &
Recreation Department, and the structure remains as proposed. Motion fails 2-8.

Motion by Hirsch, second by Caravello to send the proposal back to the River & Trails and Parks &
Rec. Committees and include the Personnel Committee. Motion fails 3-7.





Motion to call to question by Jenson, second by Payton. (2/3 vote necessary and not debatable) Motion
carried 7-3. (Hirsch, Caravello, and Ligocki no)

R-179-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the new Parks and Recreation
Superintendent position description with a pay rate of up to $83595.20 annually.

Motion by Reeves, second by Shcroerlucke to approve R-179-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper
City officials to approve the new Parks and Recreation Superintendent position description with a pay
rate of up to $83,595.20 annually.

Ligocki asked that the position descriptions be taken to Parks & Rec Committee as a courtesy for
feedback. Swadley noted that the Chair could request that it be added as an agenda item. Caravello will
request Director Glynn add the 3 descriptions to the agenda for next week. Motion carries 10-0.

R-180-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the updated Recreation
Supervisor position description with the 2024 budget approved hourly rate of $32.66.

Motion by Reeves, second by Schroerlucke to approve R-180-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper
City officials to approve the updated Recreation Supervisor position description with the 2024 budget
approved hourly rate of $32.66. Motion carried 10-0.

R-181-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to change the title of the Parks and
Recreation Administrative Assistant to Parks and Recreation.

Motion by Reeves, second by Shcroerlucke to approve R-181-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper
City officials to change the title of the Parks and Recreation Administrative Assistant to Parks and
Recreation. Motion carried 10-0.

R-182-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the new AEMT/Firefighter
position description with a pay rate of up to $33.65 per hour as approved in the 2024 Budget.

Motion by Reeves, second by Schroerlucke to approve R-182-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper
City officials to approve the new AEMT/Firefighter position description with a pay rate of up to $33.65
per hour as approved in the 2024 Budget. Motion carried 10-0.

ADJOURNMENT
Motion by Jenson, second by Heilli. Motion carried 10-0. 9:25 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Candee Christen
City Clerk






Redevelopment Authority of the City of Stoughton
Wednesday, October 11, 2023 at 6:00 p.m.

The meeting was a hybrid meeting located in the Fire Department training room located at 411 E. Main
St. as well as concurrently held via Zoom.

Committee members present: Pete Manley (Chair), Regina Hirsch, Daniel Payton, Dale Reeves and
Roger Springman

Members absent: David Pluymers and Lukas Trow (Vice Chair)

Guests present: Gary Becker (Becker Professional Services), Katrina Becker (Becker Professional
Services), Curt Brink (Stoughton Riverfront Development LLC), Matt Dregne (Stafford Rosenbaum), Dave
Ehlinger, Rick Manthe (Stafford Rosenbaum, remote), Erin Prohaska (360 Homes LLC), Janine Punzel
(360 Homes LLC), Tim Swadley (remote) and Scott Walker (360 Homes LLC)

N

Call to order — Manley called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m.

Roll call and verification of quorum — A quorum was present.

Certification of compliance with open meeting law — Manley indicated the meeting was properly
noticed.

Public Comment - None

Communications - None

Reports — September 2023 fiscal reports — Ehlinger indicated time constraints did not allow for
creation of the reports.

Approval of 09/13/2023 minutes — Motion by Motion by Reeves/Hirsch to approve the minutes as
drafted. The motion passed 5-0.

Chair report — Manley recapped the meeting with Swadley and Ehlinger regarding agenda topics and
meeting length. Manley indicated future agendas will still include non-action items as he felt
discussion of future activity is important.

Discussion and possible action regarding Yahara Riverfront Development project**

Brink and his marketing team from 360 Homes LLC gave a PowerPoint presentation of their
marketing plan. General discussion on the topic occurred. Brink indicated they would need until
June 1, 2024 to get a lender construction commitment with the goal of 70% of condominium units
pre-sold by that date. Construction would occur in Fall 2024.

Motion at 7:43 p.m. by Springman/Reeves to move into closed session as per Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(e)
for bargaining reasons. The motion passed unanimously. General discussion on the topic occurred
including required milestones. Dregne was authorized to communicate with Brink’s attorney Dan
O’Callaghan on a framework for new agreements for approval by the RDA at their 11/08/2023
meeting and by the Common Council at their 11/14/2023 meeting. Motion by Reeves/Payton to
adjourn from closed session at 8:56 p.m.

10. Future agenda items
11. Adjourn

Respectfully submitted,
e

) op

David P. Ehlinger, CPA
Director of Finance/Comptroller, City of Stoughton






Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, October 9, 2023 at 6:00 pm
Hybrid Meeting

Members Present: Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher; Dorann Bradford; Tom
Robinson; Phil Caravello, Vice-Chair; Tom Majewski and Al Farrow

Members Absent: None

Staff: Director of Planning & Development, Rodney Scheel; Michael Stacey, Zoning
Administrator

Guests: Daniele Thompson; Lisa Mensink; Amber Cederstrom; Marcus Cederstrom; Adrianne
Nienow; Tyler Denig; Ashley Kirch; Ashlie Severson; Troy Mleziva; Gary Becker; Katrina
Becker; Andre Rosteing; Connor Nett; Drew Martin; Maclain Schramm; Mike Klinzing;
Attorney Matt Dregne; Austen Conrad; Areal Gunther; Bob Krueger; Dr. Dan Keyser and
Gabrielle Ballard.

1. Call to Order. Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.
2. Roll call and verification of quorum. Mayor Swadley verified a quorum is present.

3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law. Mayor Swadley certified
compliance with open meetings law.

4. Plan Commission meeting minutes of September 11, 2023.
Motion by Caravello to approve the minutes as presented, 2" by Bradford. Motion carried
unanimously.

5. Council Representative Report.
Caravello reported the Common Council approved Ordinances 26 and 27 of 2023 and
Resolutions 136, 138, 146 and 151-155 of 2023.

6. Status of Current Developments.
Scheel introduced the status of developments as outlined in the packet of materials. There
were no questions.

7. Zoning Ordinance Amendment Request for Section 78-206(4)(g) related to In-Vehicle
Sales and Service uses.
Scheel introduced the request.
Attorney Matt Dregne explained the procedure as outlined in the zoning ordinance.
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.

The following individuals spoke in favor of the request:

Amber Cederstrom

\\sto-fs I \global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\11-28-2023\Minutes\02 Plan Com Minutes 100923.docx





Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
10/9/23
Page 2 of 6

Marcus Cederstrom
Adrienne Nienow
Areal Gunther
Tyler Denig

Bob Krueger

Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.

Farrow questioned how the in-vehicle sales and service use is treated as an accessory use.
Attorney Dregne explained that many in-vehicle sales and service uses are accessory to
another use. Stacey stated that accessory in-vehicle sales and service uses are treated the
same as if they were principle uses. Attorney Dregne stated that in-vehicle sales and service
uses whether accessory or principle uses are allowed as conditional uses.

Attorney Dregne made some clarifications from the public hearing testimony as follows:

This request is the only time Attorney Dregne and City Staff can recall that a request has
been made by a group of individuals to amend the zoning code which prompted Attorney
Dregne’ s involvement.

Attorney Dregne stated the Plan Commission can take into account scientific evidence
but it must be substantial evidence.

Mayor Swadley stated that Attorney Dregne has recommended the City amend several
sections of the zoning code including the conditional use language. The City will budget to
update the Comprehensive Plan in 2025 and follow that up with a rewrite of the zoning
ordinance.

Caravello appreciates the effort to provide all of this information.

Mayor Swadley has concerns about the information provided and gave examples of studies
provided which are not conclusive. Mayor Swadley stated that if the studies were conclusive
there would be class action lawsuits and County or Statewide regulations for these types of
uses.

Majewski stated the same could be said for any particular parking lot and questioned whether
a parking lot should be 100 feet from any building.

Schumacher reported he went through all of the related documents provided and indicated
most of the documents are lackluster, outdated and not sound scientific evidence.
Schumacher reported he is a 30-year bench scientist. Schumacher stated he would like to
review any scientific evidence that can be provided relative to this request.

Bradford appreciates the passion but agrees with Mayor Swadley and Schumacher.

\\sto-fsI\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\11-28-2023\Minutes\02 Plan Com Minutes 100923.docx





Plan Commission Meeting Minutes

10/9/23

Page 3 of 6
Farrow, who is a civil engineer, questioned if a reasonable person could make a
determination about the provided information. Attorney Dregne stated the reasonable person
is a reference from the conditional use process, this request to amend the zoning code allows
more discretion for making policy.
Schumacher questioned the number of existing in-vehicle sales and services uses provided in
the Attorney/Staff review. Stacey stated there is a total number for all existing uses and of
those 7 are fueling stations.

Dregne stated the Plan Commission has 60 days to make a decision on the request.

Caravello asked if the rules could be waived to allow more testimony tonight. Attorney
Dregne stated it would be better to have another public hearing next month.

Bradford stated the proposed ordinance amendment as a whole goes too far.

Attorney Dregne stated the Plan Commission can recommend approval, denial or postpone to
a later date.

Attorney Dregne recommends any new information be provided to Stacey instead of directly
to a Plan Commissioner.

Motion by Bradford to postpone this agenda item until next month to allow further
discussion, 2" by Schumacher.

Caravello made a motion to amend the motion to include a public hearing. There was no
second.

Motion carried 5 — 2 (Caravello and Robinson voted no)

8. Conditional use request for a Bed and Breakfast use at 217-219 S. Fourth Street.
Scheel explained the request.

Farrow stated parking is not a requirement for this request. Scheel stated that is correct.
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.

Lisa Mensink spoke in favor
Mike Klinzing spoke in favor

Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.
Schumacher asked what the existing business is and would that run simultaneously with the

bed and breakfast. Ashley Kirch stated it is a resale store which would be primarily replaced
by the bed and breakfast.

\\sto-fs I\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\11-28-2023\Minutes\02 Plan Com Minutes 100923.docx





Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
10/9/23
Page 4 of 6

10.

Motion by Robinson to recommend Common Council approval of the conditional use permit
as requested, 2" by Bradford. Motion carried unanimously.

Conditional use request for a Personal and Professional Service use (tattoo parlor) at
529 E. Main Street.

Scheel gave an overview of the request and noted the applicant will need to work with the
adjacent property owner for a parking agreement.

Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.

Gabrielle Ballard, who is part owner of the tattoo business, spoke in favor of the request.
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.

Schumacher questioned if the use is in the front portion of the building. Stacey stated yes.

Caravello questioned the parking requirements. Scheel explained the code requirement and
condition within the resolution.

Motion by Bradford to recommend Common Council approval the conditional use permit as
presented, 2" by Caravello. Motion carried unanimously.

Site plan review for a multi-family residential project at 2605 Cromwell Court.
Connor Nett provided an overview of the site plan including the addition of native plantings
and sidewalk connection to the commercial center as requested by the Common Council.

Bradford likes the final product.

Schumacher likes the plantings and quality of trees.

Scheel noted the parkland requirement as a condition of approval.

Majewski questioned the location of the sidewalk connection to the commercial center that
connects to the TRU Hilton parking lot. Majewski suggested the sidewalk be located
between the Aldi site and TRU Hilton site. Connor Nett stated that due to the elevation and
amount of grading required, they settled on the proposed location. Scheel also noted there

are utility easements to consider between the properties.

Motion by Bradford to approve the site plan as presented, 2™ by Farrow. Motion carried
unanimously.

\\sto-fs I\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\11-28-2023\Minutes\02 Plan Com Minutes 100923.docx





Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
10/9/23
Page S of 6

11.

12.

Site plan review for the Stoughton Trailers Headquarters at 1800 Greenbriar Drive.
Scheel provided an overview of the request.

Austen Conrad gave an overview of the site plan and building, noting that trash will be
screened and external of the building. There will also be two monument signs instead of one.

Scheel stated the request is contingent on the CSM being recorded and a development
agreement.

Majewski questioned the parking lot stall count and landscaping coverage. Scheel stated the
number of parking stalls is determined by building square footage. Stacey noted the parking
stalls had to be reduced to meet code maximum parking stall requirements.

The applicant gave an overview of the landscaping plan.

Majewski stated he would like to see more shade coverage and plans to amend the code to in
the future for 60% shade coverage.

Motion by Farrow to approve the site plan as presented, 2" by Bradford. Motion carried
unanimously.

Site plan review for building demolitions, new gym and district administration building
entrance additions including parking expansion for Stoughton Area School District at
235 N. Forrest Street.

Dr. Dan Keyser introduced the project and development team.

Andre Rosteing gave an overview of the project.
Schumacher questioned the timeline of the project. Dr. Dan Keyser and Andre Rosteing
explained the intent to break ground between Jan and March 2024 with project completion in

Jan 2025.

Scheel stated there is a request within the application to widen the drive access at Fifth Street
and is included in the resolution as part of the approval.

Farrow suggested limiting the shrubs near the gym exit for safety reasons. Maclain Schramm
stated they will bring that back to the team for discussion.

Schumacher discussed the historic drainage issues with the site.

Motion by Bradford to approve the site plan as presented, 2" by Schumacher. Motion
carried unanimously.

\\sto-fs I\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\11-28-2023\Minutes\02 Plan Com Minutes 100923.docx





Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
10/9/23
Page 6 of 6

13. Future agenda items.
Preliminary condo plat for Stoughton Hospital in December.
Final plat for lot 6 at 51 West Subdivision.
Solar array at United Methodist Church.
Yahara School demo and maintenance building site plan.
14. Adjournment.
Motion by Caravello to adjourn at 8:10 pm, 2" by Bradford. Motion carried unanimously.

Respectfully Submitted,

Michael P. Stacey

\\sto-fs I\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\11-28-2023\Minutes\02 Plan Com Minutes 100923.docx





Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton
Tuesday, October 24, 2023

The meeting was a hybrid meeting located in the City Council chambers of the Public Safety Building at
321 S. Fourth St as well as concurrently held via Zoom.

Committee members present: Brett Schumacher (Chair), Lisa Reeves (Vice Chair), Leonard “Ozzie”
Doom (arrived 5:55 p.m.), Ben Heili (remote, arrived 5:35 p.m.), Greg Jenson, Tim Swadley (Mayor, ex-
officio) and David Thomas

Members absent: None

Guests present: Dave Ehlinger, Dan Glynn (remote), Thane Hutchinson (Baker Tilly/Emmi Roth, remote),
Rick Manthe (Stafford Rosenbaum), Rodney Schee! (remote) and Fred Swed (Emmi Roth)

1. Callto order —Schumacher called the meeting to order at 5:33 p.m.

Roll call and verification of quorum — A quorum was present.

3. Certification and compliance with open meetings law — Schumacher indicated the meeting was
properly noticed.

4. Public comment - None

5. Communications

a. 501 E South St property update — Ehlinger recapped what had occurred in relation to
the property purchased in 2013 and the resulting notice required going forward on
subsequent debt issues. General conversation on the topic occurred.

6. Approval of minutes for 09/12/2023, 09/26/2023 and 10/10/2023 — Motion by Heili/lenson to
approve the minutes for all meetings as drafted. The motion passed 6-0.

7. Reports :

a. Treasurer reports September 2023 ~ Bank reconciliation, cash summary by fund, TIF
District negative cash, receipt register — Ehlinger indicated the TIF District negative cash
report was new and will be provided in subsequent months.

Budget amendment and journal entry report September 2023

c. General Fund revenue / expenditure reports September 2023 — City Council, Municipal
Court, City Attorney, Mayor, Finance, General Revenues

d. Balance sheet / revenue-expenditure reports September 2023 — Tourism Fund,
Affordable Housing Fund, ARPA fund, Redevelopment Authority Fund, Shared Ride
Services Fund, Firefighters Pension Fund

e. Retirement payouts September 2023 — None — No questions were raised regarding the
reports.

8. R-168-2023 Offer to purchase property located at 2464 County A, Town of Dunkirk — Glynn,
Manthe, Scheel and Swadley spoke on the topic. General discussion on the topic occurred.
Motion by Reeves/Jenson to recommend approval to the Common Council as drafted. The
motion passed 6-0.

9. R-170-2023 Negotiate developer agreement with Emmi Roth USA for installation of solar
panels** - Motion by Reeves/ienson to go into closed session as per Wisconsin Statute
19.85(1)(e) for competitive or bargaining reasons. By roli call vote, the motion passed 6-0.
Doom arrived at the meeting. General discussion on the topic occurred along with a related
motion. Motion by Thomas/Jenson to return to open session at 6:49 p.m. By roll call vote, the
motion to return to open session passed 7-0. Motion by Jenson/Reeves to recommend to
Common Council as per motion approved in closed session. The motion passed 7-0.

N





10. Future agenda items
a. November 14, 2023 - Yahara Riverfront Development developer and property sale
agreements — time sensitive item
November 28, 2023 — October financial reports
c. Date to be determined — Other items
i. R-xxx-2023 Debt Issue 2023B — Promissory note issue
ii. DPW site remediation bid specs (time sensitive item)
iii. Investment portfolio review
iv. R-xxx-2023 Establish city policy for facility rental charges to Stoughton Utilities
and Emergency Medical Services
d. Date to be determined — Creation and/or modification of city policies
i. Future treatment of costs eligible for special assessments and related interest
rate
ii. Updates to fund balance policy, including policy specific to K-9 Fund
iii. Potential revisions of Capital Improvement Plan and Debt Management policy
iv. Update policy regarding city asset disposal
v. Municipal Court receivables / debt collection policy — No discussion on the
topic of future agenda items occurred.
11. Adjourn — Motion by Reeves/Doom to adjourn at 6: 51 p.m. The motion passed 7-0.

Respectfully submitted,

(A0

David P. Ehlinger, CPA
Director of Finance/Comptroller
City of Stoughton





WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2023, @ 6:30 P.M.

STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY Y P —
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING l' I STOUGHTON

HYBRID MEETING IN CARNEGIE ROOM

& VIA ZOOM

PRESENT: Ken Axe; Lora Klitzke; Jean Ligocki, Vice-President/City Council Representative;
Sharon Meilahn Bartlett (virtual); Erin Meinholz; Dayna Verstegen (virtual)

ABSENT: Amy Ketterer; Teri LeSage, President; Kristin Rosenberg, Stoughton Area School
District Representative; Siri Vienneau, Student Trustee

ALSO PRESENT: Jim Ramsey, Library Director; Sarah Monette, Administrative Assistant;
Lesley Johnson, President, Friends of the Stoughton Public Library

V.
V.
VI.
VII.

CALL TO ORDER. 6:31 p.m. by Vice-President Jean Ligocki

REVIEW OF AGENDA & CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN
MEETINGS LAW. Item Xl and Item XI1I.A were moved up.

WELCOME TO NEW LIBRARY BOARD TRUSTEE LORA KLITZKE. Board
members introduced themselves.

CONSENT AGENDA. Motion to approve: Meinholz. Second: Verstegen. Vote: 5-0
RECOGNITION OPPORTUNITIES. None.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD. None.

REVIEW/DISCUSSION OF CORRESPONDENCE. Ramsey shared (1) email from a
patron praising the Library’s book discussion groups; (2) thank you from Heartland
Farm Sanctuary; (3) email from patron praising the Mini Renaissance Faire.

[Lesley Johnson arrived at 6:40 pm]
[Ken Axe arrived at 6:43 pm]

VIIIL.

FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY REPORT FROM FRIENDS BOARD PRESIDENT
LESLEY JOHNSON. Johnson shared that the profit from the Friends’ Fall Fundraiser
was $5000; profit from the book sale was $300; the Friends chose new Board
members at their October meeting, Johnson remaining President; the Friends will give
$17,000 to the Library in 2024, $2000 of that coming from honor/remember gifts.

[Johnson left at 6:54 pm]

IX.

XI.

XII.

EDUCATION UPDATES. Klitzke mentioned a recent episode of NPR’s podcast Life
Kit about library systems throughout the country; Meilahn Bartlett shared a moment
of appreciation for the science of library work.

BOARD IN-SERVICE: TRUSTEE ESSENTIAL #22: FREEDOM OF
EXPRESSION AND INQUIRY. Ramsey presented.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT. Ramsey presented. In addition to his written report, he
shared that the Library is receiving a bequest of $50,000. There was discussion about
recognizing the donor and about encouraging people in the community to think about
planned giving.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

A. Finance: See New Business, XIV.A & C





Personnel: See New Business, XIV. B.
Planning: did not meet.
D. Policies: did not meet.
XIIl.  OLD BUSINESS. None.
XIV. NEW BUSINESS.

A. Discussion and possible action regarding resolution to restrict use of Fund 217 fund
balance for future library expansion project. Motion to approve the resolution as
written and recommend it to Council: Axe Second: Verstegen Vote: 6-0.

B. Discussion and possible action regarding creation of a grant-funded limited term
employment (LTE) position in Technical Services in 2024. Ramsey presented.
Motion to approve the creation of a grant-funded LTE position for the purpose of
RFID tagging the Library’s collections: Axe Second: Meinholz. Vote: 6-0.

C. Approval of 2024 Library Operating Budget. Ramsey presented. The City budget
includes a 4.5% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA). The City’s contribution to the
Library budget is increasing by 3.6% over last year. The overall library budget is
increasing by 6.1%. Ramsey described discrepancies with how wages are allocated in
the Wages and Wages-Part Time lines and reported that he is trying to resolve them
with the Finance Director and Human Resources Director. Motion to approve the
2024 Library Operating Budget, contingent on the adjustment of the Wages and
Wages Part-Time lines: Meinholz Second: Verstegen Vote: 5-0 with Ligocki
abstaining.

XV. PENDING AGENDA ITEMS. DISCUSSION OF LIBRARY CLOSURE ON
FEDERAL HOLIDAYS NOT CURRENTLY DESIGNATED AS PAID HOLIDAYS
BY THE CITY OF STOUGHTON: PRESIDENTS’ DAY, JUNETEENTH,
INDIGENOUS PEOPLES’ DAY, AND VETERANS DAY..

XVI. ADJOURNMENT. Motion to adjourn at 7:50 P.M.: Meinholz Second: Meilahn

Bartlett. Vote: 6-0.

O w

Minutes taken by Sarah Monette.





Seniors In Need Meeting Minutes

Wednesday, October 18, 2023 — 9:00 am

Stoughton Senior Center

Present: Cindy McGlynn, Joann Lewandowski, Joyce Kaping, Bill Hasz and Cathy Rigdon.
Absent: Amy Allen, Pat Satori-Warton, Judy Olson, Corinne McGeever and Mayor Tim Swadley
Call to Order: Chairperson McGlynn called the meeting to order at 9:08 am.

Meeting Minutes: September 18, 2023 minutes not available to approve.

Referrals:

23-26 ( year old female): Requesting $660.45 for the purchase of an electric dryer. Cost includes tax,
installation and delivery. Motion by Kaping, second by Lewandowski to approve. Motion carried.

Motion to adjourn: Motion by Hasz, second by Lewandowski to adjourn. Motion carried.
Meeting adjourned at 9:22 am.

Respectfully Submitted,
Cathy Rigdon, Secretary

Next Meeting of the Seniors In Need will be on Wednesday, November 15, 2023 at 9:00 am at the
Stoughton Senior Center.





		01 RDA minutes (signed) 10-11-2023

		02 Plan Com Minutes  100923

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, October 9, 2023 at 6:00 pm Hybrid Meeting



		03 Finance Committe minutes (signed) open session 10-24-2023

		04 2023 10 18 October Library Board minutes

		05 Senors in Need  October 18 2023 Minutes




CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Irrevocable Standby Letters of Credit regarding Developer Agreement with Eldon Land
Development, LLC for Magnolia Springs Development

Committee Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 11/14/2023
Action:

Fiscal Impact: $3,460,443 & $1,367,094

File Number: R-183-2023 Date 11/28/23

The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Common Council approved the developer’s agreement with Eldon Land
Development, LLC for the Magnolia Springs Development under Resolution R-93-2023 on June
13, 2023; and,

WHEREAS, the developer’s agreement required a letter of credit for $4,827,537 (Phase 1
- $3,460,443 and Phase 1A - $1,367,094) shall be provided to the City of Stoughton; and,

WHEREAS, the attached Irrevocable Standby Letters of Credit, Exhibit A, and Exhibit B
have all been reviewed as to form by the City Attorney; and,

WHEREAS, the developer’s agreement requires that the letter of credit shall be issued by
an entity that is acceptable to the City or has a rating of its long-term unsecured debt not lower
than A1 by Moody’s Investors Service or A+ by Standard and Poor’s; and,

WHEREAS, The Bank of New Glarus does not currently have a relationship with either
rating agency because the bank is privately held and has not issued any public debt instruments;
and,

WHEREAS, The Bank of New Glarus has provided information to both the City of
Stoughton Finance Committee and City of Stoughton Common Council sufficient to deem that
The Bank of New Glarus’ Irrevocable Standby Letters of Credit are acceptable to the City;





NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council finds the
Irrevocable Letters of Credit from The Bank of New Glarus in the attached format approved by
the City Attorney is hereby accepted by the City of Stoughton Common Council.

Council Action: I:IAdopted I:I Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: I:I Accept I:I Veto
Mayor Tim Swadley Date
Council Action: |:| Override Vote

S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R--2023 - Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit regarding Developer Agreement with Eldon Land Development LLC
for Magnolia Springs Development.docx





The development agreement requires the Letter of Credit be issued to the City of Stoughton by a
Financial Institution with a rating of A1 (Moody’s) or A+ (Standard and Poor’s). Out of 4,236 FDIC-insured
commercial banks in the US 21 banks meet the A1 Moody’s rating and 17 meet the Standard and Poor’s
rating. The majority of Community banks do not have any relationship with these rating agencies due to
being privately held and do not issue any public debt instruments. Bank of New Glarus was compared to
a sampling of Financial Institutions who meet the requirements and are inline with similar ratios.

* Net interest margin (NIM) — A measure of the difference between interest paid and interest
received, adjusted for the total amount of interest-generating assets held by the bank.
o Wells Fargo — 3.62%
o Bank of America —2.78%
o BMO-23.55%
o Bank of New Glarus - 3.54%

+ Efficiency ratio — The ratio of non-interest expenses divided by revenue. This shows how well
the bank's managers control their overhead (or back office) expenses.
o Wells Fargo — 56.29%
o Bank of America — 52.87%
o BMO -69.86%
o Bank of New Glarus — 64.57%

e Loans/Deposits Ratio (LDR) — Expressed as a percentage, LDR is used to assess a bank's
liquidity by comparing a bank's total loans to its total deposits for the same period.
o Wells Fargo — 81.55%
o Bank of America - 76.71%
o BMO -86.54%
o Bank of New Glarus — 89.87%

o CET1 Ratio-The CET1 ratio is similar to the leverage ratio. It measures the ability of a bank to
cover its exposures. However, the CET1 ratio is a more stringent measurement, as it only
considers the common equity tier 1 capital, which is less than the total tier 1 capital. Also, for the
ratio’s calculation, the risk level of the exposure (asset) is considered as well. A higher risk asset
is given a higher weighting of risk, which lowers the CET1 ratio.

o Wells Fargo — 12.66%

o Bank of America — 13.29%

o BMO-11.32%

o Bank of New Glarus — 13.36%

e Equity/assets — A way to look at a balance sheet and to condense it down.
o Wells Fargo - 9.75%
o Bank of America — 9.39%
o BMO-12.14%
o Bank of New Glarus — 8.86%





IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT

The Bank of New Glarus
501 First St, P O Box 129, New Glarus WI 53574
BENEFICIARY LETTER OF CREDIT NO. DATE
The City of Stoughton,
a Wisconsin municipal corporation 4009563 October 18, 2023

This Letter of Credit is issued to secure certain obligations of Eldon Land Development
LLC (“Developer”) under the Master Agreement to Undertake Development entered as of June
13, 2023 and the Agreement for Subdivision Improvements Phase 1 and 1A entered as of June
13, 2023 (collectively the “Development Agreement”). We hereby authorize you to draw on us
for the account Developer up to an aggregate amount of Three Million Four Hundred Sixty
Thousand four hundred forty-three dollars ($3,460,443) available at sight upon presentation of
the following:

1. Your draft in the form attached as Exhibit A.
2. This original Letter of Credit.
2. An affidavit in the form attached as Exhibit B.

This Letter of Credit and each extended, renewed or replacement letter of credit shall be
automatically extended without amendment for a period of one year from its expiration date, unless
at least 45 days before such expiration date we notify the City of Stoughton in writing at 207 S.
Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI, 53589, Attn: Finance Director, that the Letter of Credit will not be
extended for an additional one-year period, or that the Letter of Credit will be renewed or replaced
by a letter of credit in an amount that is less than the amount required by the Development
Agreement.

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:
Partial drawings are [XI permitted.

All drafts must be marked "Drawn Under The Bank of New Glarus Letter of Credit No.
4009563 Dated October 18, 2023"

Insofar as applicable, this Letter of Credit is subject to the International Standby Practices
(1998), International Chamber of Commerce Publication #590. This Letter of Credit shall be
construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, including
insofar as applicable the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect in the State of Wisconsin.

1

S:\LOAN DEPT\Commercial Lending\Customer Folders\Eldon Homes LLC\4009563-Form of Letter of Credit.docx
1027231602





We agree with you to pay draft(s) drawn under and in compliance with the terms of this
Letter of Credit if presented at this office together with this Letter of Credit on or before the

close of our business on October 18, 2025.

Dated: 10/27/2023

The Bank of New Glarus

By:

Name: Jance Marty

Its:____SVP, COO

2

S:\LOAN DEPT\Commercial Lending\Customer Folders\Eldon Homes LLC\4009563-Form of Letter of Credit.docx

1027231602





IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT

The Bank of New Glarus
501 First St, P O Box 129, New Glarus WI 53574
BENEFICIARY LETTER OF CREDIT NO. DATE
The City of Stoughton,
a Wisconsin municipal corporation 4009626 October 30, 2023

This Letter of Credit is issued to secure certain obligations of Eldon Land Development
LLC (“Developer”) under the Master Agreement to Undertake Development entered as of June
13, 2023 and the Agreement for Subdivision Improvements Phase 1 and 1A entered as of June
13, 2023 (collectively the “Development Agreement”). We hereby authorize you to draw on us
for the account Developer up to an aggregate amount of One Million Three Hundred Sixty Seven
Thousand and Ninety-four dollars ($1,367,094) available at sight upon presentation of the
following:

1. Your draft in the form attached as Exhibit A.
2 This original Letter of Credit.
2. An affidavit in the form attached as Exhibit B.

This Letter of Credit and each extended, renewed or replacement letter of credit shall be
automatically extended without amendment for a period of one year from its expiration date, unless
at least 45 days before such expiration date we notify the City of Stoughton in writing at 207 S.
Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI, 53589, Attn: Finance Director, that the Letter of Credit will not be
extended for an additional one-year period, or that the Letter of Credit will be renewed or replaced
by a letter of credit in an amount that is less than the amount required by the Development
Agreement.

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:
Partial drawings are [XI permitted.

All drafts must be marked "Drawn Under The Bank of New Glarus Letter of Credit No.
4009636 Dated October 30, 2023"

Insofar as applicable, this Letter of Credit is subject to the International Standby Practices
(1998), International Chamber of Commerce Publication #590. This Letter of Credit shall be
construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, including
insofar as applicable the Uniform Commercial Code as in effect in the State of Wisconsin.

1

S:\LOAN DEPT\Commercial Lending\Customer Folders\Eldon Homes LLC\4050956-Form of Letter of Credit.docx
1027231605





We agree with you to pay draft(s) drawn under and in compliance with the terms of this
Letter of Credit if presented at this office together with this Letter of Credit on or before the

close of our business on October 30, 2025.

Dated: 10/27/2023

The Bank of New Glarus

By:

Name: Jance Marty

Its: SVP. COO

2

S:\LOAN DEPT\Commercial Lending\Customer Folders\Eldon Homes LLC\4050956-Form of Letter of Credit.docx

1027231605





		09 Rxxx-2023 Irrevocable standby letter of credit - Eldon Land Development LLC.pdf

		09a Bank of New Glarus analysis.pdf

		09b Letter of Credit Phase 1 and Phase 1a.pdf




CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Declaration of Official Intent No. 01-2024

Committee Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on 11/14/2023
Action:

Fiscal Impact: None

File Number: R-184-2023 Date: 11/28/23

The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, United States Treasury regulations allow the City of Stoughton to reimburse
expenditures with proceeds from borrowings authorized by the Common Council; and,

WHEREAS, these same United States Treasury regulations require the City of Stoughton
to have on file a Declaration of Official Intent to allow expenditure reimbursements for up to sixty
(60) days before the date of the Declaration of Official Intent; and,

WHEREAS, our financial advisory firm, Ehlers & Associates, has recommended that
Declarations of Official Intent be created with each annual budget adoption; and,

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton adopted the 2024 annual
budget at their meeting on November 7, 2023 with expenditures of approximately $11.9 million
to be paid for with debt proceeds during calendar year 2024; and

WHEREAS, the attached Declaration of Official Intent No. 1-2024 has been prepared in
order to comply with the United States Treasury regulations;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Director of Finance/Comptroller and
Mayor are authorized to sign the Declaration of Official Intent No. 1-2024 on behalf of the City
of Stoughton; and,





BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signed Declaration of Official Intent be provided
to our financial advisory firm, Ehlers & Associates, as well as our bond counsel, Quarles & Brady.

Council Action: I:IAdopted I:I Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: I:IAccept I:I Veto

Mayor Tim Swadley Date

Council Action: |:| Override Vote





CITY OF STOUGHTON

FINANCE DEPARTMENT
207 S. Forrest St, Stoughton, WI 53589

(608) 873-6677 www.cityofstoughton.com

No. 01-2024
Declaration of Official Intent

This is a Declaration of Official Intent of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin (the “Issuer”) to
reimburse an expenditure with proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings authorized by the Issuer.

This Declaration is made under and pursuant to Treas. Reg. Section 1.150-2. The undersigned
have been designated as officials or employees authorized by the Issuer to make this Declaration
of Official Intent pursuant to a resolution, R- -2023, adopted on November 28, 2023.

This Declaration of Official intent is a public record maintained in the files of the Issuer and is
available for public inspection pursuant to Subchapter II of Chapter 19, Wisconsin Statutes.

The undersigned hereby declares that it is the reasonable expectation of the Issuer to use
proceeds of a borrowing or borrowings to be incurred by the issuer to reimburse expenditures for
the property, project or program or from the funds described below:

Project Description
e 2024 street and storm water projects totaling $4.4 million including but not limited to
engineering, architectural, legal, financial advisory, construction, preventive
maintenance, etc.
e 2024 capital outlay items totaling $5.2 million for parks and trails improvements.
e 2024 capital outlay items totaling $2.2 million including but not limited to:
o Fire Department equipment purchases
Public Works equipment purchases
Public Library equipment and building improvements
General Government equipment/vehicle purchases and building improvements
Police Department vehicles and equipment purchases
Opera House building improvements
Planning and Development equipment purchases

O O O O O O

Applicable Funds
e 224 Storm Water
e 400 Construction
e 410 Capital Outlay






The maximum principal amount of the borrowing or borrowings to be incurred to reimburse
expenditures for the above-described purposes is reasonably expected, on the date hereof, not to
exceed $11.9 million.

The Issuer intends to reimburse itself from borrowed funds within eighteen (18) months, (three
years if the Issuer is a “small issuer”) after the later of (a) the date the expenditure is paid or (b)
the date the facility is placed in service, but in no event more than three years after the
expenditures paid.

No money from sources other than the anticipated borrowing or borrowings is, or is reasonably
expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside by the Issuer with
respect to the expenditure, pursuant to the budgetary and financial circumstances of the Issuer as
of the date of this declaration.

Dated this 28" day of November, 2023.

Signed,
David P. Ehlinger, CPA Tim Swadley
Director of Finance/Comptroller Mayor

City of Stoughton, Wisconsin City of Stoughton, Wisconsin





		08 R-xxx-2023 Declaration of Official Intent No 01-2024.pdf

		11 R-xxx-2023 Declaration of Official Intent No 01-2024.pdf



		11a 01-2024 Declaration of Official Intent.pdf








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Library Special Gift Fund Restricted Fund Balance

Committee Finance Committee recommended approval 7-0 on November 14, 2023
Action:

Fiscal Impact: None

File Number: R-185-2023 Date 11/28/23

The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton maintains a Library Special Gift Fund as a special revenue
fund; and,

WHEREAS, activity in this fund includes grants and donations received from various individuals,
businesses and charitable organizations along with related expenditures; and,

WHEREAS, any unspent donations are considered restricted for library purposes only; and,

WHEREAS, Wisconsin Statutes Chapter 43 gives the Stoughton Public Library Board of Trustees
(Trustees) exclusive control of expenditures of all moneys collected, donated or appropriated for the
library fund; and,

WHEREAS, the Trustees at their meeting on October 18, 2023 resolved that all restricted fund
balances in the Library Special Gift Fund are intended to be used for future expansion of the library’s
building and/or construction of a new library building; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Finance Committee is supportive of the Trustees resolution
approved on October 18, 2023 and requests that the Trustees re-affirm the purpose of the restricted fund
balances in the Library Special Gift Fund at a minimum interval of every three years;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton Common Council hereby
supports the resolution of the Stoughton Library Board of Trustees intention for restricted fund balances.

Council Action: I:I Adopted |:| Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: |:| Accept |:| Veto

Mayor Tim Swadley Date

Council Action: |:| Override Vote






A resolution of the Stoughton Public Library Board of Trustees to restrict the
fund balance of the Library Special Gift Fund (Fund 217) for future expansion
of the library’s building and/or construction of a new library building.

The Stoughton Public Library Board of Trustees does proclaim as follows:
RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the Stoughton Public Library maintains a Library Special Gift Fund as
a special revenue fund held by the City of Stoughton; and,

WHEREAS, activity in this fund includes grants and donations received from
various individuals, businesses and charitable organizations along with related
expenditures; and,

WHEREAS, any unspent donations are considered restricted for library purposes
only; and,

WHEREAS, Wisconsin State Statute 43.58(1) gives the Stoughton Public Library
Board of Trustees exclusive control of expenditures of all moneys collected,
donated or appropriated for the library fund, and of the purchase of a site and
the erection of the library building whenever authorized; and,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that this fund balance be designated by the
Library Board for expenditures related to a possible future expansion of the
library’s building, including, but not limited to, the purchase of a site and the
construction of a library building.

Committee Action: R Adopted [:l Failed Vote 3-0

Library Board Action: | Adopted D Failed Vote 6—_0

w i 08/ 2023

Li%ry Board Vice PresidMocki Date






06/29/2023 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY
Month Ended: December
BALANCE BALANCE  BALANCE BALANCE  BALANCE BALANCE  BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE BALANCE  BALANCE BALANCE  BALANCE  BALANCE  BALANCE  BALANCE
AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF AS OF

GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION 12/31/2007 12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2015 12/31/2016 12/31/2017 12/31/2018 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2022
Fund 217 - LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND
Dept 00000 - REVENUE
Account Type: Revenue
217-00000-4811C INTEREST INCOME 14,213.34 6,994.78 641.00 336.40 202.11 62.53 68.06 62.34 105.94 694.82 1,752.46 3,599.58 4,901.43 1,125.18 59.76 3,504.06
217-00000-48500 DONATIONS - DESIGNATED 27,091.99 22,504.17 26,094.40 31,381.00 33,869.84 42,623.18 44,724.26 17,771.18 42,819.42 46,842.22 56,742.53 68,260.68 70,801.23 28,981.19 81,360.82 69,426.36
217-00000-4851C DONATIONS - UNDESIGNATED 78,149.07 282.55 1,559.92 2,655.75 730.60 247.05 585.47 300.00 50.45 10.00 50.00 69.90 39.04 0.00 0.00 0.00
217-00000-48520 DONATIONS - BUILDING FUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
217-00000-48530 DONATIONS -FUNDRAISING ACCOUNT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 165,993.56 94,772.06  13,924.00 198.31 14,464.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Revenue: 119,454.40 29,781.50  28,295.32  34,413.15 34,802.55 62,932.76 45,377.79 184,127.08 137,997.87 61,471.04 58,743.30 86,394.95 75,741.70 30,106.37 81,420.58 72,930.42
Net - Dept 00000 - REVENUE 119,454.40 29,781.50  28,295.32  34,413.15 34,802.55 62,932.76 45,377.79 184,127.08 137,997.87 61,471.04 58,743.30 86,394.95 75,741.70 30,106.37 81,420.58 72,930.42
Account Type: Expenditure
217-55110-50500 DESIGNATED 14,747.13 33,835.79  26,450.74  29,492.24  16,958.22 34,021.75 38,965.96  28,970.19 34,581.36  53,567.52 51,490.85 45,026.38 59,066.67 26,530.35 37,236.45 67,680.19
217-55110-50501 UNDESIGNATED 6,421.33 1,500.21 1,682.13 530.71 2,244.45 3,180.17 7,859.41 1,015.01 911.34 642.91 446.60 1,657.43 1,010.42 50.00 300.00 813.65
217-55110-50502 BUILDING FUND 2,720.10 91,024.51 17,164.77 16,747.23  66,591.06  27,863.63 4,910.00 15,492.26 (16,172.36) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
217-55110-50503 DESIGNATED-FUNDRAISING ACCOUNT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 253,959.63 0.00 0.00 1,319.31 7,853.34 0.00 0.00 0.00
217-55110-50936 TR OUT - FUND 215 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,220.44
Total Expenditure: 23,888.56 126,360.51 45,297.64 46,770.18 85,793.73  65,065.55 51,735.37 45,477.46 273,279.97 54,210.43 51,937.45 48,003.12 67,930.43 26,580.35 37,536.45 94,714.28
Net - Dept 55110 - LIBRARY (23,888.56) (126,360.51) (45,297.64) (46,770.18) (85,793.73) (65,065.55) (51,735.37) (45,477.46) (273,279.97) (54,210.43) (51,937.45) (48,003.12) (67,930.43) (26,580.35) (37,536.45) (94,714.28)
Fund 217 - LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND:
TOTAL REVENUES 119,454.40 29,781.50  28,295.32  34,413.15 34,802.55 62,932.76 45,377.79 184,127.08 137,997.87 61,471.04 58,743.30 86,394.95 75,741.70 30,106.37 81,420.58 72,930.42
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 23,888.56 126,360.51 45,297.64 46,770.18 85,793.73  65,065.55 51,735.37 45,477.46 273,279.97 54,210.43 51,937.45 48,003.12 67,930.43 26,580.35 37,536.45 94,714.28
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 95,565.84  (96,579.01) (17,002.32) (12,357.03) (50,991.18) (2,132.79) (6,357.58) 138,649.62 (135,282.10) 7,260.61 6,805.85  38,391.83 7,811.27 3,526.02 43,884.13 (21,783.86)
BEG. FUND BALANCE 362,576.17 265,997.16 248,677.84 236,320.81 185,329.63 183,196.79 176,839.21 315,488.83 180,206.73 187,467.34 194,273.19 232,665.02 240,476.29 244,002.31 287,886.44
FUND BALANCE ADJUSTMENTS 267,010.33 (317.00) (0.05)
END FUND BALANCE 362,576.17 265,997.16 248,677.84 236,320.81 185,329.63 183,196.79 176,839.21 315,488.83 180,206.73 187,467.34 194,273.19 232,665.02 240,476.29 244,002.31 287,886.44 266,102.58





		14 R-xxx-2023 Library Special Gift Fund restricted fund balance.pdf

		14a Library Fund 217 Resolution Signed.pdf

		14b Library special gift fund 2007-2022.pdf




CITY OF STOUGHTON

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton
Conditionally approving the Final Condo Plat for Lot 6 at 51 West Development

Committee Action: ~ Plan Commission recommends approval 6 - 0

Fiscal Impact: N/A

File Number: R -186 - 23 Date Introduced: November 28, 2023

The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:
RECITALS

A. A final plat titled “Wild Oak Stoughton Condominium?”, (the “Plat”’)(Exhibit A) was
submitted by Ron Klaas (the “Applicant”) to the City of Stoughton (the “City”) on
October 4, 2023 for review and action, and the statutory review period for Plan

Commission review and recommendation to the Common Council will expire on
December 3, 2023.

B. The Plat was referred to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation to the
City Council. The statutory period for Common Council action on this final plat
request is January 2, 2024

C. The Plan Commission has reviewed the Plat, and determined that the Plat will only be
consistent with the City of Stoughton ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes,
and the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan if all of the conditions set forth below
are satisfied. The Plan Commission recommends approving the Plat subject to the
conditions set forth below.

D. The Common Council has reviewed the Plat, and agrees with the Plan Commission
recommendations.

T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\11-28-2023\10 R-186-2023 Final Condo Plat for - Lot 6 at 51 West - Resolution.doc





RESOLUTION

The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the Final Condo Plat
named “Wild Oak Stoughton Condominium”, as presented.

Council Action: |:|Ad0pted |:| Failed Vote

Mayoral Action: I:I Accept I:I Veto
Tim Swadley, Mayor Date
Council Action: |:| Override Vote

T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\11-28-2023\10 R-186-2023 Final Condo Plat for - Lot 6 at 51 West - Resolution.doc





CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589

(608) 873-6619 www.cityofstoughton.com

Date: September 1, 2023
To: Plan Commission and Common Council
From: Rodney J. Scheel

Director of Planning & Development

Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner

Subject: Agenda Item for the November 13, 2023 Plan Commission Meeting and November
28, 2023 Common Council meeting

Final Condominium Plat for property at Lot 6 within the 51 West Subdivision.
The applicant is seeking to create 20 twin home condominium units. The Common Council

approved the preliminary plat on September 26, 2023.

The application materials and resolution are provided. A recommendation to the Common Council
1S necessary.

\\sto-fs I \global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2023\111323\PC Info\Lot 6 at 51 West Final Plat Memo.doc



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/



CITY OF STOUGHTON
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP/PLAT APPLICATION
FEES EFFECTIVE 1.12.23

Date of Application QOCTPBER. 1/, 2023
Applicant Name 427920 £ k% 4475, 2 oo KoTHE Phone (éﬂf) §32-7Zs 30

Applicant Email AR LRSS @ DI /Y. C
Owners Name (if different than applicant) £¥7vw0 &4 57, DRZ S/ &&=/ Phone (3 /2. )22 2~ 754

Subject Property Address 256 LD Gunees avty

Application for: CSM PRELIMINARY PLAT ___ FINAL PLAT X
CURRENT FEES

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP: $185 AND $45/L.OT*

PRELIMINARY PLAT FEE: $485 AND $45/LOT*

FINAL PLAT FEE: $290 AND $45/LOT* _

Number of Lots: 7

Fee Amount: $____.3.35

Owner/Applicant Signature —%A Date - #-23

ANY QUESTIONS, CALL THE DEPT. OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT AT 608-646-0421.
*ANY ADDITIONAL COST INCURRED OVER THE PERMIT FEE AMOUNT WILL BE BILLED

TO THE PROPERTY OWNER AND/OR RESPONSIBLE PARTY. DWELLING UNITS INCLUDE
EXISTING AND PROPOSED DWELLINGS.

S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\CSM-Plat Application 2022.doc





WILD OAK STOUGHTON CONDOMINIUM T

respect to Sec. 703 Wis. Stats and is hereby
approved for recording.
CONDOMINIUM PLAT ) d )
LOT 6, 51 WEST PLAT o
LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 1, T5N, R10E,
100"

CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

50’

day of ,20

Dane County Planning and Development

—
o
—
«

I
DRAINAGE EASEMENT I I
—_— - 20'x20"
51 WEST ’J | LEGAL DESCRIPTION
—————— 6’ UTILITY EASEMENT N
LEGEND , DOC. NO. 5837787{ \F‘ | Lot 6, 51 West Plat, recorded in Vol 61-0638 of Plats on Pages 377-379, as
587045’52”W 400.24 ; | Document No. 5837187, Dane County Registry. located in the NE1/4 of the NE1/4
P ey ] of Section 1, T5N, RIOE, City of Stoughton. Dane County, Wisconsin.
® (FOUND 3747 IRON REBAR - e o | | Contains 111,330 sf (2.556 AC).
® FOUND 1 1/4” IRON REBAR ‘ o P bg ‘
. Y ,
~ SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE
LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT : B .. o °|? \
22. 8" | \ & \ I, Brett T. Stoffregan., Professional Land Surveyor. S-2742., do hereby
! — certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, that, in accordance with
LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT ' \ Chapter 703.11(4) of Wisconsin Statues, this plat is a correct representation
UNIT 11 | L_ \ of the condominium herein described and that the identification and |ocations
! L_ L . [ 1 r \ of each unit and the common elements can be determined for the plat, and
, Y EASEMENT | [ 1 e — survey of the property is in compliance with the requirements of Chapter A-E7
12 UTI%WIJT ASEME l L 'LW r 1 r - L UNIT 19|UNIT 20 ' \ of Wisconsin Administrative Code.
poc. - © ; ! i — = UNIT 15 UNIT 16 UNIT 17\UNIT 18 \
- — m UNIT , .
"3 ‘ UNI‘-rlll UNIT 12 UNIT 13|UNIT 14 331 00" / 33.00 ‘ ,. \ Dated this day of , 2023
> ! 33.00 \ |
O I 33.00’ | L i [CET9LCE20 | \
—————— ™
) ‘ ‘ LCET/7JLCE18
i"" CE14 LCETSILCETD \ Brett T. Stoffregan, Professional Land Surveyor, S$-2742
LCET13|L
o . LCETIMLCETZ ' w \ \
S ! BIKE PARKING z ‘\ \
VISITOR PARKING (3 SPACES) ! >
o [ LOT 6 £ | | |
3 | s S L =
ouTLoT 5 LS 51 WEST T MICES LE 31.02 ‘ \
— - ——— CES !
51 WEST ! S CET LCEEMIL , 30.00 \ 2 \
,,,,,, LCETOHLCEZ9 30.00 =
’ ! REGISTER OF DEEDS CERTIFICATE
16.01" ‘, 30.00’ 56.91 o \ 3 — \
T3 uniT 2| U | = \‘ |
UN. —
UNIT 6 | UNIT 5 UNIT 4 — - L \ ~ EJ_ \ Received for recording this day of . 2023 at
uNIT 8 | UNIT 7 e L . \ S| |
- — ] L | ] . b3 \ __o’clock___.M. and recorded in Volume of Condominium Plats on
4 L "‘ _‘ '\ x | \ Pages as Document Number
. < |
.\ o | \
\ \ Kristi Chlebowski, Dane County Register of Deeds
|
— -
- - - 0 7 \
- - - ” 268.46
_ - 4045'04"E \
— )\ N8
(- 4 # S — — ——
586°18'42F ¢7. 70" S89°13 11°'W 2’ UTILITY EASEMENT \
g9 DOC. NO. 5837187 \
R=564.00" [LD GOOSE WAY \
witb »=-"" - | NOTES :
_______-—-—-'\\ \ 1. All of this condominium except units and areas |abeled
e —— —_ \ \ | 'imited common elements are common elements.
——————— e —_—— - \ 2. Limited common elements are assigned to the unit they directly abut.
—— — \
_____ \ \ 3. Building dimensions based on plans provided by the owner.
\ | 4. Plat prepared for David West, DRW 51 West LLC.
5. Field work completed on June 28, 2023.
M 6. Units 1-20 each have a total area of 1,790 sf.
7. Park improvement fees are to be paid to the city at the time of
D'ONUFRIU KOTTKE AND ASSUCIATES, INC building permit issuance.
7530 Westward Way, Madison, WI 53717
Phone: 608.833.7530 ¢ Fax: 608.833.1089
YOUR NATURAL RESOURCE FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT .- _(03-107 SHEET 1 OF 2






1 //:20 ’

—_——

D’ONOFRIO KOTTKE AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

7530 Westward Way, Madison, WI 53717
Phone: 608.833.7530 * Fax: 608.833.1089
YOUR NATURAL RESOURCE FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT

WILD OAK STOUGHTON CONDOMINIUM

CONDOMINIUM PLAT
LOT 6, 51 WEST PLAT

LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 1, T5N, R1OE,

CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
22.00" 22.00’
< o
&) (@)
O .
s}
D) N
N
_ 8.00°8.00" N ——— .
o ™ S| paTIO |  PaTIO S
72.00/6 ”;72.00/ OW____J L _]o
= UNITS UNITS N R UNITS UNITS P
©12,4,6,8,10,12, 1,3,5,7,9,11, 3 212,4,6,8,10,12, 1,3,5,7,9,11, (<
| 14,16,18,20 13,15,17,19 % ol 14,16,18,20 13,15,17,19 |
D)
446 SF 446 SF 698 SF 698 SF
20.00 20.00" 1.33'—, SORCH | PORCH 1.33/
1.00 I | 7.Qo
6.83" 10.33" 10.33’ 76b%%
%50’ 1.50
6.00' 6.00

LOWER LEVEL

FIRST FLOOR
LEVEL

FN:22-03-101

20.00" 20.00'

UNITS UNITS
2,4,6,8,10,12, 1,3,5,7,9,11,
14,16,18,20 13,15,17,19

646 SF

32.00'
32.00"

646 SF

’ ’ / AN /
;'gg/ 6.83 11.84 11.84 6-83/ 1.33

1.007.00’ 1.00"

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL

There are no objections to this condominium with
respect to Sec. 703 Wis. Stats and is hereby
approved for recording.

Dated this day of , 20

Dane County Planning and Development

SHEET 2 OF 2






CITY OF STOUGHTON

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL

Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton
Conditionally Approving the Preliminary Condo Plat for Lot 6 at 51 West Development

Committee Action:  Plan Commission recommends approval 6 - 0

Fiscal Impact: N/A

File Number: R-151-23 Date Introduced: September 26, 2023

The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:
RECITALS

A. A preliminary plat titled “Wild Oak Stoughton Condominium”, (the “Plat”)(Exhibit
A) was submitted by Ron Klaas (the “Applicant”) to the City of Stoughton (the
“City”) on June 22, 2023 for review and action, and the statutory review period will
expire on September 20, 2023.

B. The Plat was referred to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation to the
City Council.
C. The Plan Commission has reviewed the Plat, and determined that the Plat will only be

consistent with the City of Stoughton ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes,
and the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan if all of the conditions set forth below
are satisfied. The Plan Commission recommends approving the Plat subject to the
conditions set forth below.

D. The Common Council has reviewed the Plat, and agrees with the Plan Commission
recommendations.

\\sto-fs 1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\09-26-2023\Backup documentation\19 Preliminary Condo Plat for - Lot 6 at 51 West -
Resolution.doc





RESOLUTION
The Comimon Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the Preliminary
Condo Plat named “Wild Oak Stoughton Condominium”, subject to the following
conditions:

1. A final plat shall not be approved unless the following conditions are satisfied:

2. The final plat shall include a notation that “park improvement fees are to be paid to
the City at the time of building permit issuance”,

3. Before the City will sign a Final Plat, Developer must reimburse the City for all
expenses incurred by the City in connection with its review and processing of the
Plat, a Final Plat, and the development of the lands within the Plat. Such
reimbursement shall include all fees the City has paid to legal, planning, engineering,
financial and other consultants.

Council Action: |Z[Ad0pted [:j Failed Vote \ \"a

Mayoral Action: IZT&ccept l:l Veto

iy

U
MKM ﬁ:}‘ﬁ@“i ' G(/afe/ 2023

Tim Swadley, Mayor Date

L

Council Action: I:I Override Vote

\sto-fs 1\global-public-files\PACKETSYCOUNCILA2023 PACKETS09-26-2021\Backup documentationh]9 Preliminary Conde Plat for - Lot 6 at 51 West -
Resolution.doc






— 55 runmen nue ! NeysgsSE 27820 |

. i 1 ine rusu

35 L . -
&5 > roETa 4 T-6-N
wol T " 29,318 SF o R — $00°2128"W
F 12 UmuTy, 12 p 1]
g%é 7 j— ® EASEMENT LOT 1 & }_| 0.673 AC N§9'5955E 4142 e s 1| gp—"" 17258 KHSwENSON
g Lor1i IS z |8
g8: H 101,488 SF cITY o H S ) > o |
N 12 uTuTY 2.330 AC & =l 55 = LOT 2 LlLv 3 - K | N 89°5955" E, 388,68 LOCATION
EASEMENT | B 53 —— e 25 umury —4 5 v
CENTER SECTION 1 e [ H 57 70,093 SF { Sasaen L4 i 45_j\ 2
FC 4" IR . o
FOUND 34" RON ° TRevssarw sia e 3 wega-J z 1.609 AC _ 20 ACCESSEASEMENT |
p— — _mErmle : =
y‘*"g wovssirw s | NovsSAIW 50T . o o
0 121,84 T —
WVEL . e H = HIGHWAY SETBACK RESTRICTION NOTE: '
B i N L [_ ] R NO_IMPROVEMENTS OR STRUCTURES ARE ALLOWED BETWEEN i
P EASEMENT | | il 12 UTILITY & LOT4 THE RIGHT—OF—WAY AND THE HIGHWAY SETBACK LINE. T-5-N
2 i 5, EASEMENT — IMPROVEMENTS AND STRUCTURES INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT
3 s Eg el ~ 46,184 SF LIMITED TO SIGNS, PARKING AREAS, DRIVEWAYS, WELLS,
N i g2 7 1.080 AC ! SEPTIC SYSTEMS, DRAINAGE FACILITIES, BUILDINGS AND
= % w | g8 a5 < RETAINING WALLS. IT IS EXPRESSLY INTENDED THAT THIS N
A o Lo Wi g% \/ RESTRICTION BE FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE PUBLIC AS
&1, 4 ST PROVIDED IN SECTION 236.293, WISCONSIN STATUTES, AND
3 2 w T
gag H A 2 onury By SHALL BE ENFORCEABLE BY THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT RA0-E RAM-E
g9 60— EASEMENT OF TRANSPORTATION OR ITS ASSIGNS. CONTACT WISDOT FOR Al
2] ~ s % MORE INFORMATION. THE PHONE NUMBER MAY BE OBTAINED b
'5 %2 E EaL | H BY CONTACTING THE COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT. ‘\ LINE TABLE
© 3. | 2 T Vo e | seannc Jienomn|  [une | searwo | ienom
2 <8 = w > NW-NE 4 NENE i [owrasfrre| [t e aae| [w [sraeew]
5l g¢ f| o 52 § gﬁ LOT5 N o C e e O L
o ~ Qx ] 1z umury f o R I B e R R A e
RS og » I 1537529/\%}: EASEMENT Lor17 By —  [wee [ wior | [ [sooomer [ aee
Q) g - o % [y
Aoepicaten To 2 9 OUTLOT 3 = 5;118&”%15‘%: : T | [ea T o
THE CITY OF : X - i : - G [wiwarsse | anw | [ [wevsrore | mor
STOUGHTON! | " % 226,831 SF C ez /—'unuw o [vorarore [ s | [s [sovom | w0
e & 5.207 AC 3 I EASEMENT, o [nazsoore | oue o [swol e
7| STORMWATER |12 e 33 % g RANEE i o [emmwe | w0 | [ [z o
qpurposes | BNE H EASEMENT "
B i ¢ g 3 STOUGHTON & NI
§ . "
| B, DEDICATED TO wl ! il 2 ik B CURVE TABLE
EASEmENT | [w THE CITY OF » unury T Gunve | enam: | RAGis | DELTA_| GHORD SEARIG | GHORD DS TANGE | TARGENT i | TANGERT oUT
2 % STOUGHTON 3l 12 uTuTy. EASEMENT | § o1 | wsws | 7e700 | wowzo | neorare Tasr WO000TE | NIOOT20E
1L FOR PARK H i T & [ mer [ 5o [womos | wemere i [swoosaow [rovassrw
- omury PO 1{ O N o o e I o (e
w—f | fzamay. NSTOrE 784AT ¥ 7 { V),' o e [ [orms]| weorw e [seiow | woviowt
—Z LOT 6 ! 3 T e J | S o [ e | e [womar | swswosw s | swonere | wewesiw
12 UTILITY i . . v | o K - 4y 41"
st i 111,330 SF \ 1 w 3 - | o T T il
7 2556 AC Lor M FASEENT L I e K e T e
&
TRAIL o [ | swo [war | _sewarw Tz | swseare | swsarw
g | 78413SF  grsevent N |w ) O R e e o [sovrare [seoeere
— a5y S05"3256°E 1.800 AC E 3 o1 | o795 | senoo | wsers | wewmive oo e
— 2023 : 4 o I e e i [verisere | swee
o = 365,66 @ w o | maw | w500 |awerae | mevierew E e e
N8s*1gurw 43336 & c1a | 225v | 76700 [1e'sriy | szosoew 22480 S08MTIZE | $1075341W
o 48 S [ T Law] i | ios | wovriee huieien
- FE BN o R I e R ar Nivarsse | Rorsiioe
v\DANE‘SON - BRSNS 2 g8 | G [ wer [vew [wersr | ewsrme | [noror [wwerse
DR 3 §§§ o | sov | s [zraoor | wvveore T |wezwore |nwowe
3 &[22
s uTLTY ALl OUTLOT 5 DEDICATED TO 55
b clk - ""DEDICATEDTO. - QUTLOT 4 THE CITY OF =4 Th ecti s platwi
£ THE CITY OF 249,368 SF STOUGHTON FOR [ H g§ 5.236.15,236.16,236.20 and 236.21 (1) and (2), Wis.
i hH] STOUGHTONFOR 66,694 SF 5.725 AC STORMWATER 53¢ Stats.as provided by 5. 236.12, Wis. Stats.
Ehsevint ™ STORMWATER 1.531 AC PURPOSES 8lzz
F2 PURPOSES 0 Certified May 23, 2022
1z unury ]
1 fae 1 Dl
s " Kemu . L
EASEMENT 39 .
N ] Department of Administrati
e OF = R
12 CENTER SECTION 1
| 03 i - Worzsewse (OS2 Y A ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
e - 1_\ R s | e e MSA o
coME== o083 (608) 242.7779 worwméa-ps.com
I RUTLAND = e
| —— .
N 864203 E 263085 WEST 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION &
REVISED MAY 3, 2022 714 R T0 CENTER sEc:1 EAST 114 GORNER OF SEGTION 1 SHEET 1 OF 3

FOUND SURVEY SPIKE W/ WASHER




mstacey

Highlight





Q Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions

Strengthening Wisconsin's Financial Future

Corporations Bureau

Form 102 - Nonstock Corporation Articles of Incorporation

Name of Corporation

The corporation is organized under Ch. 181 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

Article 1 Name of Corporation:

Article 2 Principal Office
Mailing Address:
City:
State:
Zip Code:

Article 3 Registered Agent
Registered Agent Individual:
Name of Entity:

Street Address:
City:

State:

Zip Code:

Email:

Select Statement
Article 4 Select one statement:

Article 5 Is this corporation
authorized to make distributions
under the statute?:

This document was drafted by:

Article 6 Incorporator
Name:
Street Address:
City:
State:
Zip Code:

Incorporator Signature

| understand that checking this
box constitutes a legal
signature:

Incorporator Signature:

Article 7 Optional Articles
The purpose(s) for which the

Wild Oak Stoughton Condominium
Association, Inc.

2525 Via La Selva
Palos Verdes Estates
CA

90274

Robert C. Procter

2 East Mifflin Street #200
Madison

Wi

53703

rprocter@axley.com

The corporation will have members

No

Robert C. Procter

Robert C. Procter

2 East Mifflin Street #200
Madison

Wi

53703

Yes

Robert C. Procter

Condominium Association





corporation is incorporated:

Delayed Effective date:

Article 8 Directors
Name:
Street Address:
City:
State:
Zip Code:
Name:
Street Address:
City:
State:
Zip Code:
Name:
Street Address:
City:
State:
Zip Code:

Optional Contact Information

Name:
Address:

City:

State:

Zip Code:
Phone Number:

Email Address:

Endorsement

Received Date:

Entity ID:

David West

2525 Via La Selva

Palos Verdes Estates

CA

90274

Charles L. Elliot

2 East Mifflin Street #200
Madison

Wi

53703

Timothy J. Burke

2 East Mifflin Street #200
Madison

Wi

53703

Robert C. Procter

2 East Mifflin Street #200
Madison

Wi

53703

608-283-6762

rprocter@axley.com

FILED
08/16/2023

W083105





Draft 8.24.2023

DECLARATION OF
WILD OAK STOUGHTON, A CONDOMINIUM

This Document was drafted by and
should be returned to:

Robert C. Procter, Esq.

Axley Brynelson, LLP

2 East Mifflin Street, Suite 200
Post Office Box 1767
Madison, WI 53701-1767

281/0510-011-8165-2

Tax Parcel Identification Numbers

There are no objections to this condominium
with respect to Sec. 703 Wis. Stat. and it is
hereby approved for recording.

Dated this day of , 2023

Dane County Planning and Development






Draft 8.24.2023

DECLARATION OF WILD OAK STOUGHTON, A CONDOMINIUM

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I DECLARATION AND STATEMENT OF PURPOSE........ccccooviviiiiiieieeeene. Pag 1e
ARTICLE II LEGAL DESCRIPTION, NAME/ADDRESS, RESTRICTIONS AND
DEFINITIONS . ..ottt ettt ettt e st e et e s eebeesabeeabeesabeenseeasbesnsaenseesnseenseeenseenseennne 1
2.1 NAME/AAATESS. . eveeiieeiiieiie ettt ettt ettt sit e e bee et e esbeessteebeesnseenseesnsaenseennne 1
2.2 Legal DESCTIPLION. ...uvieeiiieeiieeeitieetieeeieeesteeeeeteeeseteeessaeessaeessseeessseeessseeessseesnsseessseesnseens 1
2.3 Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions, and Easements. ............cccccevveevieeenieeccveecenieeenen. 1
2.4 DEIINIEIONS. ..cuviieiiieiieeieeiie ettt ettt et e e et ee bt e s beeteesabeesseeesbeeseeesseenseesnseenseesnseeseennne 2
ARTICLE HTTUNITS ..ottt ettt ettt e ettt e et e e sabeesseessbeesseesssaesseesaessseeseaenns 2
K T8 B B 1C) 10115 o) o PSR UUR PSR UUPRRRPRP 2
3.2 Description/Boundaries Of UNit. ........ccceeruieriieniieniieiieeieeieesie ettt 2
3.3  Improvements and AIterations t0 UNit..........cccuveeeiuieeriiieeeiieenieeeeveeeeeeeeereeeveeeveee e 3
3.4  Common Ingress/Egress Between Adjoining Units; Removal of Common Wall........... 4
3.5 Relocation of Unit Boundaries, Merger of Units, Separation of Merged Units. ............. 4
R I T (6 155 013 o7 13 () VOO USRS 4
ARTICLE IV COMMON ELEMENTS ..ottt e 4
O B D TS 10110 4 AU URTPRRRP 4
4.2 USC. turieieieeieeetee ettt e ettt e ettt e et e e he e et e e tteebe e hteetbe e tteaabe e teaesbeeataeenbeebeeenbeeteeenbeenreeenns 5
4.3 Percentage INEEIEST. ...ccuuieeeeiiiieeeeiiee ettt et ea e e e e e et e e e nte e e e enaaeeeeennnees 5
4.4  Conveyance, Lease, or Encumbrance of Percentage Interest. ..........cccceeevveeeerveeeenveennneen. 5
ARTICLE V LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS ......ccoiiiiiiiiiieeeee et 5
T B B ) 141150 o TSRS 5
5.2 DESCTIPLION. ...eeiiieuiieeiieeiieetieette et e et et e et e seteeteeseaeesbeessbeenseesssesnseenstesnseesseesnseenseesnseenseas 5
5.3 S . iiitiieiii ettt ettt e bt et e e be e tae e bt e ate e be e tteenbe e tbeebeetaeenbeeteeenaeeteas 5
5.4  Improvements to Limited Common EIements. ...........ccceeeuieerieeeriieeiie e 6
5.5 Temporary Limited Common EICMENtS. ......c..cceeviiiiieriieiieiieeiieie e 6
ARTICLE VIUSES. ... oottt ettt et e ettt e e ab e e s tbeeabeessbessse e seeesseesseesnseenseeanns 6
6.1  Residential PUrpoSes ONLY. .....c..ceeiiiiiiiiiieiiiieeie ettt es 6
0.2 LRASINE. touiiiiieiieeiie ettt ettt e et e e b e e taeeabe e tt et e e nnbeenbeeneesnbeenseas 7
(T80 BN U4 ) AT 0 015 o) o PO RSSO 9
6.4  Garbage and Refuse DiSPOSaL. ....cccuieeiuiiieiiiieeiieeeieeee et e 9

0.5  TaSh. oo 9





8.24.2023 Draft

L TN 10 1R SRPR 9
6.7  ANIMAal RESIICHION. ....eiiiiiiiieiieeiieiie ettt ettt ettt et e et e e sseeesteeseesnseennnas 9
6.8  Use of Units by DEClarant. ........cccueeruieriieriieiiieiieeieeiteee ettt et e e 9
6.9 ENTOTCEMENL. ..uuviieiiieeciie ettt ettt e e e e e et e et eeetaeeesaeeesaeeennseesnseeennnes 10
ARTICLE VIIUNIT OWNER ..ottt ettt ettt e siee e saeasnbeenseas 10
ARTICLE VIII ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS.......c..ccovvieiieeneen. 10
T S B ) 14115 o) 4 PSSR 10
8.2 MEMDEISIIP. toeviiiieiiieiie ettt ettt sttt e e nbeeteeenbeeneeeaee 10
8.3 VOtING RIGHES. ..eiiiiieiiiiiiieieeiie ettt ettt ettt et et e e tae st e e bt e enbaenseeenseenseeenne 10
8.4 Declarant CONLIOL. .....ccuuiieuiieiiieeeiieeeiee et et et e e e tee e st e e sbeeesbeeessseeesseeesaeeeseeesnneeas 11
8.5  B0ard Of DIIECIOTS. ...uviitieeiiieiieetieite ettt ettt et ettt et e et e e seessbeesbeesnbeenseeenseenseeenne 11
8.6  Termination Of CONLIOL. ......eoiuiiiiieiiieie ettt ettt 11
8.7  Assignability of Declarant’s Rights. ........ccccocciiieiiieiiiiieieece e 12
8.8  IMPlied RIGNES. ..cocueiiiiiiieieeeee ettt et 12
8.9  Rules and RegUIATIONS. ........ceruiiiiiieiiieiieiieeie ettt ettt eae e e 12
ARTICLE IX REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE ......cccoiiiiiieiee ettt 12
0.1 URES. 1eutieeieeiie ettt ettt ettt e et e et e et e st e et e e sabeebeessbeenseeenbeenbeeeaseenseeeabeenbeeenbeeseeenseens 12
9.2  Limited Common EICMENLS. ......cceeriiiiiiiiiieiieeiieiieeie ettt sve et e sveessee e e 12
L2 TR O70)1010070) 4 B 2 (<) 10 ) 01 - PSSR 13
0.4 Entry BY ASSOCIALION. ..viieiuiieeiiiieeitiieeiiieeeiteeeeiteeeteeeseteeesseeessseeesseessseesnsseesnsseesnsseennnes 13
9.5 Damage Caused by Unit OWNETS. ......cccuieruirriieriieiieeieenieeseeeieenseesseesveesseesseesseesseens 13
ARTICLE X INSURANC E ........oiitiiiiieteete ettt ettt ettt aeeaeaesaeesaeeaseeaeassseenneas 14
10.1 Fire and Extended Loss Insurance for the Common Elements............c.ccccceeeeuveerneennnee. 14
10.2  Public Liability INSUTANCE. .....ccueeruiieiieiieeieeiie ettt ettt ettt st e e esaeenaeens 14
10.3  Fidelity INSUTANCE. .....ccccviriiiieeeiieeieeeettee et e eiteeeteeeeteeestaeessseeesaeeessseeesseesnsseesnseeennnes 14
10.4  Unit OWNErs’ INSUTANCE. ......eeeiuvieeriieeeiiieeiieeeitieeesteeeeseeessseessseeessseeessseesssseessssesssseeesnnns 14
10.5  AdMINISTIATION. ..eiiuvieiieiiieiieeie et e ettt et esteete et e sbeesteeeebeeseessseeseesnseeseesnseensaesnseens 14
10.6  DIiSDUISEIMENL. ....veeeiiiieiiieeeiieecieeeeieeesie e et eeteeeteeeetaeesssaeessseeessseeesseessseeensseesnseeennnes 15
| O R 0701111110153 1 161<) 101 1L SRS 15
ARTICLE XI RECONSTRUCTION, REPAIR, OR SALE IN THE EVENT OF DAMAGE OR
DESTRUCTION ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e et eebeessbeebeessseessaessseesseaesseessessseesseessseeseas 15
11.1 Determination to Reconstruct or REePAIL. .......c.cccueeruieriieniieiiieiieeie e eiee e 15
11.2  Plans and SPECIfICAtIONS. ......ecvieiuieiiieiieeie ettt ettt et e te et et eeaeeeeaeesaeenaeens 15
11.3  Responsibility fOr REPAIL. ....cccviiieiieeiieeiee ettt e 15
11.4 Insurance Proceeds and Construction Fund. ..........cccoocuieviiiiiiiniiniiiinieeiieceeceee e, 15

il





8.24.2023 Draft

11.5 Assessments FOr DEfiCIENCIES. ....cccuiieriieeiiieeiiieeiieeeieeeeieeeetee e e eeveeeeaeeereeeeaaeeenes 16
11.6  Surplus in Construction FUNAS...........ccciiiiiiiieiiiiiieeieeie et 16
11.7 Damage or Destruction Of UNit.........cccceieieeiieiiiieieeieeree et esteeie e eveeiee e eseeesaeens 16
ARTICLE XIT EMINENT DOMAIN/CONDEMNATION ......ccceeoiiiiiieeieeieeeie et 16
12.1  Allocation Of AWATd. .....c.ceouiiiiiiiiieeiieiie ettt ettt ettt e e e ssbeesaeenaeens 16
12.2 Determination to Reconstruct Common Elements. ..........cccccccueeeeeuieeciieeciee e, 16
12.3 Plans and Specifications for Common Elements. ...........ccccueeeiieiriieeniieeeeiie e 17
12.4 Responsibility for RECONSIIUCHION. ... .eeviieiiieiiieiieiie ettt 17
12.5 Assessments for DEfICIENCIES. ...ccuvirvieruieriieiieeiieeiie ettt et ete et eteeaeeseaeesaeeaneens 17
12.6  Surplus in Construction FUNd. ..........ccccuveeiiiieiiieciieeeeee e e 17
12.7 Percentage Interests FOIlOWINg TaKING..........cccueeeiuirieiiieeeiiieeeiie e e 17
ARTICLE XIII COMMON EXPENSES/GENERAL AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.......... 17
13.1  COMMON EXPENSES....uuvviieiiiiiieeeiiiieeeeiiieeeeeiteeeeesteeeesesareeeeesnsaeeeesssaeeesssseeeesnnsseeessnnnees 17
13.2  General ASSESSIMENLS. ...c.eeruieeiieiieeiietieeteeriteeteertteesteeneeesteesatessseesseesnseeseessseesaesnseans 18
13.3  Special ASSESSIMENLS. ...ccvieeieeiieiieeitietieeteeniteeteesttesteesseesteesseessseenseesnseeseessseensaesnseens 18
13.4 Payment of General and Special Assessments by Automatic Withdrawal.................... 18
13.5  ComMMON SUIPIUSES. ...eeeeurieiiieiiieiieeieeite ettt ettt et eteeeteeateesbeeseesnbeeaeessseensaesnseens 18
13.6  Certificate Of StATUS. ....eeiiiieiieeie ettt ettt ettt et e e aeessaeesaeenaeens 19
13.7 ManagemeENt SETVICES. ....cecvuirerureerieeeiieeeiteeesteeetaeeesreessseeessseeassseeesssesesssesessseessseeesnses 19
LR TR T 1) 101 (61101 1 4 L PSSP 19
13.9 Suspension of Voting RIghtS. ........cccieriiiiiiiiiiiiieie e 19
13.10 Responsibility of Transferees for Unpaid ASSESSMENtS.........cceeeeveeerveeeeveenieveeenneeenne 19
I3.11T FOTECIOSUIE. ...ceiueeieeiiiieeiiiee et e ittt e et e et e e et e e et e e st e e ssseeeessaeesseeessseeensseeensseesnneeennnes 19
13,12 ReSEIVE FUNM. ...oiiiiiiiieiiee ettt ettt et e e enaeens 20
ARTICLE XIV AMENDMENTS ...ttt ettt ease s 20
ARTICLE XV NOTICES ......oooii ottt ettt et ae e aaessbeesaeesasaesseessseenneas 20
15.1 Notices to ReSIdent AGENL. ....cc.eeruieiiiieriieeieeiiie ettt esiteete et eebeesteesbeeaeeseseesaesnseens 20
15.2 INOtICES t0 UNIt OWIETS. ...cuvieieiiieeiiieeiieeeiieeeiteeeteeeeereessreessseeessseeessseeessseessssessssesesnnes 21
15.3 Notices to Mortgagees/Land Contract Vendor. .........ccceevevieeeciieeniieeciie e 21
ARTICLE XVIREMEDIES........oooiiitiiieieeeeteee ettt ettt et e esnseeneas 21
ARTICLE XVII EASEMENTS / STORMWATER MANAGEMENT .......cccccovviiiiiiieieeieee. 22
17.1 Blanket EQSEMENL.........c.ceiiiuiiiiiiieiiiecciee ettt etee e tee e bee e eeesaeeesbeeensaeesnneeeennes 22
17.2  Stormwater Management MEASUTES. ........ccueeerueeerriieeriieeniieenieeenieeeireeeireesireesaeee e 23
ARTICLE XVIII GENERAL .....ooootiiiietieeeeeee ettt ettt s va e e eaneeneeas 23

il





8.24.2023 Draft

18.1
18.2
18.3
18.4
18.5
18.6
18.7

UBIIIEI@S. v veeeeveeeetieeetee ettt e ettt e ettt e st e e et e e satee e steeensaeeesaeeensaeeassaeenssaeessseeensseesnsseesnneeennnes 23
ENCIOACHMENLS. ....eeoiiieiiieciie ettt ettt e et e e e enbeenneas 23
INUISAIICES. .nvveeetieiieeiiieeiie et e e te et eetee e bt e ate e seestbeesseeesseenseessseenseesnseenseesnseenseeanseensnesnseans 24
Invalidity 0f @ PrOVISION......uiieiiiieeiiieeiieeciee ettt e e e e et eeeae e saaeesneeeenes 24
WATTANTIES. ..eeevvieiieeieeiie ettt ettt e et et e st e et esabeeteeeaseenseeenbeensaeenseenseeesseensaesnseenseennns 24
INONEWALVET. ..eiitieniieeiiesiie et et et e ette e bt esate e beeeseeesseeesseeseessseenseessseesaesnseeseesnseenseesnseens 24
NTEA S ;1011 L1 SRR URURPSRRPS 24

v





Draft 8.24.2023

DECLARATION
OF
WILD OAK STOUGHTON, A CONDOMINIUM

This Declaration is made pursuant to the Condominium Ownership Act of the State of
Wisconsin (the “Acf”), Chapter 703, Wisconsin Statutes, by DRW 51 WEST, LLC, a Wisconsin
limited liability company (the “Declarant”).

ARTICLE I
DECLARATION AND STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The Declarant declares that the lands legally described in Section 2.2 and shown on the
Condominium Plat attached as Exhibit A, together with all improvements to be constructed
thereon and all easements, rights, and appurtenances pertaining thereto (the “Condominium”), is
subjected to this Declaration and to the condominium form of ownership as provided in the Act.

ARTICLE 11
LEGAL DESCRIPTION, NAME/ADDRESS,
RESTRICTIONS AND DEFINITIONS

2.1 Name/Address. The name of the Condominium is Wild Oak Stoughton, a
Condominium. The address of the Condominium is 2860 Wild Goose Way, Stoughton, WI
53589.

2.2 Legal Description. The real estate subject to this Declaration is Lot 6 of the
Plat of 51 West, recorded in Volume 61-0638 of Plats on Pages 377-379 as Document Number
377-379 in the Office of the Dane County Register of Deeds and as shown on the
Condominium Plat attached as Exhibit A (the “Land”).

2.3 Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions, and Easements. On the date this
Declaration is recorded, the Condominium shall be subject to:

(a) General taxes not yet due and payable;

(b) Easements and rights in favor of gas, electric, telephone, water, cable and
other utilities;

(©) All other easements, covenants, and restrictions of record,;
(d) All municipal, zoning, and building ordinances;

(e) All other governmental laws and regulations applicable to the
Condominium; and

® All mortgages of record.





8.24.2023 Draft

2.4 Definitions. Except as modified herein, the definitions contained in the Act
shall govern the interpretation of this Declaration.

ARTICLE III
UNITS

3.1 Definition. “Unif’ shall mean the part of the Condominium intended for
independent living use located within a Building, including the attached garage space assigned
to that Unit, as shown on the Condominium Plat. The buildings shown on the Condominium
Plat may be referred to individually as a “Building” and collectively as the “Buildings”.

3.2 Description/Boundaries of Unit. A Unit in the Condominium shall include:

(a) One or more contiguous or non-contiguous cubicles of air, including the
perpetual right of ingress and egress thereto. The parametrical boundaries of the cubicles
shall be the inside face of the studs or concrete forming the walls, extended to an
intersection with the upper and lower boundaries. The upper boundary of each Unit shall
be the inside face of the studs or joists forming the ceiling. Any attic storage area shall be
part of the Unit. The lower boundary of each Unit shall be the horizontal plane of the
uncovered or unfinished upper surface of the floor, including concrete surfaces. The
cubicles of air shall include the attached garage space.

(b) Any and all appliances and other fixtures contained in the Unit, which items
may include, but not be limited to, refrigerator, dishwasher, disposal, laundry equipment
including dryer ducting, range, range hoods, intake and exhaust fans, compactor, cabinets,
carpeting, floor covering, wall coverings, electric baseboard heaters, electric wall heaters,
furnaces including ducts, radiators including piping, controls for heating system, air
conditioning equipment including any external components and including ducts,
humidifier and dehumidifier systems, controls for air conditioning systems, and security
systems.

(c) All improvements attached to the Unit (to serve that specific Unit only) by
the prime contractor or subcontractor, or subsequently attached by the Unit Owner or at his
or her direction together with any improvements or alterations thereto, although said items
may be outside the defined cubicle of air, and shall include but are not limited to the

following:
(1) All drywall;
(2) The patio, screen porch, and concrete stoop for each Unit as shown
on the Plat;

3) All doors, including garage doors, windows and glass, if any, their
casements, and all of their opening, closing, and locking mechanisms and hardware;

4) All wall and ceiling mounted electrical fixtures and recessed
junction boxes serving them and all floor, wall, baseboards or ceiling electrical





8.24.2023 Draft

outlets and switches and junction boxes serving them; and all internal wiring
between the foregoing and the main fuse or breaker box.

®)) All cable including but not limited to telephone, fax, television,
video, and audio computer, and internet cable and related inlets and outlets, together
with all antennae, if any, to the Unit and the junction box serving it;

(6) All plumbing and natural gas fixtures and piping, valves and other
connecting and controlling materials and devices lying between the fixtures and the
main water, sewage lines and natural gas exterior connection (prior to any utility
meter) at the lowest level of the Unit including, but not limited to, utility meters,
water heaters, water softeners, and water filters;

(7) Any free standing fireplace, including its chimney and chimney flue
serving the Unit;

(8) The stairway and stairwells located within a Unit;

9) Any heating, ventilation, and air conditioning system that only serve
a Unit.

(d) Specifically not included as part of the Unit are the driveways and sidewalks
leading to any Unit and the patios, which items shall be Limited Common Elements as set
forth in the Condominium Plat. Also specifically not included as part of the Unit are those
structural components of each building and any portion of the plumbing, electrical or
mechanical systems of the building serving more than one Unit or serving another Unit,
even if located within the Unit, which shall be Common Elements. Any structural
components, plumbing, electrical, mechanical and public or private utility lines running
through a Unit that serve more than one Unit or serve another Unit are Common Elements.

33 Improvements and Alterations to Unit. A Unit Owner may make improvements
and alterations within its Unit; provided, however, that such improvements or alterations shall
not impair the structural soundness or integrity or lessen the structural support of any portion
of the Condominium and do not impair any easement. A Unit Owner may not change the
dimensions of or the exterior appearance of a Unit or any portion of the Common Elements
without obtaining the prior written approval of the Association, which may charge the
requesting Unit Owner(s) a reasonable plan review fee and inspection fee. Any approved
improvement or alteration that changes the exterior dimensions of a Unit must be evidenced
by recording a modification to this Declaration and the Condominium Plat before it shall be
effective and must comply with the then applicable legal requirements for such amendment or
addendum. Furthermore, any approved improvements or alterations must be accomplished in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations, must not unreasonably interfere with the use
and enjoyment of the other Units and the Common Elements, and must not be in violation of
any underlying mortgage, land contract, or similar security interest. A copy of any required
municipal building permit must be provided to the Association prior to the commencement of
any construction.






8.24.2023 Draft

34  Common Ingress/Egress Between Adjoining Units; Removal of Common Wall.
Unit Owner(s) of two adjoining Units which are located within a single building may construct
so as to provide and maintain ingress and egress between said adjoining Units, either through
a common wall, or by removing all or part of any common wall which separates said adjoining
Units, provided that all construction is performed so as to: (i) not change the exterior
appearance or outside dimensions of either of said adjoining Units, (ii) not remove, change or
relocate any load bearing wall(s) or otherwise weaken the support structure of either of said
adjoining Units, and (iii) not create a nuisance substantially affecting the use and enjoyment
of other Units or the Common Elements, and further provided that the expenses incurred in
connection therewith, and for restoration of any such changes made, so as to conform said
Units to the original floor plans as shown on the Condominium Plat, when necessary, are paid
by the (respective) Unit Owner(s) of said adjoining Units. In addition, notwithstanding any
such interior changes made as herein provided, all adjoining Units shall remain as individual
condominium Units for all purposes as herein defined including, but not limited to, voting,
payment of required common expenses, condominium dues, fees and assessments. Such
modification shall require the approval of the Association which may charge the requesting
Unit Owner(s) a reasonable plan review fee and inspection fee. The creation of such common
ingress/egress or removal of common wall does not constitute a relocation of the boundaries
of the Units or the merger of Units. A copy of any required municipal building permit must be
provided to the Association prior to the commencement of any construction.

3.5 Relocation of Unit Boundaries, Merger of Units, Separation of Merged Units.
Subject to the provisions of Section 703.13(6), (7) and (8) of the Act, the Owner or Owners of
adjoining Units may relocate the boundaries between the adjoining Units, merge adjoining
Units, and separate a merged Unit to adjoining Units. Such modification shall require the
approval of the Association which may charge the requesting Unit Owner(s) a reasonable plan
review fee and inspection fee. A copy of any required municipal building permit must be
provided to the Association prior to the commencement of any construction.

3.6  Identification. Units shall be identified by Unit number as specified on the
Condominium Plat of the Condominium, which shall be recorded contemporaneously with this
Declaration.

ARTICLE 1V
COMMON ELEMENTS

4.1 Definition. “Common Elements” shall mean all of the Condominium except
the Units. The Common Elements include, without limitation, the following:

(a) The Land,
(b) The foundations, columns, pilasters, girders, beams, supports, and main
walls (which shall be defined as exterior walls and surfaces, structural walls, roof trusses,

and roofs);

(c) That part of the fire sprinkler system, if any, and its associated piping and
operating mechanisms serving more than one Unit;





8.24.2023 Draft

(d) The part of any utilities such as natural gas, electricity, sewer, or water that
service more than one Unit;

(e) Cluster mailbox islands;
® Outdoor parking stalls; and

(2) Any other portion of the improvements to the Land that is not part of a Unit
as described above.

4.2  Use. Except as otherwise provided herein, and subject to the Bylaws of the
Association, as hereinafter defined, and subject to any Rules and Regulations adopted by the
Association, the Common Elements shall be available for the use and enjoyment of or service
to the Owners of the Units.

4.3 Percentage Interest. There shall be appurtenant to the Units an undivided
interest in the Common Elements (the “Percentage Interest”) equal to five percent (5%).

44  Conveyance, Lease, or Encumbrance of Percentage Interest. Any deed,
mortgage, lease or other instrument purporting to convey, encumber, or lease any Unit shall be
deemed to include the Unit Owner’s undivided percentage interest in the Common Elements
and in the insurance proceeds or condemnation awards even though such interest is not
expressly described or referenced therein. Any conveyance, encumbrance, judicial sale or other
transfer (voluntary or involuntary) of a Unit Owner’s individual interest in the Common
Elements shall be void unless the Unit to which it is attached is also transferred.

ARTICLE V
LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS

5.1 Definition. “Limited Common Elements” shall mean those Common Elements
reserved for the exclusive use of one or more but less than all of the Owners of Units.

5.2 Description. The Limited Common Elements and the Unit or Units to which
their use is reserved are identified in this Declaration and on the Condominium Plat, including
without limitation, the walkways and driveway extending from a Unit to the main drive
thoroughfare, and any other improvements as permitted in Section 5.4 below.

53 Use. Except as otherwise provided herein or in the Bylaws of the Association
or as may be regulated by the Association, pursuant to its adopted Rules and Regulations, the
manner of use of the Limited Common Elements shall be determined solely by the Unit Owner
or Owners, as hereinafter defined, who have the exclusive use of such Limited Common
Elements. Each Unit Owner shall have the perpetual unrestricted right of ingress and egress
from his or her Unit over said Limited Common Elements associated with the Unit.





8.24.2023 Draft

5.4  Improvements to Limited Common Elements. Subject to the provisions herein
provided, a Unit Owner may improve, including the enclosure of the limited common elements
appurtenant exclusively to that Owner’s Unit if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) A statement describing the improvement, including a description of the
project, the materials to be used, and the project’s proposed impact on the appearance of
the Condominium, and identifying the project contractor is submitted to the Board of
Directors of the Association.

(b) The improvements will not interfere with the use and enjoyment of the Units
of the other Unit Owners nor the Common Elements or Limited Common Elements of the
Condominium.

(c) The improvement will not impair the structural integrity of the
Condominium.

(d) Any change to the exterior appearance of the Condominium is approved by
the Board of Directors of the Association.

(e) All costs and expenses of the improvement and any increased costs of
maintenance and repair of the Limited Common Elements resulting from the improvement
are the obligation of the Unit Owner. The Unit Owner shall protect the Association and
other Unit Owners from liens on property of the Association or of other Unit Owners that
otherwise might result from the improvement.

6] A copy of any required building permit must be provided to the Association
prior to the commencement of any construction.

5.5 Temporary Limited Common Elements. During the original construction of a
building that will, when finished, contain one (1) or more Units or other improvements, the
building site or site of improvements shall be designated as a Temporary Limited Common
Element. The building/improvement site shall be more specifically determined by the
Declarant or its assigns, which shall have the exclusive use of such area during the construction
period (for the Declarant and the Declarant’s contractors and subcontractors and respective
employees and agents) and shall be responsible for all costs of the original construction, road
and parking improvements, and landscaping within the building site. Upon the issuance of an
occupancy permit for the Unit or Units within the Building by the municipality in which the
Condominium is located, the temporary Limited Common Element for the building site shall
terminate and the building site shall then become a Unit or Units, Common Element or Limited
Common Element, as hereinbefore defined and as shown on the Condominium Plat.

ARTICLE VI
USES

6.1 Residential Purposes Only. The Units, Limited Common Elements, and
Common Elements of the Condominium shall be used for residential purposes only and shall
not be used for any trade or business, whether for profit or not for profit, except for “home






8.24.2023 Draft

occupation” as that term or such similar term is defined in the ordinances of the City of
Stoughton. Each Unit shall be used for single-family purposes. The term “family” shall have
the meaning set forth in the zoning code of the City of Stoughton, as such provision may be
amended from time to time. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the
use of the Units, Limited Common Elements and Common Elements shall comply with all
Ordinances of the municipality in which the Condominium is located, and any other
restrictions as contained in the Association Bylaws and any Rules and Regulations adopted by
the Association. No use may unreasonably interfere with the use and enjoyment of the
Common Elements or other Units by other Unit Owners. There shall be no storage of material,
and there shall be no conduct of any activity that would increase the insurance rates on the
Condominium.

6.2 Leasing.

(a) No Unit shall be rented or leased for short term rental (e.g., Airbnb, Vrbo,
etc.), hotel, or transient purposes.

(b) No Unit Owner may rent or lease its Unit unless the Unit Owner is facing a
hardship approved by the Association, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
The Association may impose reasonable conditions on such approval beyond those set
forth in this Declaration, its Bylaws, and its Rules and Regulations. Examples of hardships
that the Association may consider include, without limitation, the sudden transfer of a Unit
Owner to a new out-of-state job location, illness of the Unit Owner or relative that would
require a temporary absence, or the deployment of a soldier on a tour of duty. The
Association’s approval will be subject to this Section, its Bylaws, and any Rules and
Regulations adopted by the Association.

(©) No Unit Owner may have more than one Unit that the Unit Owner leases or
rents at any one time.

(d) To meet Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac lending guidelines, the Association
shall not approve the leasing of more than thirty-five percent of the Units at any given time.
The Association may make exceptions to this provision based on changes to the Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac lending guidelines, other similar, applicable government-sponsored
enterprise or program, or for any other reasonable reason so long as it will not cause an
economic detriment to the other Unit Owners.

(e) The restrictions against renting and leasing of a Unit do not apply to the
renting or leasing to a member of the Unit Owner’s Immediate Family. The term
“Immediate Family” shall mean the Unit Owner’s lineal ascendants, lineal descendants,
siblings, or spouse of siblings whether by blood or by adoption. The restrictions shall not
be construed to prohibit a Unit Owner from having a person or persons who provide living
assistance to the Unit Owner living with the Owner, regardless of the contractual
arrangement, or prohibit any rental necessary to comply with any applicable law.

63} Requirements For Leasing Units. Subject to Section 6.2(a)-(e), a Unit
approved for renting shall have a lease that provides that:





8.24.2023 Draft

(1) the term of any such lease shall not be less than twelve (12) months;

(2) the lease shall not automatically renew (i.e., after expiration of the
initial lease there would need to be a new lease subject to approval of the
Association under this Section 6.2);

3) the Unit Owner has obtained the prior written approval of the
Association to the proposed tenant and the terms of the proposed lease;

(4) the lease contains a statement obligating all tenants to abide by this
Declaration, the Articles, the Bylaws, and the Rules and Regulations, providing that
the lease is subject and subordinate to the same; and

(%) the lease provides that any default arising out of the tenant’s failure
to abide by the Declaration, the Articles, the Bylaws, and the Rules and Regulations
shall be enforceable by the Association as a third-party beneficiary to the lease and
that the Association shall have, in addition to all rights and remedies provided under
the Declaration, the Articles, the Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations, the right
to evict the tenant and/or terminate the lease should any such violation continue for
a period of ten (10) days following delivery of written notice to the tenant
specifying the violation.

(2) Violations / Remedies. In addition to those remedies set forth in Article
XVII, the Association shall have the following remedies available for any violation of this
Section 6.2.

(1) During the term of any lease of all or any part of a Unit, the Unit
Owner shall remain liable for the compliance by its tenants with all provisions of
this Declaration, the Bylaws, and the Rules and Regulations of the Association, and
shall be responsible for securing such compliance from the tenants. The Association
may require that a copy of each lease of all or any part of a Unit be filed with the
Association.

(2) In the event that a Unit Owner leases out its Unit or any portion of
its Unit in violation of this provision, the Association may impose a daily fine up
to the greater of: (i) an amount equal to the daily rental amount being charged by
Owner to its tenant, and (ii) $100 (this daily fine shall be increased every five years
by 15%).

3) In addition to any fines imposed under this Section, the Unit Owner
shall reimburse the Association for all costs incurred by the Association, including
attorneys’ fees incurred to enforce this Section, any action the Association takes
against the Unit Owner’s tenant, and for the collection of any outstanding amounts
owed by the Unit Owner to the Association under this Section.





8.24.2023 Draft

(h) The restrictions contained in this Section 6.2 shall not apply to the rental or
leasing of any Units by the Declarant, and the Association may not adopt any Bylaw or
Rule or Regulation that would restrict the Declarant’s rights in any way to lease or rent the
Declarant’s Units.

6.3 Sign Restriction. Except for Condominium Association identification signs,
traffic control signs, maintenance building identification signs and building address signs, and
such other signs as approved in the Rules and Regulations, no signs, advertisement, notice, or
other lettering shall be exhibited on any portion of any Unit or on any other portion of the
Condominium property, except the Declarant shall have the right to exhibit one or more
temporary project identification signs and sale office signs with related marketing information
and ‘‘For Lease” or “For Sale” signs in Units owned by the Declarant. In lieu of individual
“For Sale Signs” in front of the individual Units, the Association shall maintain, and the Unit
Owners shall utilize a common “For Sale” sign for the complex.

6.4  Garbage and Refuse Disposal. No Unit shall be used or maintained as a
dumping ground for rubbish, trash, garbage or waste. All receptacles for storage and disposal
of garbage and waste material (e.g., garbage cans) shall follow all City of Stoughton
requirements and directions and shall be kept in a clean and sanitary condition and suitably
screened from view from the street, except on collection day.

6.5  Trash. Trash containers shall be kept inside garages and may be placed upon
the curb only on days of trash collection. No garbage, refuse or cuttings shall be placed upon
the curb unless in a suitable container.

6.6  Storage. Outdoor storage of disabled vehicles or personal property shall not be
permitted. No firewood or woodpile shall be kept outside a structure unless it is neatly stacked
and screened from street view. No vehicles shall be parked on any yard at any time.

6.7  Animal Restriction. Only animals as permitted in the Association Rules and
Regulations shall be allowed in the Condominium and its Units and only if such animal(s) does
(do) not unreasonably disturb the other residents. Owners of such animal(s) shall abide by all
applicable ordinances and regulations and shall be responsible for any inconvenience or
damage caused by such animals. All such animals must be housed in their respective Owner’s
Unit and may not be housed, kenneled, or in any way kept on the Common Elements or Limited
Common Elements. Furthermore, the owner of any such animal shall be responsible for the
immediate removal of his or her animal’s excrement from the Common Elements or Limited
Common Elements. No pet shall be permitted upon any part of the Common Elements except
on a leash and accompanied by a Unit Owner.

6.8  Use of Units by Declarant. Notwithstanding anything else contained in this
Declaration, Declarant shall be entitled to use all Units owned by Declarant as models and for
sales, and for rental or leasing activities. Declarant reserves the right to erect signs or other
entryway features at the entrances to the Condominium and to erect appropriate signage within
the Units and elsewhere relating to the sale or leasing of Units.






8.24.2023 Draft

6.9  Enforcement. This Article VI shall be binding upon all Unit Owners and shall
be enforced in the Remedies set forth in Article XVI. Any and all attorneys’ fees and other
expenses incurred by the Declarant or the Association in the enforcement of this article shall
be reimbursed by the Unit Owner in violation and may be assessed against such Owner’s Unit.

ARTICLE VII
UNIT OWNER

A “Unit Owner” shall mean a person, combination of persons, partnership, corporation or
other legal entity, who or which holds legal title to a Unit; provided, however, that in the event
equitable ownership has been conveyed in the Unit by means of a land contract or other similar
document, “Unit Owner” shall mean the land contract purchaser. The Declarant shall be included
in the definition of Unit Owner with regard to Units for which an occupancy permit has been issued
by the municipality in which the Condominium is located.

ARTICLE VIII
ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS

8.1 Definition. “Association” shall mean Wild Oak Stoughton Condominium
Association, Inc., a Wisconsin nonstock corporation organized and existing under and pursuant
to Wis. Stat. Chapter 181.

8.2 Membership. Every Unit Owner shall be a member of the Association and shall
be subject to its Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, and Rules and Regulations adopted by it
for use and management of the Condominium. By becoming members of the Association, each
Unit Owner automatically assigns the management and control of the Common Elements of
the Condominium to the Association. If title to a Unit is held by more than one person, each
of such persons shall be a member. A Unit Owner of more than one Unit shall be entitled to
one membership for each Unit owned by such Unit Owner(s). Each such membership shall be
appurtenant to the Unit upon which it is based and shall be transferred automatically by
conveyance of that Unit. No person(s) or entity other than a Unit Owner or Declarant may be
a member of the Association, and a membership in the Association may not be transferred
except in connection with the transfer of title to a Unit; provided, however, that the rights of
voting may be assigned to a Mortgagee as further security for a loan secured by a lien on a
Unit.

8.3 Voting Rights. Each Unit shall be entitled to one (1) indivisible vote in the
Association, subject however, to suspension as provided herein. If a Unit is owned by more
than one (1) person, the vote for the Unit shall be cast as agreed by the persons who have an
ownership interest in the Unit, and if only one such person is present, it is presumed that person
has the right to cast the Unit vote unless there is contrary evidence presented. In the event they
cannot agree on the way the vote is to be cast, no vote may be accepted from the Unit. No Unit
Owner shall be entitled to vote on any matter submitted to a vote of the Unit Owners until the
Unit Owner’s name and current mailing address, and the name and current mailing address of
the Mortgagee of the Unit, if any, has been provided to the secretary of the Association. The
Bylaws of the Association may contain a provision prohibiting any Unit Owner from voting
on any matter submitted to a vote of the Unit Owners if the Association has recorded a

10





8.24.2023 Draft

statement of condominium lien on the Unit and the amount necessary to release the lien or to
pay such obligation has not been paid at the time of voting. Further, one who holds a land
contract purchaser’s interest or other such equitable interest in a Unit shall be considered the
Unit Owner. However, for purposes of being eligible to vote as a member of the Association,
the land contract or other document establishing the equitable interest, or an instrument
providing constructive notice of such interest, must be recorded in the office of the Dane
County Register of Deeds.

8.4  Declarant Control. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Declaration to
the contrary, the Declarant shall totally govern the affairs of the Condominium and pay all
expenses thereof until a Unit has been sold to any person other than the Declarant. The
Declarant may exercise any rights granted to, or perform any obligations imposed upon, the
Declarant under this Declaration through its duly authorized agent. After a Unit has been sold
to any person other than the Declarant, except as provided in Section 8.5, the Declarant shall
have the right to appoint and remove the officers of the Association and to exercise any and all
of the powers and responsibilities assigned to the Association and its officers by the Articles,
Bylaws, the Condominium Ownership Act, this Declaration, and the Wisconsin Nonstock
Corporation Law from the date the first Unit of this Condominium is conveyed by the
Declarant to any person other than Declarant, until the earliest of: (a) ten (10) years from such
date, unless the statute governing such period of Declarant control is amended to permit a
longer period, in which event, such longer period shall apply; or (b) thirty (30) days after the
conveyance of seventy-five percent (75%) of the Common Element interest to purchasers, or
(c) thirty (30) days after the Declarant’s election to waive its right of control.

8.5 Board of Directors. The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a board
of directors. Prior to the conveyance of twenty-five percent (25%) of the Common Element
interest of the Condominium to purchasers, the Association shall hold a meeting, and the Unit
Owners other than the Declarant shall elect at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the directors
on the Board of Directors. Prior to the conveyance of fifty percent (50%) of the Common
Element interest of the Condominium to purchasers, the Association shall hold a meeting, and
the Unit Owners other than the Declarant shall elect at least thirty-three and one-third percent
(33'5%) of the directors on the Board of Directors. For purposes of calculating the percentages
set forth in Section 8.4 and this Section 8.5, the percentage of Common Element interest
conveyed shall be calculated by dividing the number of Units conveyed by the total number of
Units under this Declaration and the Condominium Plat.

8.6 Termination of Control. Upon termination of the above specified period, or
upon the earlier, voluntary relinquishment of control by Declarant, control of the Association
shall be turned over to the Unit Owners; provided, however, Declarant reserves the right to
name one member, who may be a non-Unit Owner, of the Board of Directors until all Units
have been conveyed to Unit Owners in fee simple. Notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary, Declarant reserves the following rights: (i) to continue any unfinished development
work on any unsold Unit and on the Limited Common Elements and Common Elements
(including obtaining any necessary easements therefor); (ii) to conduct promotional and sales
activities using unsold Units and the Limited Common Elements and Common Elements,
which activities shall include but need not be limited to maintaining sales and management
offices, model Units, parking areas, and advertising signs; and (iii) to do all other acts Declarant

11





8.24.2023 Draft

shall deem reasonably necessary in connection with the development and sale of the remaining
Units. However, any such acts shall not violate the rights of the Unit Owners or their
Mortgagees or unreasonably interfere with the use and enjoyment of the Units, Limited
Common Elements, or Common Elements. Furthermore, Declarant shall be responsible for
any damages resulting from the exercise of such rights. Declarant shall also have the right to
grant easements over, through, or under any part of the Condominium for the benefit of the
Condominium as a whole or any part thereof.

8.7 Assignability of Declarant’s Rights. The Declarant reserves the right to assign
its declarant rights, powers and obligations by a written recorded instrument to any other party
who assumes such rights, powers and obligations. Upon the recording of any such assignment,
such assignee shall become the “Declarant” under this Declaration and shall succeed to all
such rights, powers and obligations. Such amendment need be signed only by the assignor and
the assignee named therein.

8.8  Implied Rights. The Association may exercise any other right or privilege given
to it expressly by this Declaration or by law, and every other right or privilege reasonably to
be implied from the existence of any right or to effectuate any such right or privilege.

8.9  Rules and Regulations. The Association may, by action of its Board of
Directors taken in accordance with the Bylaws, adopt such reasonable Rules and Regulations
as it may deem advisable for the maintenance, conservation and beautification of the
Condominium, and for the health, comfort, safety and general welfare of the Unit Owners and
in furtherance of the rights and duties of the Unit Owners, the Association and the Declarant
hereunder. Written notice of such Rules and Regulations shall be given to all Unit Owners, and
the Condominium shall at all times be maintained, used, occupied and enjoyed subject to such
Rules and Regulations.

ARTICLE IX
REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

9.1 Units. Each Unit Owner shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair, and
replacement of all improvements constructed within the Unit, except to the extent any repair
cost is paid by any Association’s insurance policy described in Article X. Each Unit shall at
all times be kept in good condition and repair. If any Unit or portion of a Unit for which a Unit
Owner is responsible falls into disrepair so as to create a dangerous, unsafe, unsightly, or
unattractive condition, or a condition that results in damage to the Common Elements, the
Association, upon fifteen (15) days’ prior written notice to the Unit Owners of such Unit, shall
have the right to correct such condition or to restore the Unit to its condition existing prior to
the disrepair, or the damage or destruction if such was the cause of the disrepair, and to enter
into such Unit for the purpose of doing so, and the Unit Owners of such Unit shall promptly
reimburse the Association for the cost thereof. All amounts due for such work shall be paid
within ten (10) days after receipt of written demand therefor, or the amounts may, at the option
of the Association, be levied against the Unit as a Special Assessment under Article XIII.

9.2 Limited Common Elements. Each Unit Owner shall be responsible for the
decoration, furnishing, housekeeping, general cleanliness and presentability of the Limited

12





8.24.2023 Draft

Common Elements which use is reserved to the Unit. If the Unit Owner fails to maintain the
general cleanliness and presentability of a Limited Common Element, the Association, upon
fifteen days’ prior written notice to the Unit Owners of such Unit, shall have the right to correct
such condition and the Unit Owners of such Unit shall promptly reimburse the Association for
the cost thereof. All amounts due for such work shall be paid within ten days after receipt of
written demand therefor, or the amounts may, at the option of the Association, be levied against
the Unit as a Special Assessment under Article XIII.

9.3 Common Elements. Except as provided in Section 9.2, the Association shall be
responsible for the management and control of the Common Elements and Limited Common
Elements and shall maintain the same in good, clean, and attractive order and repair. In
addition, the Association shall be responsible for providing and maintaining all Limited
Common Elements for snow plowing all sidewalks, driveways, private streets, parking areas;
and the maintenance, repair, and replacement of all outdoor amenities, including lawns,
landscaping, sidewalks, bicycle paths, driveways, and parking areas. Unless otherwise
undertaken by the Association, each Unit Owner shall be responsible for snow and ice removal
from the patio or balcony serving his or her Unit.

9.4  Entry By Association. The Association may enter any Unit and Limited
Common Elements at reasonable times and under reasonable conditions when necessary in
connection with any maintenance, construction or repair of Units as set forth in Sections 9.1
and 9.2, or of public utilities, or for any other matter for which the Association is responsible.
Except in the case of emergency, no entry may be had by the Association until the expiration
of twenty-four hours from the date written notice is provided to the Unit Owner that
maintenance, construction or repair is necessary and, in any event, entry shall be made with as
little inconvenience to the Unit Owner as possible under the circumstances. In the event the
Association reasonably believes that an emergency situation exists, the Association may enter
an Owner’s Unit without prior notice to said Owner. Any damage caused thereby shall be
repaired by the Association and shall be treated as a Common Expense as hereinafter defined.

9.5 Damage Caused by Unit Owners. To the extent (i) any cleaning, maintenance,
repair, or replacement of all or any part of any Common Elements, Limited Common Element
or the Unit is required as a result of the negligent, reckless, or intentional act or omission of
any Unit Owner, tenant, or occupant of a Unit, or (ii) any cleaning, maintenance, repair,
replacement, or restoration of all or any part of any Common Element, Limited Common
Element or the Unit is required as a result of an alteration to a Unit by any Unit Owner, tenant,
or occupant of a Unit, or the removal of any such alteration (regardless of whether the alteration
was approved by the Association or any committee thereof) or (iii) the Association is required
to restore the Common Elements, Limited Common Element or the Unit following any
alteration of a Common Element or Limited Common Element required by this Declaration,
or the removal of any such alteration, the Unit Owner that committed the act or omission or
that caused the alteration, or the Unit Owners of the Unit occupied by such tenant or occupant
or responsible for such guest, contractor, agent, or invitee, shall be paid within ten (10) days
after receipt of written demand therefor, or the amounts may, at the option of the Association,
be levied against the Unit as a Special Assessment under Article XIII.

13





8.24.2023 Draft

ARTICLE X
INSURANCE

10.1 Fire and Extended Loss Insurance for the Common Elements. The
Association shall obtain and maintain fire, casualty, and extended coverage / all-risk / special
form insurance coverage for the Common Elements, and for the Association’s service
equipment, supplies and personal property. Insurance coverage shall be reviewed and adjusted
by the Board of Directors of the Association from time to time to ensure that the required
coverage is at all times provided. The insurance maintained by the Association shall be written
on the Condominium’s Common Elements in the name of the Association as insurance trustee
for the individual Unit Owners in their respective Percentage Interests in the Common
Elements, and may list each Unit Owner as an additional insured with respect to its Unit. The
policy shall contain the standard mortgagee clause, which shall be endorsed to provide that any
proceeds shall be paid to the Association, as insurance trustee, for the use and benefit of any
Mortgagee as its interest may appear. In the event of damage to or destruction of all or part of
the Condominium insured hereunder, the proceeds of the insurance shall be paid to the
Association, as insurance trustee, for the Unit Owners and the Mortgagees and distributed as
provided in this Article X.

10.2 Public Liability Insurance. The Association shall obtain and maintain a
comprehensive liability insurance policy insuring the Association, its officers, directors, and
the Unit Owners against any liability arising out of the maintenance, repair, ownership, or use
of the Common Elements. Liability coverage shall be for at least $500,000.00 per occurrence
for personal injury and/or property damage or such higher limit as may be adopted from time
to time by the Association. The insurance coverage shall be written on the Condominium in
the name of the Association as insurance trustee for the Association, its directors and officers,
and for the individual Unit Owners in their respective Percentage Interests in the Common
Elements. Such insurance policy shall contain a “severability of interest” or cross-liability
endorsement, which shall preclude the insurer from denying the claim of a Unit Owner because
of the negligent acts of the Association or other Unit Owners. Each Unit Owner shall have the
right to insure its own Unit for personal benefit.

10.3 Fidelity Insurance. The Association may maintain fidelity coverage against
dishonest acts by any person responsible for handling the funds belonging to or administered
by the Association. The Association shall be the named insured, and the insurance shall be in
an amount of not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Association’s annual operating
expenses and reserves.

10.4 Unit Owners’ Insurance. Each Unit Owner shall obtain and maintain fire,
casualty, and special form insurance coverage for his or her Unit for not less than the full
replacement value thereof. Unit Owners are encouraged to submit copies of the disclosure
materials to their insurance carriers in order to ensure adequate property and liability coverage
on their personal property, Units, and Limited Common Elements appurtenant to such Units.

10.5 Administration. Any and all premiums associated with the insurance
purchased by the Association shall be Common Expenses. The Association shall act as the
trustee for the purpose of obtaining insurance coverage and for the receipt, application, and

14





8.24.2023 Draft

disbursement of proceeds. All insurance shall be obtained from generally acceptable insurance
carriers qualified to do business in the State of Wisconsin.

10.6 Disbursement. Insurance proceeds for damage or destruction of the
Common Elements shall first be disbursed by the trustees for the repair or restoration of the
damaged Common Elements, and the Unit Owners and Mortgagees shall not be entitled to
receive payment of any portion of the insurance proceeds unless a court has ordered partition
of the Condominium property or there is a surplus of insurance proceeds after the Common
Elements have been completely repaired or restored.

10.7 Commencement. All insurance required by this Declaration shall be
purchased and maintained by the Association commencing on or before the date of the sale of
the first Unit.

ARTICLE XI
RECONSTRUCTION, REPAIR, OR SALE IN
THE EVENT OF DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION

11.1 Determination to Reconstruct or Repair. If all or any part of the Common
Elements become damaged or are destroyed by any cause, the damaged Common Elements
shall be repaired or reconstructed even if the cost of such repair or reconstruction exceeds the
available insurance proceeds by an amount of up to $10,000.00 times the number of Units then
making up the Condominium. Acceptance by a Unit Owner of a deed to a Unit shall be deemed
to be consent to the authorization to the Association to so repair or reconstruct. If such
authorization is challenged, whether through action taken at a meeting of Unit Owners or
otherwise, the issue of whether to repair or reconstruct shall be put to a vote of all of the Unit
Owners, and such repair or reconstruction shall be deemed approved if the votes appurtenant
to any one Unit are cast in favor of such repair or reconstruction.

11.2 Plans and Specifications. Any reconstruction or repair shall, as far as is
practicable and unless otherwise required due to changes in the building or zoning code, be
made in accordance with the maps, plans, and specifications used in the original construction
of the damaged Common Elements, unless (1) a majority of the first Mortgagees (one vote per
mortgaged Unit) approve of the variance from such plans and specifications; and (2) the Board
of Directors of the Association authorizes the variance in the case of reconstruction of or repair
to the Common Elements. If a variance is authorized from the maps, plans, and specifications
contained in the Condominium Plat or this Declaration, an addendum to Condominium Plat or
amendment to Condominium Declaration as necessary shall be recorded by the Association
setting forth such authorized variance.

11.3 Responsibility for Repair. In all cases after a casualty has occurred to the
Common Elements, the Association has the responsibility of reconstruction and repair, and
immediately shall obtain reliable and detailed estimates of the cost to rebuild or repair.

11.4 Insurance Proceeds and Construction Fund. Insurance proceeds held by the
Association as trustee pursuant to Article X shall be disbursed by the Association for the repair
or reconstruction of the damaged Common Elements. The Association shall have no

15





8.24.2023 Draft

responsibility to repair, reconstruct, or replace any Unit or any improvements located within a
Unit. Unit Owners and Mortgagees shall not be entitled to receive payment of any portion of
the insurance proceeds unless there is a surplus of insurance proceeds after the damaged
Property has been completely restored or repaired as set forth in Section 10.6. (Any insurance
purchased by the Association pursuant to Section 10.4 shall be held by the Association as
trustee for the subject Unit Owner(s) and used to pay for Unit Owner repairs to the extent that
insurance funds are available. The Association shall not be liable for any deficiencies.)

11.5 Assessments For Deficiencies. If the proceeds of insurance are not
sufficient to defray the costs of reconstruction and repair by the Association (other than
deficiencies in funds available to make repairs to a Unit or Units), a Special Assessment shall
be made against the Unit Owners in sufficient amounts to provide funds for the payment of
such costs. Such assessments on account of damage to Common Elements shall be in
proportion to each Unit Owner’s Percentage Interest in the Common Elements. All assessed
funds shall be held and disbursed by the Association as trustee for the Unit Owners and
Mortgagees involved.

11.6 Surplus in Construction Funds. All insurance proceeds and Special
Assessments held by the Association as trustee for the purpose of rebuilding or reconstructing
any damage to the Common Elements or any Property taken by eminent domain are referred
to herein as “Construction Funds.” It shall be presumed that the first moneys disbursed in
payment of costs of reconstruction or repair are insurance proceeds. If there is a balance in the
Construction Funds after payment of all costs of reconstruction or repair, such balance shall be
divided among the Unit Owners according to their respective Percentage Interests in the
Common Elements.

11.7 Damage or Destruction of Unit. Following any damage or destruction to
any improvements located within any Unit, the Unit Owner shall repair and restore such Unit
to its condition prior to the damage or destruction as soon as possible but in any case, within
two hundred seventy days of the damage or destruction.

ARTICLE XII
EMINENT DOMAIN/CONDEMNATION

12.1 Allocation of Award. Any damages for a taking of all or part of the
Condominium shall be awarded as follows:

(a) Every Unit Owner shall be allocated the entire award for the taking of all or
part of the respective Unit or any improvements located therein and for consequential
damages to the Unit or improvements located therein.

(b) If no reconstruction is undertaken, any award for the taking of Common
Elements shall be allocated to all Unit Owners in proportion to their respective Percentage
Interest in the Common Elements.

12.2 Determination to Reconstruct Common Elements. Following the taking of
all or part of the Common Elements, the Common Elements shall be restored or reconstructed.

16





8.24.2023 Draft

12.3 Plans and Specifications for Common Elements. Any reconstruction shall,
as far as is practicable, be made in accordance with the maps, plans and specifications used in
the original construction of the taken Common Elements unless approved by the Board of
Directors of the Association and a majority of the first Mortgagees shall authorize a variance
from such plans and specifications. If a variance is authorized from the maps, plans, or
specifications contained in the Condominium Plat or this Declaration, an addendum to the
Condominium Plat or an amendment to the Condominium Declaration shall be recorded as
necessary by the Association setting forth such authorized variances.

12.4 Responsibility for Reconstruction. In all cases after a taking of all or part
of the Common Elements, the responsibility for restoration and reconstruction shall be that of
the Association and it shall immediately obtain reliable and detailed estimates of the cost to
rebuild. Each Unit Owner shall be responsible for rebuilding his or her Unit.

12.5 Assessments for Deficiencies. If the condemnation award for the taking of
the Common Elements is not sufficient to defray the costs of reconstruction by the Association,
Special Assessments shall be made against the Unit Owners in sufficient amounts to provide
funds for the payment of such costs. Such Special Assessments shall be in proportion to each
Unit Owner’s respective Percentage Interest in the Common Elements and shall constitute a
Common Expense.

12.6 Surplus in Construction Fund. It shall be presumed that the first moneys
disbursed in payment of costs of reconstruction or restoration shall be from the award for
taking. If there is a surplus of Construction Funds after payment of all costs of construction,
such balance shall be divided among all Unit Owners in proportion to their respective
Percentage Interests in the Common Elements.

12.7 Percentage Interests Following Taking. Following the taking of all or any
part of any Unit, the Percentage Interest in the Common Elements appurtenant to any Unit
shall be equitably adjusted to reflect the respective relative values of the remaining Units (or
portions thereof) to all of the Units, determined without regard to the value of any
improvements located within the Units. The Association shall promptly prepare and record an
amendment to the Declaration reflecting the new Percentage Interests appurtenant to the Units.
Such amendment need be signed only by two officers of the Association.

ARTICLE XIII
COMMON EXPENSES/GENERAL AND SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

13.1 Common Expenses. Any and all expenses incurred by the Association in
connection with the management of the Condominium, maintenance of the Common Elements
and administration of the Association shall be deemed to be common expenses (the “Common
Expenses”), including, without limitation, expenses incurred for landscaping and lawn care,
snow shoveling and plowing; improvements to the Common Elements, common grounds
security lighting, municipal utility services provided to the Common Elements, trash
collection, and maintenance and management salaries and wages.

17





8.24.2023 Draft

13.2 General Assessments. The Association shall levy monthly general
assessments (the “General Assessments”) against the Unit Owners for the purpose of
maintaining a fund from which Common Expenses may be paid. The General Assessments
against the Unit Owners shall be assessed in proportion to their Percentage Interests in the
Common Elements, except that until occupancy permits have been issued for all Units, the
General Assessments for insurance premiums shall be levied evenly against all Units for which
occupancy permits have been issued. General Assessments shall be due in advance on the first
day of each month, or in such other manner as the Association may set forth in the Bylaws.
Any General Assessment not paid when due shall bear interest until paid, as set forth in the
Bylaws and, together with interest, collection costs, and reasonable attorney fees, shall
constitute a lien on the Unit. During the period of Declarant control of the Association under
Section 703.15(2)(c) of the Wisconsin Statutes, no General Assessments shall be assessed
against any Unit owned by Declarant. During the period of Declarant control, however, the
General Assessments payable by any Unit Owner other than Declarant shall not exceed the
amount that Unit Owner would be charged if Declarant’s Units were subject to full General
Assessments, based on the annual operating budget then in effect. During the period of
Declarant control, Declarant shall pay the deficit if the total General Assessments payable by
Unit Owners other than Declarant do not cover the total Common Expenses. Furthermore, if
the Association has established a statutory reserve account under Section 703.163 of the
Wisconsin Statutes, (a) no reserve fund assessments shall be levied against any Unit until a
certificate of occupancy has been issued for that Unit, and (b) payment of any reserve fund
assessments against any Unit owned by Declarant may be deferred until the earlier to occur of
(1) the first conveyance of such Unit, or (ii) five years from the date exterior construction of
the Building in which the Unit is located has been completed.

133 Special Assessments. The Association may, whenever necessary or
appropriate, levy special assessments (the “Special Assessments’) against the Unit Owners, or
any of them, for deficiencies in the case of Unit or Limited Common Element maintenance as
required of the Unit Owner or destruction or condemnation as set forth in this Declaration; for
defraying the cost of improvements to the Common Elements; for the collection of moneys
owed to the Association under any provision of this Declaration, or for any other purpose for
which the Association may determine a Special Assessment is necessary or appropriate for the
improvement or benefit of the Condominium. Special Assessments shall be paid at such time
and in such manner as the Association may determine. Any Special Assessment or installment
not paid when due shall bear interest until paid, as set forth in the Bylaws and, together with
the interest, collection costs, and reasonable attorney fees, shall constitute a lien on the Unit.

13.4 Payment of General and Special Assessments by Automatic Withdrawal.
The Association may require payment of general and special assessments by each Unit Owner
by automatic withdrawal from a depository account. Upon the Association requiring payment
by automatic withdrawal, each Unit Owner shall open the necessary depository account and
shall provide the Association such information, forms and authorization as necessary to
facilitate such automatic withdrawal.

13.5 Common Surpluses. If the surpluses of the Association (the “Common
Surpluses”) should be accumulated, other than surpluses in any construction fund, such
Common Surpluses may be credited against the Unit Owners’ General Assessments in

18





8.24.2023 Draft

proportion to their respective Percentage Interests in the Common Elements or may be used
for any other purpose as the Association may determine.

13.6 Certificate of Status. The Association shall, upon the written request of an
Owner, purchaser, or Mortgagee of a Unit (as defined below), issue a certificate of status of
lien. Any such party may conclusively rely on the information set forth in such certificate.

13.7 Management Services. The Association shall have the right to enter into a
management contract with a manager selected by the Association (the “Manager”), including
one or more affiliates of Declarant, under which services may be provided to the Unit Owners
to create a community environment for the entire Condominium community. Certain of such
services may be available only on a fee-for-services basis by agreement between the Manager
and individual Unit Owners. All amounts payable by the Association to the Manager under the
management contract shall be chargeable to the Owners as a Common Expense. The
management contract shall be subject to termination by the Association under Section 703.35
of the Wisconsin Statutes. The Association may obtain, contract and pay for legal and
accounting services necessary or desirable in connection with the operation, management and
control of the Condominium community or the enforcement of the provisions of the
Declaration.

13.8 Enforcement. The assessments, both general and special, of Common
Expenses, together with such interest as the Association may impose hereunder or in the
Bylaws for delinquencies and with the costs of collection and actual attorney fees, shall
constitute a lien on the Units against which they are assessed. Attachment, filing, effectiveness,
priority, and enforcement of the lien shall be as provided in Section 703.165 of the Wisconsin
Statutes.

13.9 Suspension of Voting Rights. If any assessment, both general and special,
of Common Expenses is delinquent and a statement of Condominium lien as described in
Section 703.165(8) of the Wisconsin Statutes has been recorded against a Unit, the Association
may suspend the voting rights of the delinquent Unit Owner.

13.10 Responsibility of Transferees for Unpaid Assessments. Unless otherwise
provided by law, with regard to transfer of a Unit, the transferee of the Unit shall be jointly
and severally liable with the transferor for all unpaid Assessments against the Unit accruing up
to the time of transfer, without prejudice to the transferee's right to recover from the transferor
the amounts paid by the transferee therefor. Any Unit Owner or prospective Unit Owner shall
be entitled to a statement from the Association setting forth the amount of the unpaid
Assessments due and payable by the transferor, and such transferee shall not be liable for, nor
shall the Unit conveyed be subject to, a lien for any unpaid Assessments made by the
Association against the transferor in excess of the amount therein set forth. The Association
shall have the right to charge reasonable fees for providing such statements.

13.11 Foreclosure. In the event the Mortgagee of a first mortgage of record or any
other purchaser of a Unit obtains title to the Unit as a result of foreclosure of a mortgage, or as
a result of a conveyance in lieu of foreclosure, such purchaser or his or her successors and
assigns shall not be liable for the total share of Common Expenses or assessments by the

19





8.24.2023 Draft

Association pertaining to such Unit or chargeable to the former Unit Owner, which Common
Expenses or assessments became due prior to the acquisition of title. Such unpaid share of
Common Expenses or assessments shall be deemed to be Common Expenses collectible
proportionately from all of the Unit Owners.

13.12 Reserve Fund. The Declarant has not established a statutory reserve
Account. The Association shall establish and maintain a reserve fund for payment of
nonrecurring operating contingencies. Each annual Condominium budget shall include funding
for the reserve fund at a level determined appropriate by the Association. This reserve fund
shall not be a Statutory Reserve Account under Section 703.163 of the Wisconsin Statutes;
provided, however, that nothing herein prohibits the Association from creating a Statutory
Reserve Account.

ARTICLE XIV
AMENDMENTS

Except as otherwise provided herein, this Declaration may only be amended by the written
consent of at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the Unit Owners, provided, however, that no such
consent is effective until approved in writing by each of the consenting Unit Owners’ underlying
Mortgagee and, further provided, that no such amendment may substantially impair the security
of any nonconsenting Unit Mortgagee. For purposes of this provision and Declaration, each Unit
shall have one vote. No amendment to the Declaration affecting the status or rights of the Declarant
may be adopted without the written consent of Declarant. No amendment to this Declaration shall
be effective until an instrument containing the amendment and stating that the required consents
or votes were duly obtained, signed on behalf of the Association, and duly acknowledged or
authenticated, is recorded with the Dane County Register of Deeds. A copy of the amendment shall
be mailed or personally delivered to each Unit Owner at such Unit Owner’s address on file with
the Association.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Unit Owner and Mortgagee hereby makes,
constitutes, and appoints the Declarant, by its authorized agent, as their true and lawful attorney
for them and in their name, place and stead, to execute, deliver and record amendments to the
Declaration, provided such amendments are only intended to (a) correct errors or omissions or
clarify ambiguities, (b) cause the Declaration to be in compliance with the Act, or (iii) cause the
Declaration to include provisions regarding Mortgagee rights which, in the reasonably exercised
discretion of Declarant, will encourage lenders to make, purchase, insure or guarantee Mortgages.
No amendment executed pursuant to this Article XIV may change the definition of a Unit, increase
the number of Units, alter the boundaries of Common Elements or Limited Common Elements, or
increase the Assessments otherwise provided for herein. The power of attorney hereby granted is
coupled with an interest and shall survive the death or incompetency of a Unit Owner and the
effective time when the Declarant relinquishes control of the Association as provided in
Section 8.6.

ARTICLE XV
NOTICES

15.1 Notices to Resident Agent. The person to receive service of process for the

20





8.24.2023 Draft

Condominium or the Association shall be Robert C. Procter, Axley Brynelson, LLP, 2 East
Mifflin Street, #200, Madison, WI 53703 or such other person as may be designated from time
to time by the Association, which designation shall be filed with the Wisconsin Department of
Financial Institutions or successor office.

15.2 Notices to Unit Owners. All notices required to be sent to Unit Owners
shall be in writing, personally delivered or sent by first class mail to the Unit Owner’s address.
Said address shall be the address of the Unit owned by the Unit Owner in the Condominium,
unless said Unit Owner has provided to the Association, in writing, another address for delivery
of notices. For purposes of this Declaration, all time periods with respect to notice shall
commence on the date that notice is personally delivered or the date upon which notice is
mailed to the Unit Owner. It is acknowledged by all Unit Owners that personal service or
mailing shall constitute sufficient notice for the purposes of this Declaration.

15.3 Notices to Mortgagees/Land Contract Vendor. Any first mortgagee
(including the holder, insurer or guarantor thereof) or land contract vendor of a Unit, upon
written request to the secretary of the Association stating the name and address of the
requesting entity and the name of the Unit Owner, Unit number and Unit address on which the
entity holds its interest, shall be entitled to notice of (a) any condemnation or casualty loss that
affects either a material portion of the project or the Unit securing the mortgage or land
contract, (b) any default which is not cured within sixty (60) days in the performance by an
individual Unit Owner of a Unit secured by said mortgage or land contract of any obligation
under the Condominium Declaration, Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and related documents,
(c) a lapse, cancellation or material modification of any insurance policy maintained by the
Association and (d) any proposed action that requires the consent of a specified percentage of
eligible mortgage holders. Notice shall be given by personal delivery or sent by first class mail
to the Mortgagee at the address provided for in said written request.

ARTICLE XVI
REMEDIES

The Association shall have the sole right to enforce the provisions hereof or any of its
orders by proceedings at law or in equity against any person or persons violating or attempting to
violate any provision of this Declaration, either to restrain or cure the violation or to recover
damages, or both, for a period which shall include thirty (30) days from the date of the filing with
the Association of a petition by any person who shall be a Unit Owner subject to this Declaration
on the date of the filing, petitioning the Association to redress the violation or attempted violation
of any of the provisions of this Declaration by any other persons. Liability among multiple Owners
of a Unit shall be joint and several. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the rights of the City
of Stoughton or the County of Dane to enforce any zoning codes, ordinances, regulations, or other
requirements that may be identical or similar to the requirements of this Declaration. Such period
of thirty (30) days shall be considered to be a period for the consideration of the petition by the
Association and if the Association denies or fails to act upon the petition to the satisfaction of the
petitioner within the thirty (30) day period thereafter, petitioner shall have the right to enforce the
provisions hereof (except for the collection of charges and assessments under Article XIII), to the
extent that he or she so have petitioned, by proceedings at law or in equity against any person or
persons violating or attempting to violate the provisions of this Declaration, either to restrain the

21





8.24.2023 Draft

violation or to recover damages, or both, provided, however, that any such person shall be a Unit
Owner and commence such proceedings against such other person or persons within a period of
sixty (60) days from (i) the date of the Association’s denial of such petition, or (ii) the passage of
the aforementioned thirty (30) day period for consideration of the petition by the Association. Any
damages collected by the Association shall be distributed, first, to pay for all costs of enforcement,
and, secondly, to the Owners of the Units damaged by the violation pro rata. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if any Unit Owner fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this Declaration,
and such failure continues beyond any applicable cure period, the Association shall have the right
to cure on behalf of the Unit Owner and such Unit Owner shall promptly reimburse the Association
for the cost thereof within ten (10) days after receipt of written demand therefor. Alternatively, the
Association may, at the option of the Association, levy such amounts against the Unit as a Special
Assessment under Article XIII. In addition to all other remedies available to the Association, the
Association shall have the right to collect from any Unit Owner who is in violation beyond any
applicable cure period of this Declaration, the Association’s Articles or Bylaws, or any Rules and
Regulations promulgated hereunder, a fine for each day such violation continues in such amount
as is from time to time set forth in the Bylaws or Rules and Regulations. In the event that the
Declarant becomes subject to litigation relating to this Declaration and the Declarant is the
prevailing party in said litigation, the Declarant shall have the right to recover in addition to all
other damages and relief, its costs and reasonable attorney fees incurred in such litigation.

ARTICLE XVII
EASEMENTS / STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

17.1 Blanket Easement. A blanket easement is hereby reserved over, through
and underneath the Units, the Limited Common Elements, and the Common Elements for
ingress and egress for present and future utility services, including but not limited to, easements
for natural gas pipes, drainage, water pipes, sanitary sewer pipes, emergency sewer lines, storm
drainage pipes, sprinkler pipes, electrical wires, cable TV wires, security wires, street lights,
and for police, fire and emergency vehicles, and for any other purposes for which a blanket
easement is created upon, across, over, through or under the herein described real estate for the
purposes set forth above, whether or not any such (blanket) easement or easements are shown
on the Plat or any exhibits attached hereto. Specific easements for drainage, utility service,
including but not limited to installation, replacement, repair and maintenance of all utility and
service lines and systems as set forth above, are hereby reserved to the Declarant and the
Association. Specific easements for ingress and egress, other than as set forth above, are
reserved to the Declarant and the Association for the purpose of installation or making any
repairs and/or maintenance to any utility such service lines and/or systems, including drainage,
which are the obligation of the Association. The Declarant or Association may grant such
easements to public or private utilities as necessary. The Association shall be responsible for
any damage resulting from such installation, maintenance and/or repairs as set forth above. By
acceptance of a Condominium Deed, each Unit Owner shall have granted a right of entry and
access to its Unit to the Declarant and the Association to correct any condition originating in
its Unit and threatening another Unit or the Common Elements, to install, alter, or repair
mechanical or electrical services or other Common Elements in its Unit or elsewhere in the
Condominium, and to maintain and repair Common Elements. Such entry shall be made with
prior notice to the Unit Owners, and shall be scheduled for a time reasonably convenient to the
Unit Owners, except in the case of an emergency when injury or property damage will result

22





8.24.2023 Draft

in delayed entry. Such entry shall be done with as little inconvenience to the Unit Owners as
practical, and any damage caused thereby shall be repaired by the Association and treated as a
Common Expense, except as allocable to an individual Unit or Units for cause in the discretion
of the Board of Directors.

17.2 Stormwater Management Measures.

(a) The Declarant has caused or will cause there to be constructed on the
Condominium stormwater management measures to the extent necessary to effectuate the
planned drainage and flow of stormwater for the Condominium as required by applicable
governmental authorities. These stormwater management measures may include, without
limitation, grading, swales, and stormwater ponds. All stormwater management measures
shall be Common Elements, and shall be maintained by the Association. No Unit Owner
shall take any action that would obstruct or hinder the operation of the stormwater
management measures.

(b) In the event that the Association fails to maintain any of the stormwater
management measures, and such failure continues for a period of thirty (30) days following
delivery of written notice to the Association, the City and its agents, employees, and
contractors shall have the right, but not the obligation, to enter upon the Condominium at
any time for purposes of maintenance, replacement, and repairs and is hereby granted a
permanent, non-exclusive easement over the Condominium’s Common Elements to
conduct such maintenance, replacement and repairs. These rights and remedies include, but
are not limited to, ultimately contracting to perform such maintenance or repairs as it shall
deem necessary and charging the costs incurred by the City as a special assessment or a
special charge upon the next tax roll equally against all of the Unit Owners. The City shall
have the right, but not the obligation, to enter upon the Condominium’s Common Elements
at any time for purposes of inspection and undertaking necessary maintenance and repairs.
In accordance with Wis. Stat. § 66.0703(7)(b), the Unit Owners hereby waive all special
assessment notices and hearings required by Wis. Stat. § 66.0703, and further agree and
admit that the assessed property receives a benefit from the work, which is equal to or
greater than the total cost of the work.

ARTICLE XVIII
GENERAL

18.1 Utilities. Each Unit Owner shall pay for his or her telephone, electrical,
cable, natural gas, and other utility services, including sewer and water, which are separately
metered or billed for each user by the respective utility company. Utilities which are not
separately metered or billed shall be treated as part of the Common Expenses. The Association
shall have the right to use any outside water connections billed to a Unit Owner’s water meter
to provide water for maintenance of exterior Common Elements (lawn, trees and shrubs)
adjacent to and in the vicinity of the Unit.

18.2 Encroachments. If any portion of a Unit, Limited Common Elements or
Common Elements encroaches upon another, an easement for the encroachment and its
maintenance shall exist. In the event all or a portion of the Condominium is damaged and

23





8.24.2023 Draft

subsequently reconstructed, the Unit Owners shall allow encroachments on the Units, Limited
Common Elements, or on the Common Elements during construction, and easements for such
encroachments and their maintenance shall exist. The Declarant or Association may record an
amended Condominium plat showing such as built Units, Limited Common Elements or
Common Elements.

18.3 Nuisances. No nuisances shall be allowed upon the property comprising
the Condominium, nor any use or practice that is unlawful or interferes with the peaceful
possession and proper use of the Condominium by the Unit Owners or that would cause an
unreasonable increase in the premiums for insurance required to be maintained by the
Association. All parts of the Condominium shall be kept in a clean and sanitary condition.

18.4 Invalidity of'a Provision. If any of the provisions of this Declaration, of the
Association’s Articles of Incorporation, if any, of the Association’s Bylaws, or of any Rules
and Regulations adopted by the Association, or any portion thereof, shall be determined to be
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions and portions shall not be
affected.

18.5 Warranties. The Declarant has made no warranty or representation in
connection with the Condominium, except as specifically set forth in this Declaration. No
person shall rely upon any warranty or representation unless contained in this Declaration. Any
estimates of Common Expenses, taxes, or other charges shall be considered estimates only,
and no warranty or guarantee of such amounts shall be made or relied upon.

18.6 Non-waiver. No covenant, restriction, condition, obligation, right or other
provision contained in this Declaration shall be deemed to have been waived or abrogated by
reason of any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches
which may occur, or any lapse of time.

18.7 Severability. The invalidity of any covenant, restriction, condition,
limitation, easement, reservation or any other provision of this Declaration, or any part of the
same, shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity, enforceability or effect of any
provision of this Declaration not declared invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction.

EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS

24





Draft 8.24.2023

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Declaration has been executed this  day of ,
2023.

DRW 51 WEST, LLC

By:

David R. West, Managing Member

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss.
COUNTY OF DANE )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on by David R. West, the

Managing Member of DRW 51 WEST, LLC.

EXECUTION PAGE





EXHIBIT A

LEGEND

® FOUND 3/4” IRON REBAR

®

WILD OAK STOUGHTON CONDOMINIUM

CONDOMINIUM PLAT
LOT 6, 51 WEST PLAT

LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 1, T5N, RI1OE,
CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

DRAINAGE EASEMENT [
[

20°x20’ \
6’ UTILITY EASEMENT B

_1
Jeq5 52 400.24' DO WO 5837187} L
587> :

FOUND 1 1/4” IRON REBAR L

LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT|
[ccerT]
ekl UNIT 11

127 _UTILITY EASEMENT
DO

7 -
% LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT|

C- NO. 5837187

©
=
~
&
N
w H
o |
\Q
1%
ouTLOT 3 S
,,,,, , L&)
51 WEST

-l

| NN
.
NN\

Z

y ga |
7 77 18 .
Zl v
!!E \
.

R v/ ‘

—
77.70"
R=833.00

VISITOR PARKING (3 SPACES)

1y
CE16 Iz 2 % ;'/// A

BIKE PARKING
LoT 6

st st/ O
l!{!!!'.v st V072

.01’ 30.00° v
uniT 10
J

A'/////A 56.917 % 30.00" V////!/////A

ik

D'ONOFRIO KOTTKE AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

7530 Westward Way, Madison, WI 53717
Phone: 608.833.7530 * Fax: 608.833.1089

YOUR NATURAL RESOURCE FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT .52 03-107

57 P

% U
/ B

7 B - 7 268.46

’ -l
S86°18°427E 67,707 S89°13 11 °W 2’ UTILITY EASEMENT

8789+ Fa—

R=564.00

DDC. NO. 5837187

WILD GOOSE WAY

DRIVE

OAK OPENING

There are no objections to this condominium with
respect to Sec. 703 Wis. Stats and is hereby
approved for recording.

Dated this____day of .20

Dane County Planning and Development

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Lot 6.

51 West Plat. recorded in Vol 61-0638 of Plats on Pages 377-379. as
Document No. 5837187, Dane County Registry, located in the NE1/4 of the NE1/4
of Section 1. T5N. RIOE. City of Stoughton. Dane County. Wisconsin.
Contains 111,330 sf (2.556 AC).

SURVEYOR’S CERTIFICATE

[, Brett T. Stoffregan, Professional Land Surveyors

§-2742.
certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief. that.
Chapter 703.11(4) of Wisconsin Statues,

do hereby
in accordance with
this plat is a correct representation
of the condominium herein described ond that the identification and locations
of each unit and the common elements can be determined for the plat,

survey of the property is in compliance with the requirements of Chapter A-E7
of Wisconsin Administrative Code.

Dated this day of.

. 2023

ToFess onal Land Surveyors

REGISTER DF DEEDS CERTIFICATE

Received for recording this. day of.
o’clock__.M. and recorded in Volume
Pages

. 2023 ot

of Condominium Plats on
as Document Number

Kristi Chiebowski, Dane County Register of Deeds

NOTES:

1. All of this condominium except units and areas |abeled
limited common elements are common elements.

2. Limited common elements are assigned to the unit they directly abut.
3. Building dimensions based on plans provided by the owner.
4. Plat prepored for David West. DRW 51 West LLC.
5. Field work completed on June 28, 2023.

Units 1-20 each have o total area of 1.790 sf.

SHEET 1 OF 2






EXHIBIT A

WILD OAK STOUGHTON CONDOMINIUM

CONDOMINIUM PLAT
LOT 6, 51 WEST PLAT
LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 1, T5N, RI1OE,

% o CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
—_ |
17=20"
22.00" 22.00"
N )
o 3
[S] .
. el
Il N
N
8.00" 8.00" == -
~ N [s] o
& % S| PaTIO | PaTIO ©
12.00" o <12,00' o | L_ @ 20,00 20.00"
> UNITS UNITS o N UNITS UNITS > N UNITS UNITS °
<\2,4,6,8,10,12, 1,3,5,7,9,11,|S 212,4,6,8,10,12, 1,3,57,9,11, |2 2(246,810,12, 1,3,57,9,11, <
N| 14,16,18,20 13,1517,19 ’5\4’ | 14,16,18,20 13,1517,19 | | 14,16,18,20 13,15,17,19 =
B N
446 SF 446 SF
20.00" 20.00° 1.33 JRCH | PORC 1.33 7.33 84" 55’
1.00° PORCH | PORCH 1,00’ 1.00" 1.001.00 1.00"
6-93" 10.35" 10.33 8
.50 1.50"
6.00" 6.00°
LOWER LEVEL FIRST FLOOR SECOND FLOOR LEVEL
LEVEL
D'ONOFRIO KOTTKE AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
7530 Westward Way, Madison, WI 53717
Phone: 608.833.7530 » Fax: 608.833.1089
YOUR NATURAL RESOURCE FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT 1. 55 0310

There are no objections to this condominium with
respect to Sec. 703 Wis. Stats and is hereby
approved for recording.

Dated this ____ day of _ 420

Dane County Planning and Development

SHEET 2 OF 2






Axley Brynelson, LLP

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Condominium Name:Wild Oak Stoughton, a Condominium

This Executive Summary was prepared or revised on Augqust 24, 2023 (insert date).

This Executive Summary highlights some of the information prospective purchasers are most interested in
learning, as well as some of the information they should consider when contemplating the purchase of a
residential condominium unit. The following sections either briefly summarize pertinent information or direct
prospective buyers to specific documents, sections and/or pages of the condominium materials that discuss a
topic in detail. A section identified with an icon may refer a prospective purchaser to specific page numbers
or sections of the condominium materials for more information about a topic.

This summary is not intended to replace the prospective purchaser's review of the condominium
declaration, bylaws and other condominium disclosure materials nor is it a substitute for a
professional review of the condominium documents or legal advice.

1. Condominium Association Management and Governance

¢+ Condominium association namewWild Oak Stoughton Condominium Association, Inc.
+ Association address 2525 Via La Selva, Palos Verdes Estates, CA 90724
*+ The association is managed:

[] By the Unit Owners (self-managed)

By a management agent or company

[X] By the declarant (developer) or the declarant's management company

* Person(s) to be contacted for more information about the condominium pavid R. West

¢+ Address, phone number, and other contact information for the contact person 2525 via Ia Selva,
Palos Verdes Estates, CA 90724; (310) 997-7504; davidrowlandwest@gmail.com

L) For condominium document references regarding association governance and a condominium contact
person, see David R. West

2. Parking

+ Number of parking spaces assigned to each Unit: 2 Number Outside 2 Inside
[ ] Common Element  [X]Limited Common Element [X] Included as part of the Unit
|:| Separate Non-voting Units |:| Depends on Individual Transaction [check all that apply]

*+ Parking fees (include separate maintenance charges, if any) XINo [Yes, $ per
Other (specify ):

¢+ Parking assignments reserved or designated on the plat or in the condominium documents:
[ INo [X]Yes -- Where?Plat

¢ Parking spaces assigned to a unit by a separate deed: XINo []Yes

¢+ Ability to transfer parking spaces between Unit Owners: |Z| No |:|Yes

+ Describe parking available for visitors There are three designated visitor parking stalls.

Unit Owners may allow visitors to park in their driveways.
+ Describe any other parking restrictions There is no parking on the shared driveways.

L] For condominium document references to parking, see Condominium Rules and Requlations

3. Pets
¢+ Are pets allowed? |:| No @Yes -- describe the kinds of pets allowed:

Axley Brynelson, LLP 2 E. Mifflin Street, Suite 200 Madison, WI 53703 Phone: 608 283-6760 Fax: Wild Oaks
Axley Brynelson Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 = www.zipLogix.com





¢+ Pet rules and restrictions: Pets must be on a leash. Owners must pick up after pets.
Pets may not be a nuisance. The Association may adopt future rules and
requlations regarding pets.
L] For condominium document references regarding pet rules, see Section 6.7 of the
Declaration

4. Unit Rentals
+ May Unit Owners rent out their condominium units? |:|No |Z|Yes -- describe the limitations and
restrictions on unit rentals: Units may be rented only if the Unit Owner is facing a
hardship. Even if there is a hardship, leasing a unit may be restricted
for other reasons.
For condominium document references regarding unit rentals, see Section 6.2 of the
Declaration.

5. Special Condominium Amenities or Features
None

(describe any special amenities and features)
+ Are Unit Owners obligated to join or make additional payments for any amenity associated with the
condominium, such as an athletic club or golf course? No |:|Yes -- cost:

For condominium document references regarding special amenities, see N/A

6. Unit Maintenance and Repair Responsibilities
+ A Unit Owner's responsibilities for unit maintenance and repair include: the maintenance, repair,
and replacement of all improvements constructed within the Unit

Ll For condominium document references regarding unit maintenance and repair responsibilities, see
Section 9.1 of the Declaration.

7. Common Element and Limited Common Element Maintenance, Repair and Replacement
¢+ Person(s) responsible for common element maintenance, repair and replacement: The Association

¢+ Repair and replacement of the common elements is paid for by:
Unit Owner assessments
Reserve funds
Both
Other (specify ):
+ Person(s) responsible for limited common element maintenance, repair and replacement:

+ Repair and replacement of the limited common elements is paid for by:
Unit Owner assessments
Reserve funds
Both
Other (specify ).
For condominium document references regarding common element and limited common element
maintenance, repair and replacement, see Sections 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, and 9.5 of the
Declaration

8. Reserve Funds
¢+ Does the condominium association maintain reserve funds for the repair and replacement of the common

elements? |:| No EYes
* Does the association have a Statutory Reserve Account*? [X]No [JYes
2

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com Wild Oaks





Total condominium reserve funds balance is $
Note: This amount is current as of the date this Executive Summary was prepared or revised.

L] For condominium document references regarding this condominium's reserve funds for repairs and
replacements, see See Section 13.2 and 13.3

*Note: A "Statutory Reserve Account" is an account established under Wis. Stat. § 703.163 to be used for the repair and replacement of the
common elements in a residential condominium (optional for a small condominium with up to 12 residential units or a mixed-use condominium
with residential and non-residential units). In a new condominium, the developer initially decides whether to have a statutory reserve account,
but after the declarant control period has ends, the association may opt-in or opt-out of a statutory reserve account with the written consent of a
maijority of the unit votes. A condominium may have other reserve accounts that are not statutory reserve accounts.

9. Fees on New Units
¢+ Are there provisions excusing the declarant (developer) from paying assessments or modifying the
declarant's obligation to pay assessments for the units still owned by the declarant during the period of
declarant control?
Not applicable (no developer-owned units or declarant control has ended)
No
Yes -- describe in what way: Each Unit owner pays its proporational share of the
budgeted expenses, and the Declarant pays the balance.
¢+ Describe other provisions in the declaration, bylaws, or budget addressing the levying and payment of
assessments on units during the period of declarant control: See Sections 13.1, 13.2, and
13.3

L For condominium document references to condominium fees during the declarant control period, see
See Section 13.2 of the Declaration

10. Expansion Plans
¢+ Has the Declarant (developer) reserved the right to expand this condominium in the future?

|z| No DYeS -- number of additional units that may be added through the expansion: ________units

¢+ Expansion period ends:

+ Condominium management during the expansion period is by: n/a

For condominium document references regarding condominium expansion plans, see n/fa

11. Unit Alteration and Limited Common Element Enclosure
¢+ Unit Owner may alter a unit or enclose limited common elements [ INo [X]Yes
+ Describe the rules, restrictions and procedures for altering a unit: Can _alter a unit but may not
impair the structural soundness or integrity of any portion of the Condo
+ Describe the rules, restrictions and procedures for enclosing limited common elements: must be
approved by the Association, and all costs to be paid by the Unit Owner

'] For condominium document references to unit alterations and limited common element enclosures, see
See Sections 3.3 and 5.4 of the Declaration

12. First Right of Purchase
¢+ The condominium association has a right of first purchase, also sometimes referred to as a right of first
refusal, when a condominium unit is offered for sale [X]No [ ]Yes
For condominium document references to any first right of purchase held by the condominium
association, see

13. Transfer Fee
+ The condominium association charges a fee in connection with the transfer of ownership of a unit: [X]No
[ ]Yes -- amount charged: $

3

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com Wild Oaks





L] For condominium document references to fees charged in connection with a unit ownership transfer, see

14. Payoff Statement Fee
¢+ Condominium association charges a fee for providing a payoff statement regarding unpaid unit
assessments and charges: [X]No []Yes -- amount charged: $
L] For condominium document references to fees charged for payoff statements under Wis. Stat. § 703.335,
see

15. Disclosure Materials Fee
+ Condominium association charges a fee for providing the condominium disclosure materials a unit seller
must provide to a prospective unit buyer: [X]No [_]Yes-- amount charged: $
For condominium document references regarding fees charged for providing the condominium disclosure
materials, see

16. Other restrictions or features (optional):

17. Amendments
Condominium materials can be amended in a way that might change the rights and responsibilities of Unit
Owners. Wisconsin law allows the Unit Owners to amend the condominium declaration, bylaws and other
condominium documents if the required votes are obtained. Some of these changes may alter a Unit Owner’s
legal rights and responsibilities with regard to the condominium unit, including some of the information
included in this Executive Summary. Unit Owners and prospective purchasers should review the amendment
requirements in the declaration, bylaws, rules and regulations, or other condominium documents.

L For condominium document references regarding condominium document amendment procedures and

requirements, seeArticle XIV of the Declaration

This Executive Summary was prepared on the date stated on page one by the Declarant
(print name and title or position).

@ Instructions for Completing the Executive Summary. The Executive Summary is one of the condominium
disclosure documents that must be furnished to a prospective purchaser of a residential condominium unit. The
Executive Summary addresses the topics set forth in Wis. Stat. § 703.33(1)(h) in clear, plain language or by
indicating the location within the disclosure materials where the information may be found. The Executive Summary
must state the date on which it is prepared or revised. It shall be revised whenever a change in the condominium
materials necessitates a corresponding revision to the Executive Summary. The preparer of the Executive Summary
should consult an attorney with any questions concerning preparation of the Executive Summary.

@ Executive Summary Legal Requirements. Per Wis. Stat. § 703.33(1m), the declarant (developer) or the
association is responsible for preparing the Executive Summary and revising it whenever a change is made in the
disclosure materials that necessitates a corresponding revision to the Executive Summary. An Executive Summary
must appear in the condominium disclosure materials directly following the index [Wis. Stat. § 703.33(2)], and must
be attached as an addendum to the real estate condition report that a seller gives to a prospective purchaser,
generally before the prospective purchaser writes an offer to purchase [Wis. Stat. § 709.02]. An Executive Summary
may not be required as part of the disclosure materials for a "small condominium" (up to twelve residential units),
depending upon the elections made in the declaration [Wis. Stat. § 703.365 (1) & (8)].

CAUTION: NEITHER REAL ESTATE LICENSEES NOR UNIT OWNERS SHOULD COMPLETE THIS FORM!

Copyright © 2019 by Wisconsin REALTORS® Association  Drafted by: Attorney Debra Peterson Conrad
No representation is made as to the legal validity of any provision or the adequacy of any provision in any specific transaction.

4

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com Wild Oaks





WILD OAK STOUGHTON CONDOMINUM

ESTIMATED ANNUAL BUDGET AND MONTHLY GENERAL ASSESSMENTS

Snow Removal
Lawn Care And Landscaping
Pest Control

Utilities For Common Elements
Stormwater Utility Fee

Annual Repairs And Maintenance
Sewer Lateral Maintenance
Miscellaneous / Contingency
Insurance

Accounting Fees

Legal Fees

Office Supplies

Social Functions

Contribution To Reserve

Subtotal

Management Fees @ 15% of Annual Budget

Total Estimated Annual Budget

Estimated Budget Per Unit Per Month

Total Monthly Assessment Per Unit

Total Expected Income 2024 (8 Units)

Total Expected Income On An
Annual Basis After Completely
Built

v n n wn N n

v N n

9,000.00
16,000.00
1,000.00

1,500.00
500.00
360.00

16,000.00
600.00

1,000.00
150.00
400.00

8,400.00

54,910.00

8,236.50

63,146.50

263.11

275.00

26,400.00

66,000.00





BYLAWS OF
WILD OAK STOUGHTON
CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.





TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article | NAME AND ADDRESS .......ccoooiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt 1
1.0L. NAME; PUIPOSE ...ttt ettt ettt b et e ek e et e e bt e e st e e be e e nbeesaneanbeeaneas 1
0 o [0 1TSS URPR 1
1.03. BINAING EFFECL. ..ot 1
1.04. CaPItAlIZEA TOIMS. ...eeeiieiiteie bbbttt ab b enes 1
1.05. NONPIOFIT STALUS. ...ttt eb e 1

ATTICIE TI MEMBERSHIP ...ttt bbbt 1
2.01. MEMDEISNID. ..ttt b bbbttt bt 1
2.02. Commencement and TerMINALION. .......c.ccvieiiereeiesee e eie e e see e ee e e e saesreesreeeeas 2
2.03. Withdrawal 0r EXPUISION. .......ccviiiiiiiiice ettt 2
2.04. Membership CertifiCAtES. ........c.uiiiieieieiesie e 2
2.05. MEMDEISNIP LEST. ...ttt bbb 2
2.06. Transfer of MembDErship. ........cccooiiiii i 2
2.07. Effect of CondominiUM LIEN. .....ccuviiiiieiecie et sra e sre e 2
P01 T @ 0 To T (1] o PO P PR 2
2.09. Vote Required to Transact BUSINESS. .....cc.ccveiiiiieiieieesie ettt ste e sre e 3
N O o () (-2 F SRR 3
2.11. Voting Designations of Multiple Unit OWNErS. .........cccoiiiiiiiiniiiiiseeee e 3
2.12. Effect of CoNdOmMINIUM LIEN. ....ooiiiiieieiece e 3

Article I MEETINGS OF MEMBERS........ccooiiiiiit e 3
KT 0 O - VoSSR 3
3.02. ANNUAI IMBELINGS. ....veveecte ettt e e st te et e e s be e e e s aeesteesaeeneesreeneens 3
3.03. SPECIAI IMBELINGS. ....veveecieeie ettt ettt et e e e st esbe e e e s aeesbeenae s e e nreenee s 3
3.04. NOLICE OF MEETINGS. ....veeeeeite sttt bbbttt 3
3.05. AdJOUINEA MEEBLINGS. ... ccveeiiiiieite ettt ettt te e s esbe e b e s aeesteenesreesreeneens 4
3.06. Duties Of OFfiCers at MEELINGS. ......ccviiieiicee ettt 4
3.07. Order OF BUSINESS. .......viiiieieiieiieerieeee st e sieseesteesteesee e e teesaessaesseeseesreesseensesseesseenaeaneesseensens 4
3.08. Action Without a Meeting by Written CONSENL. ........coivviiiiiiiice e 4
3.09. Action Without a Meeting by Written Ballot. ..o, 4

Article IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS .......ccoi ittt sttt sttt sne e ane e 5
4.01. Number and Membership in ASSOCIALION. ..........ccueiiiiiiiiii e 5
4.02. Term OF OFFICR. ..o be et be s 5
4.03. EICtION OF DIFBCIOIS. ...icviiiiieieeiesiie sttt se et ee e teereesteeaeeneesraenaeenaenseennens 5





4.04. Vacancy and REPIACEMENL. .........ccueiieiiiicie et sre e 6
4.05. REBMOVAL ...ttt st e teer e st e e beeneesbeentesreenbeentens 6
4.06. COMPENSALION. ....viiiitieiieiiet ettt b et b b e e e bbbt st et e e et e b e nbeabeebeene s 6
Article V MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS .......cocoiiiiiiiinieesee e 6
5.01. REGUIAN MEELINGS. ...cuveeeetieeiteet ettt bbbt bbb 6
5.02. SPECIAI IMEBELINGS. .....cueeeteie et bbbt ab b ene e 6
5.03. Notice Of SPecial MEELINGS. ........ccviiiiiieie et e e ee s 6
SN0 @ 8o (1] o P TP PP PR 7
5.05. Order OF BUSINESS. .......ciiieiiiie et siee ettt see s e steeseesbeesbeenbesneesbeansesneesseensens 7
5.06. Action Without a Meeting by Written CONSENt. ..........cccvevieiieiiiiececce e 7
Article VI POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS........ccccceveieiere e 7
6.01. POWEIS @NU DULIES. ......eiitieiiiiieiiieie sttt ste e e e sbeenaesseesreanaeereesseennens 7
L2 Y, =T T o[ PSPPSR 9
Article VII OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES. ..ottt 9
L0 O o] TSP PSRRI 9
7.02. EIECLION OF OFFICOIS. ..uviviiiiiee ettt 9
A0 R 1= 1 PO U P PR 9
7.04. Special APPOINTMENTS. ..ot sb b b 9
7.05. Resignation and REMOVAL ..........cceoviiiiiiie ettt 9
O[O = To%: g o] TSSO STPRTRR 10
L0 0 1141 10
7.08. COMPENSALION. ....viiviiieeie sttt ettt e s e sbe et e e se e s beesaesraesbaessearaeateeneesneeseas 10
7.09. FIAILY BONS. .....ocvieieeieceie ettt sttt et sra s e re e s teeeesneenas 10
Article VIII BOOKS AND RECORDS .........coiiee ettt 11
S IO 11T o =T £ o o OSSPSR 11
ST 02 U o [ ST TPRTRR 11
Article IX BUDGET, ASSESSMENT, AND ANNUAL REPORT ......ccccovvvvevieieiere e 11
0.01. FISCAI YBAK. ..ttt bbbt e b ettt e e ene e 11
S0 2 =¥ o [0 SO S SOPP PSPPSR 11
9.03. Levying and Payment of General ASSESSMENTS. .......ccviieriirieriiineseseeie e 11
0.04. SPECIal ASSESSMENTS. ....ecviiiiieiie et ettt st s et e e s e e be e s e e teeesreesbeeabeeareeereea 12
9.05. Association Remedies upon Nonpayment of ASSESSMENTS. ......cc.cvvvveiieiiieiieiieeiieeieens 12
9.06. ANNUAI REPOIT. ...ttt bbbttt nb e b e 12
ATTICIE XUSE ..ottt bbbttt et e b e ettt esbe et ene e 12





Article XI ENFORCEMENT OF CONDOMINIUM DOCUMENTS........cooviiiiiiiineneinees 12

Article XII LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY ..ottt 13
12.01. General Scope and DefiNItIONS. ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiieiee e 13
12.02. Mandatory IndemnifiCation. ............ccoiieiiiiiiiee e 14
12.03. Determination of Right to Indemnification............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiice s 14
12.04. Allowance of EXPENSES @S INCUITEM. ........coiiiiiiiieieicresie e 15
12.05. Partial IndemnifiCatiON..........ooviiiiiieieiese e 15
12.06. Indemnification of Employees and AGENTS. .......ccooveieriieriiiiisieeeeee e 15
12.07. Limited Liability of Directors and OFfICerS. ... 16
12.08. Severability Of PrOVISIONS. .......cccvciiiiiiiicc et 16
12.09. NONexXClUSIVIty OF RIGNES. .....c.oiiiiiieiiieie e 16
12.10. PUrchase Of INSUFANCE. .......cuiiiiiiiieieeiee st 16
12,10, BENETIL. oottt et bbbt bbb nreene s 17
12,12, AMEBNAMENT. ...ttt bbb b et e bbb et abeeneene s 17

Article X111 GENERAL PROVISIONS ..ottt 17
L3L0TL. SEAL ...ttt bbb nr e 17
13,02, INTEIPIELALION. ....eiveeeeeeete ettt e bbbttt e bbbt sbenneene s 17
1303, INOUICES. ...ttt bbbttt bbbt bt e e e bbbt nbeene s 17

Article XIV AMENDMENT ..ottt 17





BYLAWS OF
WILD OAK STOUGHTON CONDOMINIUM
ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I
NAME AND ADDRESS

1.01. Name; Purpose. The name of the corporation shall be Wild Oak Stoughton
Condominium Association, Inc. (the “Association”). The Association is incorporated as a
nonstock, nonprofit corporation under the provisions of the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law,
Wis. Stat. ch. 181.

1.02. Address. The initial principal office of the Association shall be located at 2 East
Mifflin Street #200, Madison, Wisconsin 53703. This address shall also be the mailing address of
the Association. The Association may change the principal office address from time to time.

1.03. Binding Effect. These Bylaws (the “Bylaws”) shall be binding upon the Unit
Owners, their heirs, successors, and assigns and shall govern the use, occupancy, operation, and
administration of the Condominium.

1.04. Capitalized Terms. Capitalized terms not defined in these Bylaws shall have the
definitions given to such terms in the Declaration of Condominium of Wild Oak Stoughton and
recorded in the office of the Dane County Register of Deeds (the “Declaration”) by DRW 51
WEST, LLC (the “Declarant”).

1.05. Nonprofit Status. No part of the net earnings of the Association may inure (other
than by acquiring, constructing, or providing management, maintenance, and care of Association
property, and other than by a rebate of excess membership dues, fees, or assessments) to the benefit
of any member or individual. Following the Association’s winding up of its affairs and upon its
liquidation, no member of the Association shall receive any distribution of assets of the
Association greater than the amount originally paid to the Association with respect to such
member’s membership interest. Furthermore, following the wind-up of the Association’s affairs,
any excess assets of the Association (other than a rebate of excess membership dues, fees, or
assessments) following the wind-up of its affairs shall, at the time of the Association’s liquidation,
be distributed to a religious, scientific, educational, benevolent, or other corporation or association
that is organized and conducted not for pecuniary profit.

ARTICLE 11
MEMBERSHIP

2.01. Membership. The membership of the Association shall at all times consist
exclusively of all Unit Owners of the Condominium. Land contract vendees but not land contract
vendors shall be members of the Association. Persons who hold an interest in a Unit merely as
security for the performance of an obligation (including Mortgagees) are not members of the
Association.

1





2.02. Commencement and Termination. Membership shall immediately commence upon
acquisition of an ownership interest in a Unit of the Condominium and shall immediately terminate
upon conveyance of such ownership interest. If a Unit Owner’s ownership interest passes to its
personal representative or to a trustee upon the Unit Owner’s death, such personal representative
or trustee shall be a member of the Association.

2.03. Withdrawal or Expulsion. No Unit Owner may voluntarily withdraw from
membership in the Association, nor may any Unit Owner be expelled from such membership.

2.04. Membership Certificates. Membership certificates shall not be issued.

2.05. Membership List. The Association shall maintain a current membership list listing
all Unit Owners of each Unit, the current mailing address for each Unit Owner to which notice of
meetings of the Association shall be sent, all Mortgagees of the Unit, if any, and, in the case of
multiple owners of a Unit, the Unit Owner, if any, designated to cast any or all votes pertaining to
such Unit in accordance with the Declaration. Each Unit Owner shall promptly provide written
notice to the Association of any transfer of its Unit as provided in Section 2.06 and of any change
in such Unit Owner’s name or current mailing address. No Unit Owner may vote at meetings of
the Association until the name and current mailing address of such Unit Owner has been provided
to and received by the secretary of the Association. Any Unit Owner that mortgages its Unit or
any interest therein or enters into a land contract with respect to its Unit shall notify the secretary
of the name and mailing address of its Mortgagee and shall also notify the secretary when such
mortgage has been released or such land contract has been fulfilled, and the secretary shall make
appropriate changes to the membership list effective as of the date of the mortgage, release, land
contract, or fulfillment, as the case may be.

2.06. Transfer of Membership. Each membership shall be appurtenant to the Unit upon
which it is based and shall be transferred automatically upon conveyance with the transfer of a
Unit. As soon as possible following the transfer of a Unit, the new Unit Owners shall give written
notice to the secretary of the Association of such transfer identifying the Unit and setting forth the
names and mailing addresses of the new Unit Owners, the date of the transfer, the names and
addresses of each Mortgagee, if any, and in the case of a Unit owned by multiple Unit Owners, the
name of the person designated to vote, if any. The Association shall make appropriate changes to
the membership list described in Section 2.05 effective as of the date of transfer.

2.07. Effect of Condominium Lien. No Unit Owner may vote on any matter submitted to
a vote of the Unit Owners if the Association has recorded a statement of condominium lien on the
Unit owned by such Unit Owner and the amount necessary to release the lien has not been paid at
the time of the voting.

2.08. Quorum. Unit Owners holding fifty-one percent (51%) of the total votes of the
Association as set forth in the Declaration, present in person or represented by proxy, shall
constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Unit Owners for the transaction of business.





2.09. Vote Required to Transact Business. When a quorum is present in person or
represented by proxy at any meeting, a majority of votes cast shall decide any question brought
before the meeting unless the question requires a different vote by express provision in the
Declaration, Articles of Incorporation of the Association (the “Articles”), Wisconsin
Condominium Ownership Act, Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, or these Bylaws, in which
case such express provision shall apply.

2.10. Proxies. All proxies shall be in writing, signed by the Unit Owner giving such proxy,
and filed with the secretary of the Association before or at the time of the meeting. No proxy shall
be valid after one hundred eighty (180) days from its date of issuance, unless granted to a
Mortgagee or tenant of a Unit.

2.11. Voting Designations of Multiple Unit Owners. Each Unit shall be entitled to one
(1) indivisible vote in the Association, subject however, to suspension as provided herein. If a
Unit is owned by more than one (1) person, the vote for the Unit shall be cast as agreed by the
persons who have an ownership interest in the Unit, and if only one such person is present, it is
presumed that person has the right to cast the Unit vote unless there is contrary evidence presented.
In the event they cannot agree on the manner in which the vote is to be cast, no vote may be
accepted from the Unit.

2.12. Effect of Condominium Lien. No Unit Owner may vote on any matter submitted to
a vote of the Unit Owners if the Association has recorded a statement of condominium lien on the
Unit owned by such Unit Owner and the amount necessary to release the lien has not been paid at
the time of the voting.

ARTICLE 111
MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

3.01. Place. All meetings of the Unit Owners shall be held at a place in Dane County,
Wisconsin, that shall be stated in the notice of the meeting.

3.02. Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the Unit Owners shall be held on the
second Monday of the first December after the Declarant has ceased to control the Association.
Thereafter, regular annual meetings of the Unit Owners shall be held on the second Monday of
December of each succeeding year.

3.03. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Unit Owners may be called at any time by
the president of the Association and shall be called upon the written request of Unit Owners
holding at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the votes. Business transacted at special meetings
shall be limited to the objects stated in the notice of such meeting.

3.04. Notice of Meetings. No annual or special meeting of the Unit Owners may be held
except upon at least ten (10) days’ (but not more than 60 days’) written notice delivered or mailed
to each Unit Owner at the address shown on the Association’s current membership list. Such notice
shall specify the place, day, and hour of the meetings and, in the case of a special meeting, the

3





purpose of the meeting. Prior notice of a meeting is not required to any Unit Owner that signs a
waiver of notice of such meeting.

3.05. Adjourned Meetings. If a quorum shall not be present in person or represented by
proxy at any meeting, the Unit Owners present shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from
time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be
present or represented by proxy. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or
represented by proxy, any business may be transacted that might have been transacted at the
meeting originally called.

3.06. Duties of Officers at Meetings. The president of the Association shall preside at all
meetings of the Unit Owners, and in his or her absence, the vice president shall preside. The
secretary shall take the minutes of the meeting and keep such minutes in the Association’s minute
book. Votes at all meetings shall be counted by the secretary.

3.07. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Unit Owners shall be
as follows:

@ Calling the meeting to order;

(b) Calling the roll of Unit Owners and certifying the proxies;
(© Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice;

(d) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes;

(e Reports of officers;

()] Reports of committees (if appropriate);

(9) Election of directors (if appropriate);

(h) Unfinished business;

Q) New business; and

() Adjournment.

3.08. Action Without a Meeting by Written Consent. Any action required or permitted
by any provision of the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, the Wisconsin Nonstock
Corporation Law, the Declaration, the Articles, or these Bylaws to be taken by the vote of the Unit
Owners may be taken without a meeting if a written consent, setting forth the action so taken, is
signed and dated by all Unit Owners that would have been entitled to vote on the action at such
meeting and that hold a number of votes equal to fifty-one percent (51%) of the total number of
votes in the Association.

3.09. Action Without a Meeting by Written Ballot. Any action required or permitted by
any provision of the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, the Wisconsin Nonstock
Corporation Law, the Declaration, the Articles, or these Bylaws to be taken by the vote of the Unit
Owners may be taken without a meeting if the Association delivers a written ballot to every Unit
Owner entitled to vote on the matter. The written ballot shall set forth each proposed action, shall
provide an opportunity to vote for or against each proposed action, and shall be accompanied by a
notice stating the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirements, the percentage of
approvals necessary to approve each matter other than election of directors, and the time by which

4





the ballot must be received by the secretary of the Association in order to be counted. Approval of
any action by written ballot shall be valid only when the number of votes cast by ballot equals or
exceeds the quorum required at a meeting authorizing the action and the number of approvals
equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required to approve the matter at a meeting
at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the number of votes cast by ballot. Once
received by the secretary of the Association, a written ballot may not be revoked.

ARTICLE 1V
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4.01. Number and Membership in Association. The affairs of the Association shall be
managed initially by a Board of Directors composed of three directors selected by the Declarant.
At such time as the Declarant has conveyed twenty-five percent (25%) of the Percentage Interest
to purchasers, the number of directors on the Board of Directors shall be increased to four (4). At
such time as the Declarant has conveyed fifty percent (50%) of the percentage interest in the
Common Elements as determined under the Declaration to purchasers, the number of directors on
the Board of Directors shall be decreased to three (3). No more than one director at any given time
may be a person who is not also a Unit Owner; provided, however, that during the period of
Declarant control as provided in the Declaration, any person named by the Declarant to the Board
of Directors shall be deemed to be a “Unit Owner” for purposes of this requirement only and
provided further, that in the case of a Unit that is owned by an entity rather than an individual, any
person who is an officer, member, partner, director, employee, or designee of such entity shall be
deemed to be a “Unit Owner” for purposes of this requirement only.

4.02. Term of Office. The initial Board of Directors shall serve until the Declarant has
conveyed twenty-five percent (25%) of the Percentage Interest to purchasers. Within thirty (30)
days after the conveyance of twenty-five percent (25%) of the Percentage Interest in the Common
Elements to purchasers, the Unit Owners other than the Declarant shall elect one director to serve
on the Board of Directors. The Declarant shall elect the remaining three directors. Such Board of
Directors shall serve until the Declarant has conveyed fifty percent (50%) of the Percentage
Interest in the Common Elements to purchasers. Within thirty (30) days after the conveyance of
fifty percent (50%) of the Percentage Interest in the Common Elements to purchasers, the Unit
Owners other than the Declarant shall elect one director to serve on the Board of Directors. The
Declarant shall elect the remaining two directors. Such Board of Directors shall serve until the
next election upon expiration of the period of Declarant control as provided in the Declaration.
Not later than forty-five (45) days after the expiration of the period of Declarant control, a special
meeting of the Unit Owners shall be called, and the Unit Owners shall elect all three (3) directors
to serve on the Board of Directors. Such directors shall take office upon such election and shall
serve until the first annual meeting of the Unit Owners as provided in Section 3.02. Thereafter,
each director shall take office at the annual meeting and shall serve for a term of one (1) year or
until his or her successor shall be elected.

4.03. Election of Directors. One (1) month before each annual meeting of the Unit
Owners, the secretary of the Association shall mail to all Unit Owners a notice setting a deadline
for nomination of persons to serve as directors on the Board of Directors. All nominations shall be
mailed to the secretary. Unit Owners must obtain the prior consent of any person they nominate

5





and may nominate themselves. Only Unit Owners entitled to vote on the election of any director
may nominate a person to serve as a director. If the number of nominees equals the number of
directors to be elected, the nominees shall automatically become the new directors to take office
at the annual meeting. If the number of nominees is fewer than the number of directors to be
elected, the secretary shall solicit further nominees by mail. If the number of nominees exceeds
the number of directors to be elected, the secretary shall conduct an election by written ballot in
accordance with Section 3.09 with all written ballots due before the deadline set by the secretary.
Each Unit shall have the number of votes provided in the Declaration. The persons receiving the
largest number of votes shall be elected as directors and shall take office at the annual meeting.

4.04. Vacancy and Replacement. If the office of any director becomes vacant because of
death, resignation, disqualification, or removal from office, such vacancy shall be filled by vote of
a majority of the remaining directors at a special meeting of the Board of Directors held for that
purpose promptly after the occurrence of such vacancy, even though the directors present may
constitute less than a quorum, and each person so elected shall be a member of the Board of
Directors for the remainder of the term of the director who left office or until a successor is elected
in accordance with these Bylaws. Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period of Declarant
control as described in the Declaration, only the Declarant shall have the right to replace any
director elected by Declarant.

4.05. Removal. Before the expiration of the period of Declarant control as described the
Declaration, only the Declarant shall have the right to remove a director from the Board of
Directors. Thereafter, any director may be removed from the Board of Directors, with or without
cause, by a majority vote of the Unit Owners.

4.06. Compensation. No director shall receive any compensation for his or her services as
a director of the Association other than reimbursement for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in the performance of directors’ duties.

ARTICLE V
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

5.01. Regular Meetings. Until the expiration of Declarant control as described in the
Declaration, the regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held annually on the second
Monday of December at the time and place designated in the notice of such meeting. Thereafter,
regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held annually without notice following the
annual meeting of the Unit Owners at the same place as the Unit Owners’ meeting or at such place
as the Board of Directors may vote to hold the meeting.

5.02. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any
time by the president and shall be called by the president or secretary at the request of any director
on the Board of Directors. Business transacted at all special meetings shall be limited to the objects
stated in the notice of such meeting.

5.03. Notice of Special Meetings. No special meeting of the Board of Directors may be
held except upon at least three (3) days’ prior written notice delivered or mailed by the secretary
6





to each member of the Board of Directors. Such notice shall specify the place, day, and hour of
the meeting of the Board of Directors and the purpose of the meeting. Attendance by any director
at any meeting of the Board of Directors shall be deemed a waiver of such notice.

5.04. Quorum. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act,
the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, the Declaration, the Articles, or these Bylaws, every
act of a majority of directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of
the Board of Directors. If a quorum is not present at the meeting, the directors then present may
adjourn the meeting until such time as a quorum is present, and at such later meeting at which a
quorum is present, may transact any business that might have been transacted at the meeting
originally called.

5.05. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Board of Directors
shall be as follows:

@ Calling the meeting to order;

(b) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice;

(© Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes;
(d) Reports of officers;

(e Reports of committees (if appropriate);

()] Election of officers (if appropriate);

(9) Unfinished business;

(h) New business; and

Q) Adjournment.

5.06. Action Without a Meeting by Written Consent. Any action required or permitted
by the Articles or these Bylaws to be taken by the Board of Directors may be taken without a
meeting if a written consent, setting forth the action so taken, is signed by two-thirds (2/3) of the
directors then in office.

ARTICLE VI
POWERS AND DUTIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

6.01. Powers and Duties. All powers and duties of the Association under the Declaration,
the Articles, these Bylaws, the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, and the Wisconsin
Nonstock Corporation Law shall be exercised by the Board of Directors except those powers and
duties specifically given to or required of any committees of the Association or the Unit Owners.
The powers and duties of the Board of Directors include, without limitation, the power or duty to:

(a) Adopt budgets for revenues, expenditures, and reserves;

(b) Levy and collect General Assessments and Special Assessments and disburse funds in
payment of the Association’s expenses;





(c) Manage, maintain, repair, replace, improve, operate, and regulate the Common
Elements, Limited Common Elements, and any property owned or leased by the Association;

(d) Grant easements, licenses, and rights-of-way through or over the Common Elements;

(e) Hire and supervise any property manager or agent, security manager or agent, other
manager or agent, employee, attorney, accountant, or any other independent contractor whose
services the Board of Directors determines are necessary or appropriate;

(f) Sue on behalf of all Unit Owners;
(g) Make contracts and incur liabilities;

(h) Purchase, take, receive, rent, or otherwise acquire and hold any interest in real or
personal property, including any Unit of the Condominium;

(i) Sell, convey, mortgage, encumber, lease, exchange, transfer, or otherwise dispose of
any interest in real or personal property, including any Unit of the Condominium;

(J) Receive any income derived from payments, fees or charges for the use, rental, or
operation of the Common Elements and any property owned or leased by the Association;

(k) Adopt, amend, and repeal rules and regulations governing the operation, maintenance,
and use of any portion of the Condominium and the personal conduct of any person on or with
regard to Condominium property, including the imposition of charges for the use of Common
Elements and penalties for infractions of the rules and regulations of the Association. Such rules
and regulations may also be adopted, amended, and repealed by the Unit Owners having sixty-
seven percent (67%) or more of the votes of the Association. Notwithstanding anything in these
Bylaws to the contrary, (i) rules and regulations that are adopted, amended or repealed by the Unit
Owners may not thereafter be amended, repealed, or readopted by the Board of Directors; and (ii)
the Declarant and its successors and assigns shall not be subject to or bound by any rule, regulation,
or amendment to a rule or regulation that is adopted without the written consent of the Declarant
and its successors and assigns to the specific rule, regulation, or amendment;

() Insure the Condominium property and property owned or leased by the Association
against loss by fire and other casualty and the Association and Unit Owners against public liability
as provided in the Declaration and purchase such other insurance as the Board of Directors may
deem advisable;

(m) Keep all books and records and prepare accurate reports of all transactions of the
Association;

(n) Appoint committees to carry out any tasks that the Board of Directors deems necessary
or appropriate;





(o) Designate depositories and establish accounts for the funds of the Association and
determine which officers or agents shall be authorized to withdraw and transfer funds deposited in
such accounts;

(p) Maintain such reserve funds for the operation, maintenance, repair, and replacement of
Common Elements, Limited Common Elements, and any property owned or leased by the
Association, for contingencies and for making up any deficit in the Common Expenses for any
prior year as the Board of Directors may deem proper or as may be required by law; and

(q) Delegate any or part of the powers and duties of the Board of Directors or Association
officers to committees of the Association or to a manager or managing agent.

6.02. Manager. The Board of Directors may hire a manager or managing agent at a
compensation rate established by the board to perform such duties and services as the Board of
Directors shall authorize, including, without limitation, the duties enumerated in Sections 6.01 and
7.07.

ARTICLE VII
OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES

7.01. Officers. The principal officers of the Association shall be the president, vice
president, secretary, and treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors. All
officers shall be Unit Owners, provided, however, that during the period of Declarant control as
provided in the Declaration, any person named by the Declarant to the Board of Directors or as an
officer shall be deemed to be a “Unit Owner” for purposes of this requirement only and provided
further, that in the case of a Unit that is owned by an entity rather than an individual, any person
who is an officer, member, partner, director, employee, or designee of such entity shall be deemed
to be a “Unit Owner” for purposes of this requirement only. The same individual may
simultaneously hold more than one office in the Association.

7.02. Election of Officers. The first election of officers shall take place at the first meeting
of the initial Board of Directors. Thereafter, the officers shall be elected annually by the Board of
Directors at its regular meeting.

7.03. Term. Each officer of the Association shall hold office for a term of one (1) year or
until his or her successor shall be elected.

7.04. Special Appointments. The Board of Directors may elect such other officers as the
affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for a period specified by
the Board of Directors which shall not exceed three (3) years, and have such authority and perform
such duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

7.05. Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be removed from office by the Board
of Directors whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Association will be served thereby.
Any officer may at any time resign by giving written notice to the president or the secretary. Such
resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice by the president or the secretary

9





or at any later time specified in the notice. Unless otherwise specified in the notice, the acceptance
of the resignation described in the notice shall not be necessary for its effectiveness.

7.06. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by the Board of
Directors. The officer appointed to fill such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of
the officer replaced.

7.07. Duties. Unless otherwise indicated by the Board of Directors or delegated to a
manager or managing agent pursuant to Article VI, the duties of the officers are as follows:

(a) President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the members of the Association
and of the Board of Directors; oversee the implementation of the Board of Directors’ orders and
resolutions; sign all leases, mortgages, deeds, contracts, checks, promissory notes, and other
written instruments on behalf of the Association; generally manage the business of the Association;
supervise and direct all other officers of the Association; and perform such other duties incident to
the office of president as may be required under the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, the
Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, the Declaration, the Articles, or these Bylaws, or by the
Board of Directors.

(b) Vice President. The vice president shall act in the place of the president in the event of
the president’s absence or inability or refusal to act and shall exercise and discharge such other
duties as may be required by the Board of Directors.

(c) Secretary. The secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and
proceedings of the Board of Directors and of the Unit Owners; serve notices of the meetings of the
Board of Directors and of the Unit Owners; keep all books and records of the Association other
than books of account, including the membership list described in Section 2.05; and perform such
other duties incident to the office of secretary as may be required under the Wisconsin
Condominium Ownership Act, the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, the Declaration, the
Articles, or these Bylaws, or by the Board of Directors.

(d) Treasurer. The treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all
funds of the Association and disburse such funds as directed by the president or by the Board of
Directors; keep complete and accurate books of account; prepare the annual report of the business
transacted by the Association each year; and prepare a proposed annual operating budget each year
for consideration of the Board of Directors or Unit Owners.

7.08. Compensation. No officer shall receive any compensation for his or her services as
an officer of the Association, other than reimbursement for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in the performance of officers’ duties.

7.09. Fidelity Bonds. The Board of Directors may require any officers, agents, or

employees of the Association handling or responsible for Association funds to furnish adequate
fidelity bonds. The premiums of such bonds shall be paid by the Association.

10





ARTICLE VIII
BOOKS AND RECORDS

8.01. Inspection. The books, records, minutes, papers, and membership list of the
Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any
Unit Owner. The Declaration, the Articles, and the Bylaws shall be available for inspection by any
Unit Owner, Mortgagee, or prospective purchaser of a Unit at the principal office of the
Association, where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost.

8.02. Audits. The accounts and records of the Association shall be audited at least once
every other year by an audit committee selected by the Board of Directors. The committee shall
retain such professional auditors and other independent examiners as it deems appropriate. The
cost of such audit shall be a Common Expense.

ARTICLE IX
BUDGET, ASSESSMENT, AND ANNUAL REPORT

9.01. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January
and end on the last day of December.

9.02. Budget. Throughout the period of Declarant control as described in Section 7.02 of
the Declaration, the Board of Directors shall adopt an annual operating budget for the Association
at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors, provided, however, that the first annual operating
budget for the Association shall be adopted by the Board of Directors before the first sale of a Unit
by the Declarant. After the expiration of the period of Declarant control as described in Section
7.02 of the Declaration, the Unit Owners holding at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the votes
present in person or represented by proxy at their annual meeting shall adopt the annual operating
budget for the Association at such annual meeting. The budget shall be effective for the period
January 1 through December 31 of the succeeding year. For any year in which the Association is
maintaining a statutory reserve account for the condominium under Wis. Stat. 8§ 703.163, the Board
shall include within the budget the amount of reserve funds to be collected for the ensuing year
after considering:

1. The reserve funds then in the reserve account;

2. The estimated cost of repairing or replacing Common Elements, other than routine
maintenance;

3. The estimated remaining useful life of the Common Elements; and

4. The approximate proportion of the estimated cost of repairing or replacing Common
Elements that will be covered by the reserve account and the approximate proportion that will be
funded by other means.

9.03. Levying and Payment of General Assessments. Based on the duly adopted annual
operating budget, the Board of Directors shall levy General Assessments against the Unit Owners

11





in proportion to their respective Percentage Interest. On or before the last day of December of each
year, the secretary shall mail or deliver a copy of the annual operating budget and a statement of
assessment for the next twelve (12) months to each Unit Owner. General Assessments shall be
payable to the Association in twelve (12) equal installments that shall be due monthly in advance
on the first day of each month. Such instaliments shall be mailed or delivered to the principal office
of the Association and shall be deemed paid on the date of mailing or on the date of delivery, as
the case may be.

9.04. Special Assessments. Special Assessments may from time to time be levied against
Unit Owners by the Board of Directors for any of the purposes enumerated in the Declaration and
shall be due and payable in the manner and on the date or dates designated by the Board of
Directors.

9.05. Association Remedies upon Nonpayment of Assessments. Any General
Assessment or Special Assessment not paid within ten (10) days after the date on which it is due
shall bear interest from the day following such due date at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per
year or the highest rate permitted by law, whichever is less. The Association may seek to collect
any assessments not paid when due by filing statements of condominium lien against the Units on
which they are assessed, by enforcing and foreclosing such liens, or by bringing an action for
money damages against the Unit Owners personally obligated to pay the delinquent assessments.
A suit to recover a money judgment for unpaid assessments shall be maintainable without
foreclosing or waiving any lien securing the same. No Unit Owner may waive or otherwise escape
liability for the assessments provided herein by nonuse of the Common Elements or abandonment
of its Unit.

9.06. Annual Report. Each January, the Board of Directors shall, by formal action,
approve a full and clear annual report of all business transacted by the Association during the
previous fiscal year, including a report of the Common Expenses, surpluses, and assessments
collected from each Unit Owner during the year. Copies of the annual report for the previous year
shall be mailed or delivered to each Unit Owner at the address in the Association’s membership
list before the third Thursday in February.

ARTICLE X
USE

Each Unit shall be used only for purposes permitted under the Declaration, the Articles,
these Bylaws, and any rules and regulations of the Association.

ARTICLE XI
ENFORCEMENT OF CONDOMINIUM DOCUMENTS

It shall be the responsibility of each Unit Owner to see that the occupants and tenants of
the Unit owned by such Unit Owner, and the employees, agents, representatives, invitees, and
guests of such Unit Owner, occupants, and tenants, abide by the provisions of the Declaration,
Bylaws, Condominium Ownership Act, all rules and regulations of the Association, and any
decisions made by the Association, the Board of Directors, or any committees of the Association

12





that are authorized by any of the foregoing. Unit Owners should report infractions to the Board of
Directors in writing, and the Board of Directors shall reply to the reporting Unit Owner within
thirty (30) days concerning the action taken. In case of a violation of any provision of the
Declaration, the Bylaws, the Condominium Ownership Act, any rule or regulation of the
Association, or any authorized decision of the Association, the Board of Directors, or any
committee of the Association, the Board of Directors shall notify the alleged offender. If the
violation is not corrected within a reasonable time, the Association may take such action as it
deems appropriate, including legal action against the offending Unit Owner or the Unit Owners of
the Unit in which such offender is a tenant, occupant, employee, agent, representative, invitee, or
guest, to correct the violation. In any such action brought against any Unit Owner in which the
Association is the prevailing party, the Unit Owner defendant in such action shall pay the
Association’s costs and actual attorney fees. If the Association fails to take appropriate
enforcement action within thirty (30) days of the Association’s receipt of the report of the
infraction, any Unit Owner may take appropriate legal action to enforce the provisions of the
Declaration, the Bylaws, the Condominium Ownership Act, the rules and regulations of the
Association, and any authorized decision of the Association, the Board of Directors, or any
committee of the Association.

ARTICLE XII
LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY

12.01. General Scope and Definitions.

(a) The rights of directors and officers of the Association provided in this Article shall
extend to the fullest extent permitted by the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law and other
applicable laws as in effect from time to time.

(b) For purposes of this Article, “director or officer” means a natural person (i) who is or
was a director or officer of the Association; (ii) who, while a director or officer of the Association,
1s or was serving at the Association’s request as a director, officer, partner, trustee, member of any
governing or decision-making committee, employee, or agent of another corporation or foreign
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise; (iii)
who, while a director or officer of the Association, is or was serving an employee benefit plan
because his or her duties to the Association also imposed duties on, or otherwise involved services
by, the person to the plan or to participants in or beneficiaries of the plan; or (iv) who is or was a
member of a committee created by the Association. Unless the context requires otherwise,
“director or officer” shall also mean the estate and personal representative of a director or officer.

(c) For purposes of this Article, “proceeding” means any threatened, pending or completed
civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative action, suit, arbitration, or other proceeding,
whether formal or informal, which involves foreign, federal, state, or local law (including federal
or state securities laws) and that is brought by or in the right of the Association or by any other
person.

(d) For purposes of this Article, “expenses” means fees, COsts, charges, disbursements,
attorney fees, and any other expenses incurred in connection with a proceeding, including a

13





proceeding in which a director or officer asserts his or her rights under this Article, and, if the
context requires, liabilities, including the obligation to pay a judgment, settlement, penalty,
assessment, forfeiture, or fine, including any excise tax assessed with respect to an employee
benefit plan.

12.02. Mandatory Indemnification.

(a) To the extent that a director or officer has been successful on the merits or otherwise in
the defense of any proceeding (including, without limitation, the settlement, dismissal,
abandonment, or withdrawal of any action by which he or she does not pay or assume any material
liability), or in connection with any claim, issue, or matter therein, he or she shall be indemnified
by the Association against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by him or her in connection
therewith to the extent that he or she was a party to the proceeding because he or she is or was a
director or officer of the Association.

(b) In cases not included under Section 12.02(a), the Association shall indemnify any
director or officer against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the director or officer in a
proceeding to which the director or officer was a party because he or she is or was a director or
officer, unless liability was incurred because the director or officer breached or failed to perform
a duty he or she owed to the Association and the breach or failure to perform constituted any of
the following: (i) a willful failure to deal fairly with the Association or its members in connection
with a matter in which the director or officer had a material conflict of interest; (ii) a violation of
criminal law, unless the director or officer had reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was
lawful or no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful; (iii) a transaction from
which the director or officer derived an improper personal profit or benefit; or (iv) willful
misconduct. The termination of a proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, or conviction, or
upon a plea of no contest or an equivalent plea, does not, by itself, create a presumption that
indemnification of the director or officer is not required under this subsection.

(c) Indemnification under this Section is not required to the extent that the director or
officer has previously received indemnification or allowance of expenses from any person,
including the Association, in connection with the same proceeding.

(d) To the extent indemnification is required under this Article XII, the Association has
purchased or is required under Section 12.10 to purchase insurance on behalf of the indemnified
person and the insurance policy includes a provision obligating the insurer to defend such person,
the Association shall be obligated to extend such defense. To the extent possible under such
insurance policy, the defense shall be extended with counsel reasonably acceptable to the
indemnified person. The Association shall keep the indemnified person advised of the status of the
claim and the defense thereof and shall consider in good faith the recommendations made by the
indemnified person with respect thereto.

12.03. Determination of Right to Indemnification. Unless otherwise provided by written
agreement between the director or officer and the Association, the director or officer seeking
indemnification under Section 12.02 shall make a written request for indemnification that shall
designate one of the following means for determining his or her right to indemnification: (a) by a

14





majority vote of a quorum of the Board of Directors or a committee of directors consisting of
directors not at the time parties to the same or related proceedings; (b) by independent legal counsel
selected by a quorum of the Board of Directors or its committee in the manner prescribed in Section
12.02(a) or, if unable to obtain such a quorum or committee, by a majority vote of the full Board
of Directors, including directors who are parties to the same or related proceedings; (c) by
arbitration; or (d) by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Unit Owners entitled to vote; provided,
however, that Unit Owners who are at the time parties to the same or related proceedings, whether
as plaintiffs or defendants or in any other capacity, may not vote in making the determination. Any
determination under this Section shall be made pursuant to procedures consistent with the
Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law unless otherwise agreed by the Association and the person
seeking indemnification. Such determination shall be completed, and eligible expenses, if any,
shall be paid to the person requesting indemnification hereunder within sixty (60) days after the
Association’s receipt of the written request required hereunder.

12.04. Allowance of Expenses as Incurred. Within thirty (30) days after a written request
by a director or officer who is a party to a proceeding because he or she is or was a director or
officer, the Association shall pay or reimburse his or her reasonable expenses as incurred if the
director or officer provides the Association with all the following: (a) a written affirmation of his
or her good-faith belief that he or she has not breached or failed to perform his or her duties to the
Association; and (b) a written undertaking, executed personally or on his or her behalf, to repay
the allowance and, if required by the Association, to pay reasonable interest on the allowance to
the extent that it is ultimately determined under Section 12.03 that indemnification under Section
12.02 is not required and indemnification is otherwise not ordered by a court. The undertaking
under this Section shall be an unlimited general obligation of the director or officer and may be
accepted without reference to his or her ability to repay the allowance. The undertaking may be
secured or unsecured.

12.05. Partial Indemnification.

(@) If it is determined pursuant to Section 12.03 that a director or officer is entitled to
indemnification as to some claims, issues, or matters in connection with any proceeding, but not
as to other claims, issues, or matters, the person or persons making such determination shall
reasonably determine and indemnify the director or officer for those expenses that are the result of
claims, issues, or matters that are a proper subject for indemnification hereunder in light of all
circumstances.

(b) If it is determined pursuant to Section 12.03 that certain expenses (other than liabilities)
incurred by a director or officer are for any reason unreasonable in amount in light of all the
circumstances, the person or persons making such determination shall authorize the
indemnification of the director or officer for only such amounts as he or she or they shall deem
reasonable.

12.06. Indemnification of Employees and Agents. The Board of Directors, may, in its
sole discretion, provide indemnification and/or defense and/or allowance of expenses in advance
of a final determination of any proceeding to an employee or agent of the Association who is not
a director or officer in connection with any proceeding in which the employee or agent was a

15





defendant because of his or her actions as an employee or agent of the Association; provided,
however, that prior to such indemnification, defense, or allowance of expenses, the Board of
Directors shall first determine that the employee or agent acted in good faith and in a manner he
or she reasonably believed to be in, and not opposed to, the best interests of the Association.

12.07. Limited Liability of Directors and Officers.

(a) Except as provided in Subsections 12.07(b) and (c), a director or officer is not liable to
the Association, its members or creditors, or any person for damages, settlements, fees, fines,
penalties, or other monetary liabilities arising from a breach of, or failure to perform, any duty
resulting solely from his or her status as a director or officer, unless the person asserting liability
proves that the breach or failure to perform constitutes any of the acts of misconduct listed in
Section 12.02(b).

(b) Except as provided in Section 12.07(c), this Section 12.07 does not apply to any of the
following: (i) a civil or criminal proceeding brought by or on behalf of any governmental unit,
authority, or agency; (ii) a proceeding brought by any person for a violation of state or federal law
when the proceeding is brought pursuant to an express private right of action created by state or
federal statute; or (iii) the liability of a director under Wis. Stat. 8§ 181.0832 and 181.0833.

(c) The provisions of Wis. Stat. § 12.07(b)(i) and (ii) do not apply to a proceeding brought
by a governmental unit, authority, or agency in its capacity as a private party or contractor.

12.08. Severability of Provisions. The provisions of this Article and the several rights to
indemnification, advancement of expenses, and limitation of liability created hereby are
independent and severable and, if any such provision or right shall be held by a court of competent
jurisdiction in which a proceeding relating to such provisions or rights is brought to be against
public policy or otherwise to be unenforceable, the other provisions of this Article shall remain
enforceable and in full effect.

12.09. Nonexclusivity of Rights. The rights to indemnification, defense, and advancement
of expenses provided for in this Article shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which
those seeking indemnification, defense, or advancement of expenses may be entitled under any
agreement authorized by the Board of Directors, any of the Bylaws, any vote of the members or
disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity and as to action
in another capacity while holding such office. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Association may
not indemnify a director or officer, or permit a director or officer to retain any allowance of
expenses, pursuant to any such additional rights unless it is determined by or on behalf of the
Association that the director or officer did not breach or fail to perform a duty he or she owes to
the Association that constitutes conduct under Section 12.02(b). A director or officer who is a party
to the same or related proceeding for which indemnification, defense, or an allowance of expenses
is sought may not participate in a determination under this Section.

12.10. Purchase of Insurance. The Association shall use its reasonable best efforts to
purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director or officer of the
Association, to the extent that such director or officer is insurable and such insurance coverage can

16





be secured by the Association at rates and in amounts and subject to such terms and conditions as
shall be determined in good faith to be reasonable and appropriate by the Board of Directors of the
Association, and whose determination shall be conclusive (provided, however, that such insurance
shall contain a provision obligating the insurer to defend the director or officer, if such provision
is available at reasonable rates), against liability asserted against or incurred by him or her in any
such capacity or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the Association would have
the power to indemnify or defend him or her against such liability under the provisions of this
Article.

12.11. Benefit. The rights to indemnification, defense, and advancement of expenses
provided by, or granted pursuant to, this Article shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be
a director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, and administrators of such
a person.

12.12. Amendment. No amendment or repeal of this Article shall be effective to reduce
the obligations of the Association under this Article with respect to any proceeding based on
occurrences that take place before such amendment or repeal.

ARTICLE XIII
GENERAL PROVISIONS

13.01. Seal. The Association shall not have a corporate seal.

13.02. Interpretation. These Bylaws are subject to all provisions of the Declaration, the
Articles, the Wisconsin Condominium Ownership Act, and the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation
Law. If any provision of these Bylaws shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not render invalid
any other provision hereof that can be given effect. Any invalid provision or portion thereof shall
be interpreted as having been amended to comply with the provisions of the Wisconsin
Condominium Ownership Act and/or the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law in effect on the
date of the adoption of these Bylaws. Nothing in these Bylaws shall be deemed or construed to
authorize the Association to conduct or engage in any active business for profit on behalf of any
or all Unit Owners.

13.03. Notices. Except as otherwise may be provided in the Wisconsin Condominium
Ownership Act or the Wisconsin Nonstock Corporation Law, notices to any Unit Owner that are
to be delivered or mailed pursuant to these Bylaws shall be deemed to have been given (a) in the
case of delivered notices, on the date when the notice is delivered to the address on file with the
secretary of the Association; or (b) in the case of mailed notices, on the date when the notice,
addressed to the address on file with the secretary of the Association, is deposited in the United
States mail with sufficient postage to effect delivery.

ARTICLE XIV
AMENDMENT

These Bylaws may be amended only with the assent of at least sixty-seven percent (67%)
of the votes of the Unit Owners; provided, however, as long as the Declarant owns any Unit, no

17





amendment shall be effective without the written consent of the Declarant. Any first Mortgagee or
its insurer or guarantor shall, upon written request to the Association, be entitled to timely written
advance notice of any proposed amendment to these Bylaws.

18





Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, November 13, 2023 at 6:00 pm
Hybrid Meeting

Members Present: Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher; Dorann Bradford; Tom

Robinson; Phil Caravello, Vice-Chair; and Al Farrow
Members Absent: Tom Majewski

Staff: Director of Planning & Development, Rodney Scheel
Guests: Dr. Keyser, MaClain Schramm, Andre Rosteing, David West, Ryan Harkins, Adrianne
Neinow

1.

2.

Call to Order. Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.
Roll call and verification of quorum. Mayor Swadley verified a quorum is present.

Certification and compliance with open meetings law. Mayor Swadley certified
compliance with open meetings law.

Plan Commission meeting minutes of October 9, 2023.
Motion by Schumacher to approve the minutes as presented, 2"¢ by Bradford. Motion
carried unanimously.

Council Representative Report.
Caravello reported the Common Council approved R-165-2023 and postponed R-164-2023.

Status of Current Developments.
Scheel introduced the status of developments as outlined in the packet of materials. He

highlighted that the Gingerbread Daycare is nearing completion and will have their
Occupancy Permit issued this week.

Final Condominium Plat for Lot 6 at 51 West Subdivision.
Scheel introduced the request.

Motion by Bradford to recommend the Common Council approve the condominium plat as
presented, 2" by Schumacher.

Motion carried unanimously

Site Plan review for a solar array project at United Methodist Church, 525
Lincoln Avenue.

Scheel explained the request.

Motion by Caravello to approve the site plan for a solar array as presented, 2" by Bradford.

Motion carried unanimously.

\\sto-fs I \global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes 111323.docx



mstacey

Highlight





Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
11/13/23
Page 3 of 3

10.

11.

12.

Zoning Ordinance Amendment Request for Section 78-206(4)(g) related to In-
Vehicle Sales and Service uses.

The applicant has requested the application to change the zoning code be withdrawn.

Attorney Dregne reported the Commission could decide to take no action or proceed by
making a recommendation to Council deny or approve an ordinance change.

Schumacher reported he met with the applicant group after they submitted their application.
It was suggested that they may discuss this topic with the Sustainability Committee.

By consensus, the Commission decided to take no action.
Future agenda items.

Plans for proposed maintenance facility at 900 W. Wilson Street.
Adjournment.

Motion by Schumacher to adjourn at 7:34 pm, 2™ by Caravello. Motion carried
unanimously.

Respectfully Submitted,

Roduney J. Scheel

\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2023\Plan Com Minutes 111323.docx





		10 R-186-2023 Final Condo Plat for - Lot 6 at 51 West - Resolution

		10a Final Condominium Plat for Lot 6 at 51 West

		Condominium Plat - Lot 6 51 West 2023.10.04.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Condo Plat



		2.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Condo Plat (2)







		R-151-2023 Preliminary Condominium Plat - Lot 6 - 51 West Development.pdf

		19 Preliminary Condo Plat for - Lot 6 at 51 West - Resolution



		ADP51E5.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, November 13, 2023 at 6:00 pm Hybrid Meeting












CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI 53589

ORDINANCE OF THE COMMOM COUNCIL

Amending Ordinance Chapter 70-176, by creating subsection (91) Parking Prohibited at all times:

(91) Oak Opening Drive south from Rutland Dunn Town Line Road to the south plat line of the 51
West Development

Committee Action: Public Safety
Fiscal Impact: 0

File Number: 0-31-2023 Date Introduced: November 28, 2023
December 12, 2023

The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains as
follows:

Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times
No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of
and while actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers
and while the vehicle is attended by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in
case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic, upon any of the following highways or
parts of highways:

e (91) Oak Opening Drive south from Rutland Dunn Town Line Road to the south plat line
of the 51 West Development

The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at
a meeting held on , 2023.

T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\11-28-2023\11 0-31-2023 70-176 (91) No Parking Amendment Oak Opening.doc 1
1122231328



































		11 O-31 -2023  70-176 (91) No Parking Amendment Oak Opening

		11a Images




CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589

ORDINANCE OF THE COMMOM COUNCIL

Amending Ordinance Chapter 70-181 No parking during school hours:(1)

(1) Eastand West sides of Lincoln Avenue between Jackson Street and the south-lineof the
Hillerest-Plat-extended to 800 Lincoln and "no parking " signs shall be erected accordingly.

Committee Action: Public Safety approved 6-0 on October 25, 2023
Fiscal Impact: 0

File Number: 0-32-2023 Date Introduced: = November 28, 2023
December 12, 2023

The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains as
follows:

Sec. 70-181. - No parking during school hours.

No person shall stop or leave any vehicle standing in any of the following locations
during school hours except temporarily for the purpose of and while actively engaged in
loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers and while the vehicle is
attended by a licensed operator:

(1) Eastand West sides of Lincoln Avenue between Jackson Street and the-south-lineof the
HillerestPlat-extended and 800 Lincoln and-with "no parking " signs shall be erected
accordingly.

(2) West side of North Van Buren Street between Wilson Street and the north line of the
Yahara School property.

(3) In front of the entire elementary school property on West South Street.

The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at
a meeting held on ,2023.

T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\11-28-2023\12 0-32-2023 70-181 School Parking Lincoln amendment.doc 1
1122231336





\ ¥
A

\
"y

-
-
-
=
-
















S

-

e











From: Brett Hebert

To: Dan Jenks

Cc: Rodney J. Scheel; John Halverson
Subject: Re: No Parking Recommendation
Date: Thursday, October 5, 2023 5:08:10 PM

I think this makes sense to implement at this time.

Brett Hebert
City of Stoughton
Director of Public Works

On Oct 5, 2023, at 3:15 PM, Dan Jenks <djenks@cityofstoughton.com> wrote:

Rodney,

Sounds like a good idea. We will get some pictures. And get it to PSC. John and Brett?

Daniel Jenks

Chief of Police

Stoughton Police Department

321 S. Fourth Street

Stoughton, WI 53589
djenks@cityofstoughton.com (new email address)
608-873-3374 24 Hour Dispatch

608-646-0472 Direct Line

608-719-8141 Cell

From: Rodney J. Scheel <rjscheel@cityofstoughton.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 5, 2023 2:44 PM

To: Dan Jenks <djenks@cityofstoughton.com>

Cc: Brett Hebert <bhebert@cityofstoughton.com>; John Halverson
<JHalverson@cityofstoughton.com>

Subject: No Parking Recommendation

Chief,
| am recommending no parking regulations be implemented on Oak Opening Drive

south from Rutland Dunn Town Line Road to the south plat line of the 51 West
Development. See attached.



mailto:bhebert@cityofstoughton.com

mailto:djenks@cityofstoughton.com

mailto:rjscheel@cityofstoughton.com

mailto:JHalverson@cityofstoughton.com

mailto:djenks@cityofstoughton.com



Unfortunately, there isn’t recent aerial photography to help visualize this section.
Maybe your drone team could supplement this material with some images.

Rationale:

Oak Opening is 39-feet wide from curb face to curb face.

Oak Opening is a collector street that will be heavily traveled.

This area is currently undeveloped and it is easier to implement now.

There are 2 traffic islands in this segment that restrict where parking could occur.
There is a path crossing on southern portion of this segment.

Two southern parcels are stormwater management areas that wouldn’t generate on-
street parking demand.

The east side lots are zoned for commercial uses. They will need to provide for off-
street parking once developed.

The west side lots are zoned for multi-family uses. They will need to provide for off-
street parking once developed.

Let me know if you have any questions or would like to discuss.

Rodney Scheel
Director of Planning & Development
608-873-6619

rischeel@cityofstoughton.com



mailto:rjscheel@cityofstoughton.com



		12 O-32-2023 70-181 School Parking Lincoln amendment

		12a Images

		12b Re_ No Parking Recommendation




City of Stoughton, 207 South Forrest Street, Stoughton WI 53589

RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE
STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL

Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to take no action and remain a member of the
settlement classes under Master Docket No. 2:18-MN-2873-RMG of the United States District Court
for the District of South Carolina.

Committee Action:  Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 5 - 2 on November

20, 2023.
Fiscal Impact: To be determined
File Number: R-187-2023 Date Introduced:  November 28, 2023

WHEREAS, in September 2023, Stoughton Utilities received notices of class action settlements
regarding Aqueous Film Forming Foams Product Liability Litigation; and

WHEREAS, water utilities across the United States filed lawsuits against 3M and Dupont for
contaminating drinking water sources with PFAS, and these cases were consolidated into a single docket
before the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina, commonly referred to as multi-
district litigation cases (“MDL”).

WHEREAS, notices were received for individual settlements with 3M (Case No. 2:23-cv-03147-RMQG)
and Dupont (Case No. 2:23-cv-03230), with both settlements being part of Master Docket No. 2:18-MN-
2873-RMG of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina; and

WHEREAS, the current settlement agreements are both Class Action settlements designed to resolve
claims for PFAS contamination in Public Water Systems’ Drinking Water, as those terms are defined in
the respective agreements, which are with two groups of Settling Defendants on behalf of:

(1) the 3M Company (“3M”); and

(2) E.I. Du Pont de Nemours and Company (n/k/a EIDP, Inc.), DuPont de Nemours Inc., The
Chemours Company, The Chemours Company FC, LLC, and Corteva, Inc. (collectively,
“DuPont”);

WHEREAS, both of these settlements are designed to resolve claims for PFAS contamination in Public
Water Systems’ Drinking Water, as those terms are defined in the respective agreements; and

WHEREAS, both of the proposed settlements are still subject to final approval by the MDL Judge, the
Honorable Richard M. Gergel of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina; and

WHEREAS, the proposed 3M settlement is divided into two categories: (1) phase one class members are
public water systems with any detection of PFAS; and (2) phase two class members are public water
systems that have not detected PFAS but which are conducting (or will conduct) PFAS testing under the
EPA-required unregulated contaminant monitoring program, UCMRS; with both categories excluding
transient public water systems or non-transient non-community public water systems that serve fewer than
3,300 people, and

WHEREAS, the proposed DuPont settlement amount is divided into two categories: (1) public water
systems that draw or collect from any water source that has a detection of PFAS; and (2) public water





systems that are subject to the monitoring rules set forth in UCMRS or are required under applicable
federal or state law to test or otherwise analyze any of their water sources or the water they provide for
PFAS before the UCMRS deadline; with both categories including public water systems that have at least
15 service connections or regularly serve at least 25 individuals, including community water systems, non-
transient non-community water systems, and transient non-community water systems, and

WHEREAS, under the terms of each settlement, Stoughton Utilities falls into the criteria set forth in the
first category; and

WHEREAS, if the court approves the settlements as presented, the settlements will collectively provide
$13.6 billing (3M: $12.500 billion, DuPont: $1.185 billion) in funding to address the companies’ liability
for public water systems affected by PFAS contamination in their drinking water; and

WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has previously completed baseline testing for PFAS and this prior testing
has indicated that we would be a Phase One Qualifying Class Member unless it chooses to exclude
ourselves from the settlement class; and

WHEREAS, Phase One Qualifying Class Members can make claims to recover some of the costs of
addressing PFAS contamination in their drinking water systems; and

WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities staff has used the Estimated Allocation Range Tables published by the
Plaintiff’s Executive Committee to calculate the PFAS score and adjusted flow rate used to determine an
estimated allocation range, calculating a PFAS score of 2 and an adjusted flow rate falling between 1,000
and 1,500 gpm; and

WHEREAS, 3M and DuPont have proposed these settlement agreements in order to settle certain claims,
remove themselves from this lawsuit, and prevent class members from suing in the future, and under the
settlement agreements, every settlement class member who remains in the settlement agreement thereby
agrees to “expressly, intentionally, voluntarily, fully, finally, irrevocably, and forever release, waive,
compromise, settle, and discharge” these companies from certain claims, including any claim related to
PFAS in drinking water or the public water system that has arisen or may arise in the future; and

WHEREAS, if the City does not opt out, the City will have released these companies from liability and,
therefore, cannot bring any lawsuit against either 3M or DuPont related to the claims resolved by the
settlement agreements; and

WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has the option of opting-out of the settlement class, thereby not releasing
any future claims related to the PFAS contamination of Stoughton’s drinking water supply system, with
the deadline to submit request for exclusion as class participants being December 4, 2023 (DuPont) and
December 11, 2023 (3M); and

WHEREAS, following consultation with the Stoughton City Attorney, as well as discussions with the
attorney representing the National Rural Water Association in its PFAS contamination lawsuit (and co-
lead counsel for the plaintiffs in the master docket) and the attorney representing the Wisconsin Municipal
Environmental Group Water Division (MEG-Water), it is staff’s recommendation that Stoughton Utilities
remain a member of the settlement class; and

WHEREAS, if Stoughton Utilities remains a member of the settlement class, staff will further recommend
(at a later date) that any funds received from the settlement be set aside in a restricted water utility fund
to be used for any future regulatory requirements for treatment of drinking water contamination that are
currently unknown; now therefore





BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
authorized and directed to take no action and remain a member of the settlement classes under Master
Docket No. 2:18-MN-2873-RMG of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina.

Council Action: D Adopted D Failed Vote:
Mayoral Action: D Accept D Veto
Mayor Timothy Swadley Date

Council Action: D Override Vote:






Stoughton Utilities

600 South Fourth Street
P.O. Box 383
Stoughton, WI 53589-0383

Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886

Date: November 13, 2023
To: Stoughton Utilities Committee
From: Jill M. Weiss, P.E.

Stoughton Utilities Director

Subject: Agqueous Film-Forming Foam (AFFF) Product Liability Litigation (MDL 2873)

** May move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(g): Conferring with legal counsel for the
governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by
the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved.

In September 2023, Stoughton Utilities received notices of class action settlements regarding
Aqueous Film Forming Foams Product Liability Litigation. Water utilities across the United
States filed lawsuits against 3M and Dupont for contaminating drinking water sources with PFAS.
These cases were consolidated into a single docket before the United States District Court for the
District of South Carolina, and are commonly referred to as multi-district litigation cases (“MDL”).
Notices were received for individual settlements with 3M (Case No. 2:23-cv-03147-RMG) and
Dupont (Case No. 2:23-cv-03230). The settlements are part of Master Docket No. 2:18-MN-2873-
RMG of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina.

The current settlement agreements are both Class Action settlements designed to resolve claims
for PFAS contamination in Public Water Systems’ Drinking Water, as those terms are defined in
the respective agreements, which are with two groups of Settling Defendants on behalf of:

(1) the 3M Company (“3M”); and

(2) E.I. Du Pont de Nemours and Company (n/k/a EIDP, Inc.), DuPont de Nemours Inc.,
The Chemours Company, The Chemours Company FC, LLC, and Corteva, Inc.
(collectively, “DuPont”).

Both of these settlements are designed to resolve claims for PFAS contamination in Public Water
Systems’ Drinking Water, as those terms are defined in the respective agreements. Both of the
proposed settlements are still subject to final approval by the MDL Judge, the Honorable Richard
M. Gergel of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina.
The terms of these settlements specify class members as follows:
(1) The proposed 3M settlement is divided into two categories:
(i) phase one class members are public water systems with any detection of PFAS; and

(i1) phase two class members are public water systems that have not detected PFAS but
which are conducting (or will conduct) PFAS testing under the EPA-required





unregulated contaminant monitoring program, UCMRS5; with both categories
excluding transient public water systems or non-transient non-community public
water systems that serve fewer than 3,300 people

(2) the proposed DuPont settlement amount is divided into two categories:

(i) public water systems that draw or collect from any water source that has a detection
of PFAS; and

(i) public water systems that are subject to the monitoring rules set forth in UCMRS5
or are required under applicable federal or state law to test or otherwise analyze any
of their water sources or the water they provide for PFAS before the UCMR5
deadline; with both categories including public water systems that have at least 15
service connections or regularly serve at least 25 individuals, including community
water systems, non-transient non-community water systems, and transient non-
community water systems

Under the terms of each settlement, Stoughton Utilities falls into the criteria set forth in the first
category.

If the court approves the settlements as presented, the settlements will collectively provide $13.6
billing (3M: $12.500 billion, DuPont: $1.185 billion) in funding to address the companies’ liability
for public water systems affected by PFAS contamination in their drinking water.

Stoughton Utilities has previously completed baseline testing for PFAS and this prior testing has
indicated that we would be a Phase One Qualifying Class Member unless we choose to exclude
ourselves from the settlement class. Phase One Qualifying Class Members can make claims to
recover some of the costs of addressing PFAS contamination in their drinking water systems.

Determining the exact compensation that Stoughton Utilities can expect to receive under the
settlement for their contaminated water sources remains uncertain, as it relies on future values that
will only become clear when we have a comprehensive list of all participating public water systems
involved in the settlements. The Plaintiff’s Executive Committee has published Estimated
Allocation Range Tables that provide an approximate of the compensation. This table, and the
methodology used to calculate the PFAS score and adjusted flow rate used to determine an
estimated allocation range are included below. Following these calculations, staff has determined
our PFAS score is a 2 and our adjusted flow rate falls between 1,000 and 1,500 gpm.

3M and DuPont have proposed these settlement agreements in order to settle certain claims,
remove themselves from this lawsuit, and prevent class members from suing in the future. Under
the settlement agreements, every settlement class member who remains in the settlement
agreement thereby agrees to “expressly, intentionally, voluntarily, fully, finally, irrevocably, and
forever release, waive, compromise, settle, and discharge” these companies from certain claims.
This includes any claim related to PFAS in drinking water or the public water system that has
arisen or may arise in the future. The release in both agreements is extremely comprehensive.

If the City does not opt out, the City will have released these companies from liability and,
therefore, cannot bring any lawsuit against either 3M or DuPont related to the claims resolved by
the settlement agreements.

Stoughton Utilities has the option of opting-out of the settlement class, thereby not releasing any
future claims related to the PFAS contamination of Stoughton’s drinking water supply system.
The deadlines to submit requests for exclusion and opt-out as a class participant are:





(1) DuPont Deadline Date: December 4, 2023
(2) 3M Deadline Date: December 11, 2023

Following consultation with the Stoughton City Attorney, as well as discussions with the attorney
representing the National Rural Water Association in its PFAS contamination lawsuit (and co-lead
counsel for the plaintiffs in the master docket), and the attorney representing the Wisconsin
Municipal Environmental Group Water Division (MEG-Water), it is staff’s recommendation that
Stoughton Utilities remain a member of the settlement class.

If Stoughton Utilities remains a member of the settlement class, staff will further recommend (at
a later date) that any funds received from the settlement be set aside in a restricted water utility
fund to be used for any future regulatory requirements for treatment of drinking water
contamination that are currently unknown.

We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve taking no action and remaining
a member of the settlement classes under Master Docket No. 2:18-MN-2873-RMG of the United
States District Court for the District of South Carolina, and recommend the same to the Stoughton
Common Council at their November 28, 2023 meeting.





5373

NOTICE OF 3M CLASS ACTION SETTLEMENT

IN RE: AQUEOUS FILM FORMING FOAMS
PRODUCT LIABILITY LITIGATION
United States District Court, District of South Carolina — Charleston Division
MDL No. 2:18-mn-2873-RMG
Case No. 2:23-cv-03147-RMG

PLEASE NOTE, the enclosed correspondence relates to the Settlement
with 3M Company.

YOU MAY RECEIVE ADDITIONAL CORRESPONDENCE RELATING
TO ADDITIONAL SETTLEMENTS WITH OR JUDGMENTS
INVOLVING OTHER DEFENDANT(S).

Please be aware that documents associated with one Settling Defendant
may appear similar to documents associated with another Settling Defendant.

However, each Settlement has its own specific terms and conditions, and

each set of documents should be carefully reviewed with this in mind.
Please visit www .PFASWaterSettlement.com for more information
and to review settlement-related documents.

SETTLEMENT WEBSITE FOR FILING YOUR CLAIM
FOR SETTLEMENT PAYMENT

WWW.PFASWATERSETTLEMENT.COM

NOTICE ID: RBM-784071

(T





FOLD OVER TOP £F ENVELOPE

3M Class Action Settlement
Settlement Administrator

1650 ARCH ST STE 2210
PHILADELPHIA PA 19103-2041

5373

FOLD OVER TOP OF ENVELGPE

USPS CERTIFIED MAIL™

$7.42 US POSTAGE [%4
FIRST-CLASS '

Sep 15 2023

Mailed from ZIP 19103

2 OZ FIRST-CLASS MAIL LETTER
\TE

USPS CERTIFIED MAIL

T

9414 8118 9876 5413 2576 18

07 S FORREST ST
STOUGHTON WI 53589-1718





Notice Administrator Angeion Group Announces Proposed Settlement in Aqueous Film-
Forming Foams Product Liability Litigation Involving Public Water Systems

PHILADELPHIA, Sep. 12, 2023 /PR Newswire/- Angeion Group today announces a settlement
has been reached with Defendant the 3M Company (3M) in a product liability class action lawsuit.
Eligible claimants are all Active Public Water Systems in the U.S. that draw or otherwise collect
from any Water Source that, on or before June 22, 2023, was tested or otherwise analyzed for
PFAS and found to contain any PFAS at any level; and All Active Public Water Systems in the
U.S. that, as of June 22, 2023, do not draw or otherwise collect from any Water Source that was
tested or otherwise analyzed for PFAS and found to contain any PFAS at any level and (i) are
required to test for certain PFAS under U.S. EPA’s UCMR-5, or (ii) serve more than 3,300 people,
according to U.S. EPA’s SDWIS data system.

“SDWIS” stands for the Safe Drinking Water Information System. All other capitalized terms have
the same meaning as in the Settlement Agreement, available at www.PFASWaterSettlement.com.

Active Public Water System means a Public Water System whose activity-status is “Active” in
SDWIS and is a system for the provision of water to the public for human consumption through
pipes or other constructed conveyances if such system has at least fifteen (15) service connections
or regularly serves at least twenty-five (25) individuals daily at least sixty (60) days out of the year.
A “Public Water System” shall include any operator-controlled collection, treatment, storage, and
distribution facilities and any collection or pretreatment storage facilities not under such control
which are used primarily in connection with such system. The term “Public Water System” refers
to a Community Water System of any size or a Non-Transient Non-Community Water System that
serves more than 3,300 people, according to SDWIS; or any Person (but not any financing or
lending institution) that has legal authority or responsibility (by statute, regulation, other law, or
contract) to fund or incur financial obligations for the design, engineering, installation, operation,
or maintenance of any facility or equipment that treats, filters, remediates, or manages water that
has entered or may enter Drinking Water or any Public Water System; but does not refer to a Non-
Transient Non-Community Water System that serves 3,300 or fewer people, according to SDWIS,
or to a Transient Non-Community Water System of any size. It is the intention of the Settlement
Agreement that the definition of “Public Water System” be as broad, expansive, and inclusive as
possible.

What does the Settlement provide?

3M has agreed to pay an amount not less than $10,500,000,000 and not more than
$12,500,000,000, inclusive (the “Settlement Amount”), subject to final approval of the
Settlement by the Court and certain other conditions specified in the Settlement Agreement. In
no event shall 3M be required under the Settlement Agreement to pay any amounts above the
Settlement Funds. Any fees, costs, or expenses payable under the Settlement Agreement shall be
paid out of, and shall not be in addition to, the Settlement Funds. Each Class Member that has
not excluded itself from the Settlement will be eligible to receive a settlement check(s) from the
Claims Administrator based on the Allocation Procedures developed by Class Counsel, which
are subject to final approval by the Court as fair and reasonable and which are under the
oversight of the Special Master.

How do I get a payment from the Settlement?



http://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/



You must timely file a Claims Form to be eligible to receive a payment under the Settlement.
You can submit your Claims Form online at www.PFASWaterSettlement.com, or you can
download, complete and mail your Claims Form to the Claims Administrator at AFFF Public
Water System Claims, PO Box 4466, Baton Rouge, LA 70821. The deadlines to submit a Claims
Form are available on the Settlement Website www.PFASWaterSettlement.com. Regardless of
whether you file a Claims Form or receive any distribution under the Settlement, unless you
timely opt out as described below, you will be bound by any judgment or other final disposition
of the Released Claims, including the Release set forth in the Settlement Agreement, and will be
precluded from pursuing Claims against 3M separately if those Claims are within the scope of
the Release.

What are my rights?

e Class Members have the right to submit a Claims Form, be evaluated for eligibility to
participate in the Settlement, and have an award allocated to them upon confirmation of
eligibility.

e Class Members have the right to do nothing; if you are a Class Member and do nothing,
you will be bound by the Settlement and will give up any right to sue 3M in a separate
lawsuit related to the Claims in this lawsuit.

e Class Members have the right to object to the Settlement and/or ask for permission to
appear and speak at the Final Fairness Hearing, but only if you do so by NOVEMBER
11, 2023.

e (lass Members also have the right to “opt out,” meaning to exclude themselves from the
Settlement by DECEMBER 11, 2023. If you are a Class Member and do not exclude
yourself, you will be bound by the Settlement and will give up any right to sue 3M in a
separate lawsuit related to the Claims in this lawsuit Complete information is available at
www.PFASWaterSettlement.com.

The Court’s hearing.

The Court will hold a Final Fairness Hearing in Charleston Courtroom #1, J. Waties Waring
Judicial Center of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina, located at 85
Broad Street, Charleston, South Carolina 29401, on February 2, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. EST. At that
time, the Court will determine, among other things, (i) whether the Settlement should be granted
Final Approval as fair, reasonable, and adequate, (ii) whether the Litigation should be dismissed
with prejudice pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, (iii) whether the Settlement
Class should be conclusively certified, (iv) whether Class Members should be bound by the
Release set forth in the Settlement Agreement, (v) the amount of attorneys’ fees and costs to be
awarded to Class Counsel, if any, and (vi) the amount of the award to be made to the Class
Representatives for their services, if any. The Final Fairness Hearing may be postponed, adjourned,
or continued by Order of the Court without further notice to the Class.

For more information, visit www.PFASWaterSettlement.com or call toll-free 1-855-714-4341.

Media Contact:
Angeion Group
Shiri Lasman



http://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/

http://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/

http://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/

http://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/



(215) 563-4116
SOURCE: ANGEION GROUP





Aqueous Film-Forming Foam (AFFF) Product Liability Litigation (MDL 2873)
(https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/)

DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA, MASTER DOCKET NO. 2:18-MN-2873-RMG

Frequently Asked Questions (3M)

FAQs
= 1.What is the Purpose of the Notice?

The purpose of this Notice is (i) to advise you of a proposed settlement (referred to as the “Settlement”) that
has been reached with the defendant, 3M Company (“3M” or “Defendant”), in the above-captioned lawsuit (the
“Action”) pending in the multi-district litigation in the United States District Court for the District of South
Carolina (the “Court”); (ii) to summarize your rights in connection with the Settlement; and (iii) to inform you
of a Court hearing to consider whether to grant final approval of the Settlement, to be held on February 2,
2024 at 10:00 AM EST in Charleston Courtroom #1, J. Waties Waring Judicial Center, before the Honorable

Richard M. Gergel, United States District Judge of the United States District Court for the District of South
Carolina, located at 83 Meeting Street, Charleston, South Carolina 29401.

If you received this Notice about the proposed Settlement in the mail, then you have been identified as a

potential Settlement Class Member according to the Parties’ records. Please read this Notice carefully

= 2.What is the Action about?

Class Representatives are Public Water Systems that have filed actions against 3M and other defendants,

which actions are currently pending in the above-referenced multi-district litigation (“MDL”).

Class Representatives have alleged that they have suffered harm resulting from the presence of PFAS in
Drinking Water and/or the need to monitor for the presence of PFAS in Drinking Water, and that 3M is liable

for damages and other forms of relief to compensate for such harm and costs.

In addition to the MDL, certain other cases asserting Released Claims are pending against 3M (collectively
with the MDL, the “Litigation”).



https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/



There are numerous defendants in addition to 3M in the MDL and the cases that comprise the Litigation.
Those other defendants are not part of this Settlement Agreement. The Class Representatives and Settlement

Class Members will remain able to seek separate and additional PFAS-related recoveries from those other

defendants in addition to the Settlement Amount here.

3M denies the allegations in the Litigation and all other allegations relating to the Released Claims; denies
that it has any liability to Class Representatives, the Settlement Class, or any Settlement Class Member for any
Claim of any kind; and would assert a number of legal and factual defenses against such Claims if they were

litigated to conclusion (including against certification of any purported class for litigation purposes).

This Notice should not be understood as an expression of any opinion by the Court as to the merits of the

Class Representatives’ Claims or the Defendant’s defenses.

= 3.Who is Part of the Proposed Settlement?

The Class Representatives and 3M have entered into the Settlement Agreement to resolve Claims relating to
PFAS contamination of Drinking Water in Public Water Systems. The Court has preliminarily approved the

Settlement Agreement as fair, reasonable, and adequate. The Court will hold a Final Fairness Hearing, as

described below, to consider whether to grant final approval of the Settlement.

The Settlement Class is defined as follows:

(a) ALL Active Public Water Systems in the United States of America that have one or more Impacted Water

Sources as of June 22, 2023.

AND

(b) All Active Public Water Systems in the United States that do not have one or more Impacted Water

Sources as of June 22,2023 and (i) are required to test for certain PFAS under UMCR-5, or (ii) serve more

than 3,300 people, according to SDWIS.

Exhibits E and F to the Settlement Agreement, available for review here

(https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-court-documents/), list all Eligible Claimants known to Interim
Class Counsel and 3M’s Counsel as of the Settlement Date. Not all Public Water Systems are potential

Settlement Class Members; specifically excluded from the Settlement Class are:

a) Non-Transient Non-Community Water Systems serving 3,300 or fewer people;



https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-court-documents/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-court-documents/



b) Transient Non-Community Water Systems of any size;

¢) The Public Water Systems listed in Exhibit G to the Settlement Agreement, which are associated with a

specific PFAS-manufacturing facility owned by 3M;

d) Any Public Water System that is owned by a state government, is listed in SDWIS as having as its sole
“Owner Type” a “State government” (as set forth in Exhibit H to the Settlement Agreement), and lacks

independent authority to sue and be sued;

e) Any Public Water System that is owned by the federal government, is listed in SDWIS as having as its
sole “Owner Type” the “Federal government” (as set forth in Exhibit | to the Settlement Agreement), and

lacks independent authority to sue and be sued;

f) The Public Water Systems that are listed in Exhibit J to the Settlement Agreement and have previously
settled their PFAS-related Claims against 3M; and

g) Any privately owned well that provides water only to its owner’s (or its owner’s tenant’s) individual
household and any other system for the provision of water for human consumption that is not a Public

Water System.

An Eligible Claimant must submit a timely notice if it believes it has been erroneously listed in any of the

above-referenced Exhibits.

Per the Settlement Agreement, “Public Water System” means a system for the provision to the public of water
for human consumption through pipes or other constructed conveyances, if such system has at least fifteen
(15) service connections or regularly serves an average of at least twenty-five (25) individuals daily at least
sixty (60) days out of the year, consistent with the use of that term in the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. &
300f(4)(A), and 40 C.F.R. Part 141.The term “Public Water System” includes (i) any collection, treatment,
storage, and distribution facilities under control of the operator of such system and used primarily in
connection with such system, and (ii) any collection or pretreatment storage facilities not under such control
which are used primarily in connection with such system. Solely for purposes of the Settlement Agreement,
the term “Public Water System” refers to a Community Water System of any size or a Non-Transient Non-
Community Water System that serves more than 3,300 people, according to SDWIS; or any Person (but not any
financing or lending institution) that has legal authority or responsibility (by statute, regulation, other law, or
contract) to fund or incur financial obligations for the design, engineering, installation, operation, or
maintenance of any facility or equipment that treats, filters, remediates, or manages water that has entered or

may enter Drinking Water or any Public Water System; but does not refer to a Non-Transient Non-Community





Water System that serves 3,300 or fewer people, according to SDWIS, or to a Transient Non-Community Water
System of any size. It is the intention of the Settlement Agreement that the definition of “Public Water System”

be as broad, expansive, and inclusive as possible.

Non-Transient Non-Community Water System means a Public Water System that is not a Community Water
System and that regularly serves at least twenty-five (25) of the same persons over six (6) months per year,

consistent with the use of that term in 40 C.F.R. Part 141.

Transient Non-Community Water System means a Public Water System that is not a Community Water System
and that does not regularly serve at least twenty-five (25) of the same persons over six (6) months per year,

consistent with the use of that term in 40 C.F.R. Part 141.

SDWIS means the U.S. EPA Safe Drinking Water Information System Federal Reporting Services system, as of
June 22,20253.

= 4,What are the Key Terms of the Proposed Settlement?
The key terms of the proposed Settlement are as follows:

1. Settlement Amount. 3M has agreed to pay an amount not less than $10,500,000,000 and not more than

$12,500,000,000 (the “Settlement Amount”), subject to final approval of the Settlement by the Court and
certain other conditions specified in the Settlement Agreement. 3M shall additionally pay up to
$5,000,000 to cover costs incurred by the Notice Administrator in the course of executing the Notice Plan.
Together, these payments from 3M constitute the “Settlement Funds.” Payments to Qualifying Class
Members will be referred to as “Settlement Awards.” In no event shall 3M be required under the
Settlement Agreement to pay any amounts above the Settlement Funds. Any fees, costs, expenses, or
incentive awards payable under the Settlement Agreement shall be paid out of, and shall not be in

addition to, the Settlement Funds.

2. Settlement Benefit. Each Settlement Class Member that has not excluded itself from the Settlement

Class will be eligible to receive a settlement check(s) from the Claims Administrator based on the
Allocation Procedures developed by Class Counsel, which are subject to final approval by the Court as fair

and reasonable.

3. Settlement Administration. The Court has appointed a Special Master and Claims Administrator

pursuant to Rule 53 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (FRCP) to oversee the allocation of the

Settlement Funds. They will adhere to their duties set forth herein and in the Settlement Agreement. The





Special Master will generally oversee the Claims Administrator and make any final decision(s) related to
any appeals by Qualifying Class Members or 3M and any ultimate decision(s) presented by the Claims
Administrator. The Claims Administrator will perform the actual modeling, allocation, and payment
distribution functions. The Claims Administrator will seek assistance from the Special Master when
needed. The Claims Administrator may also seek the assistance of the Interim Class Counsel’s consultants

who assisted in providing guidance in designing the Allocation Procedures.

4. Allocation Procedures Overview. The Allocation Procedures (attached as Exhibit Q to the Settlement

Agreement) were designed to fairly and equitably allocate the Settlement Amount among Qualifying Class
Members to resolve PFAS contamination of Drinking Water in Public Water Systems in such a way that
reflects factors used in designing a water treatment system in connection with such contamination. The
volume of impacted water and the degree of impact are the main factors in calculating the cost of treating
PFAS; the Allocation Procedures use formulas to arrive at the amounts due to equitably compensate

Qualifying Class Members for PFAS-related treatment.

5. Claims Form Process. The Claims Administrator will verify that each entity that submits a Claim Form is

a Qualifying Class Member and will confirm the category into which the Class Member falls.

 Qualifying Class Members fall into one of two categories: Phase One Qualifying Class Members or
Phase Two Qualifying Class Members. Phase One Qualifying Class Members will be allocated
$6,875,000,000. Phase Two Qualifying Class Members’ allocation will be between $3,625,000,000 and
$5,625,000,000, depending on the factors and process set forth in the Allocation Procedures.

> A Phase One Qualifying Class Member is an Active Public Water System in the United States that
has one or more Impacted Water System as of June 22, 2023. Each Phase One Qualifying Class
Member must test each of its Water Sources for PFAS; request from the laboratory that performs the
analyses all analytical results, including the actual numeric values of all analytical results; and
submit or cause the testing laboratory to submit detailed PFAS test results to the Claims
Administrator on a Claims Form(s) by dates specified below and on the Settlement website,

available here (https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-home-page/). The Claims Administrator

will establish three separate funds for the benefit of Phase One Qualifying Class Members. Such
Settlement Class Members will be eligible for compensation from at least one and potentially more
of these funds. These funds and the criteria the Claims Administrator will use to determine the
amount each Phase One Qualifying Class Member will receive from them are fully described in the

Allocation Procedures in Exhibit Q to the Settlement Agreement.



https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-home-page/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-home-page/



> A Phase Two Qualifying Class Member is an Active Public Water System in the United States that
does not have one or more Impacted Water Sources as of June 22,2023 and (i) is required to test for
certain PFAS under UCMR-5 or (ii) serves more than 3,300 people. Each Phase Two Qualifying Class
Member must test each of its Water Sources for PFAS; request from the laboratory that performs the
analyses all analytical results, including the actual numeric values; and submit or cause the testing
laboratory to submit detailed PFAS test results to the Claims Administrator on a Claims Form within
forty-five (45) calendar days after receiving the test results, absent what the Claims Administrator
deems in writing to be an extraordinary circumstance, and no later than July 1, 2026. The Claims
Administrator will establish four separate funds for the benefit of Phase Two Qualifying Class
Members. These funds and the criteria the Claims Administrator will use to determine the amount
each Phase Two Settlement Class Member will receive from them are fully described in the

Allocation Procedures.

The initial step for establishing Settlement Class membership and eligibility for compensation from the
Settlement Amount is the completion of the relevant Claims Form. The term “Claims Form” may refer to

any of seven separate forms:

1. Phase One Public Water System Settlement Claims Form;

2.Phase One Supplemental Fund Claims Form;

3. Phase One Special Needs Fund Claims Form;

4. Phase Two Testing Compensation Claims Form;

5.Phase Two Action Fund Claims Form;

6. Phase Two Supplemental Fund Claims Form; and

7.Phase Two Special Needs Fund Claims Form.

These Claims Forms will be available online at the Settlement website and can be submitted to the
Claims Administrator electronically or on paper. The Claims Forms will vary depending on the applicable
Settlement Class membership category (Phase One or Phase Two) and on the specific fund or funds from

which compensation is sought.





The Claims Administrator will review each Claims Form, verify the completeness of the data it contains,
and follow up as appropriate, including to notify Settlement Class Members of the need to cure
deficiencies in their submission(s), if any. Based on the data in the Claims Forms, the Claims Administrator
will then confirm Settlement Class membership and category and determine the amount each Settlement
Class Member is owed from each fund from which the Settlement Class Member seeks compensation.
Should any portion of the Settlement Amount remain following the completion of the Claims Forms
process, it will be distributed to Qualifying Class Members on a pro rata basis as explained in the
Settlement Agreement and Allocation Procedures. None of any such remaining Settlement Amount shall

be returned to 3M.

6. Payment of Settlement Amount. 3M shall pay or cause to be paid the Settlement Funds in accordance

with the payment terms set forth in the Settlement Agreement and the Payment Schedule in Exhibit K to
that Agreement. If the Settlement does not become final, 3M is entitled to a refund of the unused

Settlement Amount, and no distribution to Settlement Class Members will occur.

/7. Release. All Settlement Class Members that have not excluded themselves from the Settlement Class
will release certain Claims against 3M, its affiliates, predecessors, and successors, and certain other
Persons and entities as set forth in the Settlement Agreement. This is referred to as the “Release.”
Generally speaking, the Release will prevent any Settlement Class Member from bringing any lawsuit

against 3M or making any Claims resolved by the Settlement Agreement.

The Release, as set forth in Section 11 of the Settlement Agreement, will be effective as to every
Settlement Class Member that has not excluded itself from the Settlement Class, regardless of whether or

not that Settlement Class Member files a Claims Form or receives any distribution from the Settlement.

8. Attorney Fee/Litigation Cost and Class Representative Awards. The Court will determine the amounts of
attorneys’ fees and expenses to award to Class Counsel from the Settlement Amount for investigating the
facts and law in the Action, the massive amount of litigation surrounding the Action, the trial preparations,
and negotiating the proposed Settlement. Class Counsel will request an award of attorneys’ fees and costs.
Class Counsel will make their request in a motion for attorneys’ fees and costs in accordance with Section
8.8 of the Settlement Agreement. Class Counsel intend to file a motion for an award of attorneys’ fees and
costs that will request that amounts due under the Common-Benefit Holdback Assessment provisions in
Case Management Order No. 3, private attorney/client contracts, and fees of Class Counsel all be paid from

the Qualified Settlement Fund.





Class Counsel will make their request in a motion to be filed with the Court not less than twenty (20)
calendar days before Objections are due pursuant to Paragraphs 8.4, 8.7,and 8.8 of the Settlement

Agreement. After the motion is filed, copies will be available from Class Counsel, the Settlement website

(here (https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-court documents/)), or the Court docket for City of

Camden, et al., v. 3M Company, No. 2:23-cv-03147-RMG.

Any attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses approved by the Court will be paid from the Settlement Amount.

9. Settlement Administration. All fees, costs, and expenses incurred in the administration and/or work by
the Notice Administrator, including fees, costs, and expenses of the Notice Administrator, as well as the
costs of distributing notice, shall be paid from the Settlement Funds. All fees, costs, and expenses incurred
in the administration and/or work by the Claims Administrator, including fees, costs, and expenses of the
Claims Administrator, shall be paid from the Settlement Amount. All fees, costs, and expenses incurred in
the administration and/or work by the Special Master, including fees, costs, and expenses of the Special
Master, shall be paid from the Settlement Amount. 3M shall have no obligation to pay any such fees, costs,

and expenses other than the Settlement Funds.

10. Dismissal of the Litigation. If the Settlement is approved by the Court and becomes final, all pending

Litigation will be dismissed with prejudice to the extent it contains Released Claims. If the Settlement is
not approved by the Court or does not become final for any reason, the Litigation will continue, and Class

Members will not be entitled to receive any Settlement Award.

THE PARAGRAPHS ABOVE PROVIDE ONLY A GENERAL SUMMARY OF THE TERMS OF THE
PROPOSED SETTLEMENT. YOU CAN REVIEW THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT ITSELF FOR
MORE INFORMATION ABOUT THE EXACT TERMS OF THE SETTLEMENT. THE SETTLEMENT
AGREEMENT IS AVAILABLE HERE (https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-court-

documents/)

= 5. How will the Settlement Amount be divided among Class Members?

1. Baseline Testing.

Phase One Qualifying Class Members

Each Phase One Qualifying Class Member must perform Baseline Testing. Baseline Testing requires each
Phase One Qualifying Class Member to test each of its Water Sources for PFAS; request from the

laboratory that performs the analyses all analytical results, including the actual numeric values of all



https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-court%20documents/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-court%20documents/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-court-documents/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-court-documents/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/3m-court-documents/



analytical results; and submit or cause the testing laboratory to submit detailed PFAS test results to the

Claims Administrator on a Claims Form(s) by dates specified below.

Any Water System tested on or before June 22,2023, using a state- or federal-approved methodology and
found to contain a Measurable Concentration of PFAS, does not need to be tested again for purposes of

Baseline Testing.

Any Water Source tested prior to January 1, 2019, that did not result in a Measurable Concentration of
PFAS, must retest to meet Baseline Testing requirements. If a Water Source tested January 1, 2019, or later,
and it did not result in a Measurable Concentration of PFAS, no further testing of that Water Source is

required.

Baseline Testing requires the following:

i. PFAS tests must be conducted at a minimum for PFAS analytes for which UCMR-5 requires testing,

and

ii. the PFAS test results must report any Measurable Concentration of PFAS, regardless of whether the

level of PFAS detected in the water is above or below UCMR-5’s relevant minimum reporting level.

Each Phase One Qualifying Class Member will verify in its Claims Form that it has tested all its Water
Sources for PFAS. Failure to test and submit Qualifying Test Results for Water Sources will disqualify Water

Sources from consideration for present and future payments.

Phase Two Qualifying Class Members

Each Phase Two Qualifying Class Member must perform Baseline Testing. Baseline Testing requires each
Phase Two Qualifying Class Member to test each of its Water Sources for PFAS; request from the laboratory
that performs the analyses all analytical results, including the actual numeric values of all analytical
results; and submit or cause the testing laboratory to submit detailed PFAS test results to the Claims
Administrator on a Claims Form within forty-five (45) calendar days after receiving the test results, absent
what the Claims Administrator deems in writing to be an extraordinary circumstance, and no later than

July 1, 2026.

Baseline Testing requires the following:

i. PFAS tests must be conducted at a minimum for PFAS analytes for which UCMR-5

requires testing, and





ii. the PFAS test results must report any Measurable Concentration of PFAS, regardless of whether the

level of PFAS detected in the water is above or below UCMR-5’s relevant minimum reporting level.

Each Phase Two Qualifying Class Member will verify in its Claims Form that it has tested all its Water
Sources for PFAS. Failure to test and submit Qualifying Test Results for Water Sources will disqualify Water

Sources from consideration for present and future payments.

A Phase Two Qualifying Class Member that does not fully and timely satisfy these Phase Two Baseline
Testing requirements shall be presumed to lack any Impacted Water Source and thus may be declared by

the Claims Administrator to be ineligible to receive further payment from Phase Two.

Baseline Testing_ may be performed by any laboratory accredited or certified by a state government or

federal regulatory agency for PFAS analysis that uses any state or federal agency approved or -validated

PFAS analytical method that is consistent with (or stricter) than the requirements of UCMR-5.

Class Counsel has arranged for discounted testing with the following_laboratory to assist Class Members

with Baseline Testing. The listed laboratory will forward the test results to the Claims Administrator. There

is no requirement to use the listed laboratory.

Eurofins

Telephone Number: 916-374-4499

Website: https://www.eurofinsus.com/environment-testing/pfas-testing/pfas-water-provider-

settlement/ (https://www.eurofinsus.com/environment-testing/pfas-testing/pfas-water-provider-

settlement/)

2. Base Scores for Water Sources.

The Allocation Procedures are designed to allocate money based on factors that dictate the costs of water
treatment. It is well documented in the scientific literature and well known throughout the public water
industry that the costs associated with water treatment consist of 1) capital costs and 2) operations and
maintenance costs. Capital costs are mainly driven by the Impacted Water Source’s flow rate. Operations
and maintenance costs are mainly driven by flow rate and the levels of PFAS in the water. The Allocation
Procedures utilize proxies for capital costs and operations and maintenance costs to generate a Base Score
for each Impacted Water Source. The Claims Administrator will input the flow rates and PFAS
concentrations from the Claims Forms into an EPA-derived formula that calculates a Base Score for each

Impacted Water Source.



https://www.eurofinsus.com/environment-testing/pfas-testing/pfas-water-provider-settlement/

https://www.eurofinsus.com/environment-testing/pfas-testing/pfas-water-provider-settlement/

https://www.eurofinsus.com/environment-testing/pfas-testing/pfas-water-provider-settlement/

https://www.eurofinsus.com/environment-testing/pfas-testing/pfas-water-provider-settlement/



3. Adjusted Base Scores.

Certain Class Members will be eligible for increases, or bumps, to their Base Scores. Based on the Claims
Forms submitted, the Claims Administrator will determine if a Class Member is eligible for three available
enhancements to the score: the Litigation Bump, the Public Water Provider Bellwether Bump (or
Bellwether Bump), and the Regulatory Bump. A Class Member may qualify for none, one, or multiple bumps.
The Litigation Bump applies to all Qualifying Class Members that have a pending lawsuit filed in a state
or federal court asserting Claims against 3M related to alleged PFAS contamination of Drinking Water in
Public Water Systems. The Bellwether Bump applies to the Impacted Water Sources that are owned or
operated by Qualifying Class Members that served as one of the ten Public Water Provider Bellwether
Plaintiffs. The Regulatory Bump will apply when an Impacted Water Source exceeds (i) an applicable state
Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) for a PFAS analyte or (ii) the proposed federal MCL for a PFAS analyte.
The Claims Administrator will consider all Proposed Federal PFAS MCL and existing state MCLs for PFAS
chemicals existing on the date the Court issues a Final Approval to determine if an Impacted Water Source
has ever exceeded any applicable standard during the Class Period. After the Claims Administrator applies
the appropriate bumps to each Impacted Water Source, the Claims Administrator will use the new Adjusted

Base Scores to determine how much of the Settlement Amount each Impacted Water Source will receive.

4. Settlement Awards.

The information required to calculate Settlement Awards is not publicly available and is only obtainable
through the Claims Forms submitted by Class Members. Thus, the Settlement Awards that each Class
Member will receive is not determinable until the Claims Administrator analyzes all the Claims Forms

submitted by the Claims Form deadline.

5. Special Needs Funds.

Special Needs Funds will be established by the Claims Administrator for Phase One and Phase Two
Qualifying Class Members that have expended monetary resources on extraordinary efforts to address
PFAS detections in their Impacted Water Sources. Class Members can file a Special Needs Fund Claims

Form to be considered for reimbursement of these expenditures.

6. Supplemental Funds.

The Claims Administrator will also establish Phase One and Phase Two Supplemental Funds so that a
Qualifying Class Member that did not initially exceed a state or federal MCL when it submitted its Claims

Form can request additional funds if it later exceeds a state or federal MCL, and so that a Qualifying Class





Member with a Water Source that initially did not have a Qualifying Test Result showing a Measurable

Concentration of PFAS and later had such a Qualifying Test Result can request additional funds.

= 6.Who represents the Class?

The Court has appointed the attorneys from the following law firms to act as counsel for the Class (referred to

as “Class Counsel” or “Plaintiffs’ Counsel”) for purposes of the proposed Settlement:

Scott Summy Michael A. London Paul J. Napoli
Baron & Budd, P.C. Douglas & London Napoli Shkolnik
3102 Oak Lawn Ave, Ste. 1100 59 Maiden Lane, 6th Floor 1302 Av. Ponce de Leon
Dallas, Texas 75219 New York, NY 10038 San Juan, Puerto Rico 00907

Elizabeth A. Fegan Joseph F.Rice
Fegan Scott LLC Motley Rice
150 S. Wacker Dr, 24th floor 28 Bridgeside Blvd.
Chicago, IL 60606 Mount Pleasant, SC 29464

= 7.What are the Reasons for the Proposed Settlement?

Class Counsel, Class Representatives, and 3M have engaged in extensive, arm’s-length negotiations, including
negotiations facilitated by a Court-appointed mediator, and have, subject to the Preliminary and Final
Approval of the Court, reached an agreement to settle and release all Released Claims, on the terms and

conditions set forth in the Settlement Agreement.

Class Representatives and Class Counsel have concluded, after a thorough investigation and after carefully
considering the relevant circumstances, including the Claims asserted, the legal and factual defenses thereto,
the applicable law, the burdens, risks, uncertainties, and expense of litigation, as well as the fair, cost-
effective, and assured method of resolving the Claims, that it would be in the best interests of Settlement
Class Members to participate in the Settlement in order to avoid the uncertainties of litigation and to ensure
that the benefits reflected herein are obtained for Settlement Class Members. Further, Class Representatives
and Class Counsel consider the Settlement set forth herein to be fair, reasonable, and adequate and in the

best interests of Settlement Class Members.





3M, while continuing to deny any violation, wrongdoing, or liability with respect to any and all Claims
asserted in the Litigation and all Released Claims, either on its part or on the part of any of the Released
Parties, entered into the Settlement Agreement to avoid the expense, inconvenience, and distraction of

further litigation.

= 8.What do you need to do now?

YOU CAN PARTICIPATE IN THE SETTLEMENT. You must file a Claims Form to be eligible to receive a payment
under the Settlement Agreement. You can submit your Claims Form online at here

(https://participation.pfaswatersettlement.com/), or you can download, complete, and mail your Claims Form

to the Claims Administrator at AFFF Public Water System Claims, PO Box 4466, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821.
The deadline for a Phase One Settlement Class Member to submit a Phase One Public Water System
Settlement Claims Form is 60 days following the Effective Date, and the deadline for a Phase Two Settlement

Class Member to submit a Phase Two Action Fund Claims Form is July 31, 2026.

Regardless of whether you file a Claims Form or receive any distribution under the Settlement, unless you
timely Opt-Out as described below, you will be bound by the Settlement and any judgment or other final
disposition related to the Settlement, including the Release set forth in the Settlement Agreement, and will

be precluded from pursuing Claims against 3M separately if those Claims are within the scope of the Release.

YOU CAN OPT-OUT OF THE SETTLEMENT. If you do not wish to be a Settlement Class Member, and do not
want to participate in the Settlement and receive funds from the Settlement, you may exclude yourself from
the Settlement Class by completing and mailing a notice of intention to Opt-Out (referred to as a “Request for
Exclusion” or an “Opt-Out”). Anyone within the Settlement Class that wishes to Opt-Out of the Settlement
Class and Settlement must file a written and signed statement entitled “Request for Exclusion” with the
Notice Administrator, provide service in accordance with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 5, and comply with

all Opt-Out provisions of the Settlement Agreement.

To be treated as valid, the Request for Exclusion must be served on the Notice Administrator, the Special

Master, the Claims Administrator, Counsel for 3M, and Class Counsel at the addresses below.

Notice Administrator:



https://participation.pfaswatersettlement.com/

https://participation.pfaswatersettlement.com/



In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Products Liability Litigation
¢/o 3M Notice Administrator
1650 Arch Street, Suite 2210
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Special Master:

Matthew Garrretson
Wolf/Garretson LLC
P.0. Box 2806
Park City, UT 84060

Claims Administrator:

AFFF Public Water System Claims

P.O.Box 4466
Baton Rouge, LA 70821

Counsel for 3M:
Kevin H. Rhodes
Executive Vice President and Chief Thomas J. Perrelli
Richard F. Bulger
Legal Affairs Officer Jenner & Block LLP
Mayer Brown LLP
Legal Affairs Department 1099 New York Avenue, N.W.,
71 South Wacker Drive
3M Company Suite 900
Chicago, ILlinois 60606
3M Center, 220-9E-01 Washington, DC 20001-4412

St. Paul, MN 55144-1000

Class Counsel:

Scott Summy Michael A. London Paul J. Napoli
Baron & Budd, P.C. Douglas & London Napoli Shkolnik
3102 Oak Lawn Ave, Ste. 1100 59 Maiden Lane, 6th Floor 1302 Av. Ponce de Leon
Dallas, Texas 75219 New York, NY 10038 San Juan, Puerto Rico 00907





Elizabeth A. Fegan Joseph F.Rice

Fegan Scott LLC Motley Rice
150 S.Wacker Dr, 24th floor 28 Bridgeside Blvd.
Chicago, IL 60606 Mount Pleasant, SC 29464

The Request for Exclusion must be received by the Notice Administrator no later than December 11, 2023.

The Request for Exclusion must certify, under penalty of perjury in accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, that the

filer has been legally authorized to exclude the Person from the Settlement and must provide:
« an affidavit or other proof of the Settlement Class Member’s standing;
« the filer's name, address, telephone, facsimile number and email address (if available); and

 the name, address, telephone number, and e-mail address (if available) of the Person whose exclusion is

requested.

Any Person that submits a timely and valid Request for Exclusion shall not (i) be bound by any orders or
judgments effecting the Settlement; (ii) be entitled to any of the relief or other benefits provided under the
Settlement Agreement; (iii) gain any rights by virtue of the Settlement Agreement; or (iv) be entitled to

submit an Objection.

If you own or operate more than one Public Water System and are authorized to determine whether to submit
Requests for Exclusion on those Public Water Systems’ behalf, you may submit a Request for Exclusion on
behalf of some of those Public Water Systems but not the other(s). You must submit a Request for an
Exclusion on behalf of each such Public Water System that you wish to Opt-Out of the Settlement Class. Any
Public Water System that is not specifically identified in a Request for Exclusion will remain in the Settlement

Class.

Any Settlement Class Member that does not submit a timely and valid Request for Exclusion submits to the
jurisdiction of the Court and, unless the Settlement Class Member submits an Objection that complies with
the provisions of the Settlement Agreement, shall waive and forfeit any and all objections the Settlement

Class Member may have asserted.

YOU CAN OBJECT OR TAKE OTHER ACTIONS. Any Settlement Class Member who has not successfully excluded
itself (“Opted-Out”) may object to the Settlement. Any Settlement Class Member that wishes to object to the

Settlement or to an award of fees or expenses to Class Counsel must file a written and signed statement





designated “Objection” with the Clerk of the Court, provide service on 3M’s Counsel and Class Counsel at the

addresses below in accordance with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 5, and comply with all Objections

provisions of the Settlement Agreement. Objections submitted by any Settlement Class Member to incorrect

locations shall not be valid.

Clerk of the Court:

Clerk, United States District Court for the District of South Carolina

Counsel for 3M:

Kevin H.Rhodes
Executive Vice President and Chief
Legal Affairs Officer
Legal Affairs Department
3M Company
3M Center, 220-9E-01
St. Paul, MN 55144-1000

Class Counsel:

Scott Summy
Baron & Budd, P.C.

3102 Oak Lawn Ave, Ste. 1100 59 Maiden Lane, 6th Floor
New York, NY 10038

Dallas, Texas 75219

Elizabeth A. Fegan
Fegan Scott LLC
150 S. Wacker Dr, 24th floor
Chicago, IL 60606

85 Broad Street

Charleston, SC 29401

Thomas J. Perrelli
Jenner & Block LLP
1099 New York Avenue, N.W.,
Suite 900
Washington, DC 20001-4412

Richard F. Bulger
Mayer Brown LLP
71 South Wacker Drive
Chicago, Illinois 60606

Michael A. London
Douglas & London

Paul J. Napoli
Napoli Shkolnik
1302 Av. Ponce de Leon
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00907

Joseph F.Rice
Motley Rice
28 Bridgeside Blvd.
Mount Pleasant, SC 29464

All Objections must certify, under penalty of perjury in accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, that the filer has

been legally authorized to object on behalf of the Settlement Class Member and must provide:





« an affidavit or other proof of the Settlement Class Member’s standing;

« the filer's name, address, telephone, facsimile number and email address (if

available);

e the name, address, telephone, facsimile number and email address (if available) of

the Person whose Objection is submitted;

« all objections asserted by the Settlement Class Member and the specific reason(s)
for each objection, including all legal support and evidence the Settlement Class

Member wishes to bring to the Court’s attention;

 an indication as to whether the Settlement Class Member wishes to appear at the

Final Fairness Hearing; and

« the identity of all witnesses the Settlement Class Member may call to testify.

The deadline to submit an Objection is November 11, 2023.

Settlement Class Members may object either on their own or through any attorney hired at their own
expense. If a Settlement Class Member is represented by counsel, the attorney must file a notice of
appearance with the Clerk of Court no later than November 11, 2023 and serve such notice in accordance

with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 5 within the same time period.

Any Settlement Class Member that fully complies with the provisions for objecting may, at the Court’s
discretion, appear at the Final Fairness Hearing to object to the Settlement or to the award of fees and costs
to Class Counsel. Any Settlement Class Member that fails to comply with the provisions of the Settlement
Agreement for objecting shall waive and forfeit any and all objections the Settlement Class Member may

have asserted.

= 9.What will happen at the Final Fairness Hearing?

Before deciding whether to grant final approval to the Settlement, the Court will hold the Final Fairness
Hearing in Courtroom #1, ). Waties Waring Judicial Center, 85 Broad Street, Charleston, South Carolina 29401,
on February 2, 2024, at 10:00 AM EST. At that time, the Court will determine, among other things, (i) whether
the Settlement should be granted final approval as fair, reasonable, and adequate, (ii) whether the Action

should be dismissed with prejudice pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, (iii) whether the





Settlement Class should be conclusively certified for settlement purposes only, (iv) whether Settlement Class
Members should be bound by the Release set forth in the Settlement Agreement, (v) the amount of attorneys’
fees and costs to be awarded to Class Counsel, if any, and (vi) the amount of the award to be made to the
Class Representatives for their services, if any. The Final Fairness Hearing may be postponed, adjourned, or

continued by Order of the Court without further notice to the Class.

= 10. How can you get Additional Information about the Action, the Proposed Settlement, the Settlement Agreement, or
the Notice?

The descriptions of the Action, the Settlement, and the Settlement Agreement in this Notice are only a
general summary. In the event of a conflict between this Notice and the Settlement Agreement, the terms of
the Settlement Agreement control. ALl papers filed in this case, including the full Settlement Agreement, are
available for you to inspect and copy (at your cost) at the office of the Clerk of Court, the Settlement website,
or online through the Court’s electronic docket. A copy of the Settlement Agreement may also be obtained
from Class Counsel by contacting them at the addresses or telephone numbers set forth above. Any questions
concerning this Notice, the Settlement Agreement, or the Settlement may be directed to Class Counsel. You

may also seek the advice and counsel of your own attorney, at your own expense, if you desire.

DO NOT WRITE OR TELEPHONE THE COURT, THE CLERK’S OFFICE, OR DEFENDANT WITH ANY QUESTIONS
ABOUT THIS NOTICE, THE SETTLEMENT, OR THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT.

= 11.What are the Addresses you may need?

If to the Notice Administrator:

In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Products Liability Litigation
¢/o 3M Notice Administrator
1650 Arch Street, Suite 2210
Philadelphia, PA 19103

If to the Claims Administrator:

AFFF Public Water System Claims

P.O.Box 4466
Baton Rouge, LA 70821





If to the Clerk of the Court:

Clerk, United States District Court for the District of South Carolina
85 Broad Street
Charleston, SC 29401

If to the Special Master:

Matthew Garrretson
Wolf/Garretson LLC
P.0. Box 2806
Park City, UT 84060

If to the Class Representatives, Class Counsel, or Settlement Class Members:

Scott Summy Michael A. London Paul J. Napoli
Baron & Budd, P.C. Douglas & London Napoli Shkolnik
3102 Oak Lawn Ave, Ste. 1100 59 Maiden Lane, 6th Floor 1302 Av. Ponce de Leon
Dallas, Texas 75219 New York, NY 10038 San Juan, Puerto Rico 00907
Elizabeth A. Fegan Joseph F.Rice
Fegan Scott LLC Motley Rice

150 S. Wacker Dr, 24th floor 28 Bridgeside Blvd.
Chicago, IL 60606 Mount Pleasant, SC 29464

If to Counsel for 3M:

Kevin H. Rhodes

Executive Vice President and Chief Thomas J. Perrelli
Richard F. Bulger
Legal Affairs Officer Jenner & Block LLP
Mayer Brown LLP
Legal Affairs Department 1099 New York Avenue, N.W.,
) 71 South Wacker Drive
3M Company Suite 900
) Chicago, Illinois 60606
3M Center, 220-9E-01 Washington, DC 20001-4412

St. Paul, MN 55144-1000





= 12.What Information must be Included in any Document you send regarding the Action?

In sending any document to the Notice Administrator, Claims Administrator, the Court, Class Counsel, or 3M’s

Counsel, you must include the following case name and identifying number on any documents and on the

outside of the envelope:

In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Products Liability Litigation, MDL No. 2:18-mn-2873 (D.S.C.), this

document relates to: City of Camden, et al., v. 3M Company, No. 2:23-cv-03147-RMG.

You must also include your full name, address, email address, and a telephone number where you can be

reached.

= 13.What Important Deadlines do you need to know?

Deadline Description
Deadline to Object
Deadline to Opt Out
Court’s Final Fairness Hearing

Phase One Public Water System Settlement

Claims Form

Phase One Special Needs Claims Form

Phase Two Testing Claims Form

Phase Two Baseline Testing

Phase Two Action Fund Claims Form

Phase Two Special Needs Claims Form

Deadline Date
11/11/2023
12/11/2023

2/2/2024 at 10:00 AM EST

60 Days after the Effective Date

45 Days after the Phase One Public Water System Claims
Form Deadline

1/1/2026

45 Days after receiving test results but no later than
7/1/2026

7/31/2026

8/1/2026





Phase One Supplemental Fund Claims Form 12/31/2030
Phase Two Supplemental Fund Claims Form 12/31/2030
This website is supervised by Counsel and the Court and is controlled by the Claims Administrator that handles all aspects

of the claims processing. This is the only authorized website for this litigation. Other websites may contain incorrect

information about this litigation and should not be relied upon. If you have questions, please contact the Claims

Administrator.

Privacy Policy (https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/privacy-policy/)

Copyright © EisnerAmper



https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/privacy-policy/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/privacy-policy/



NOTICE OF DUPONT CL ACTI ETTLEME

IN RE: AQUEOUS FILM FORMING FOAMS
PRODUCT LIABILITY LITIGATION
United States District Court, District of South Carolina — Charleston Division
MDL No. 2:18-mn-2873
Case No. 2:23-cv-03230

PLEASE NOTE, the enclosed correspondence relates to the Settlement with
The Chemours Company, The Chemours Company FC, LLC, DuPont de
Nemours, Inc., Corteva, Inc., and EI. DuPont de Nemours and Company

n/k/a EIDP, Inc. (each a “Settling Defendant”).

YOU MAY RECEIVE ADDITIONAL CORRESPONDENCE RELATING
TO ADDITIONAL SETTLEMENTS WITH OR JUDGMENTS
INVOLVING OTHER DEFENDANT(S).

Please be aware that documents associated with one Settling Defendant may appear
similar to documents associated with another Settling Defendant. However,

each Settlement has its own specific terms and conditions, and each set of

documents should be carefully reviewed with this in mind. Please visit
www.PFASWaterSettlement.com for more information and to review
settlement-related documents.

SETTLEMENT WEBSITE FOR FILING YOUR CLAIM
FOR SETTLEMENT PAYMENT

FA TERSE E M

NOTICE ID: RBM-784071

BN

6561





FOLD OVER TOP OF ENVELOPE.

Dupont Class Action Settlement
Settlement Administrator

1650 ARCH ST STE 2210
PHILADELPHIA PA 19103-2041

6561

USPS CERTIFIED MAIL™

$7.42 US POSTAGE [##

FIRST-CLASS
Sep 05 2023

Mailed from ZIP 19103
2 OZ FIRST-CLASS MAIL LETTER

RATE

USPS CERTIFIED MAIL es2rs

9414 8118 9876 5411 2638 88

CHRISTEN, CANDEE - CITY CLERK
STOUGHTON WATERWORKS

207 SFORREST ST

STOUGHTON WI53589-1718

FOLD OVER TOP OF ENVELOPE






Notice Administrator Angeion Group Announces Proposed Settlement in Aqueous Film-
Forming Foams Product Liability Litigation Involving Public Water Systems

PHILADELPHIA, Sep. DD, 2023 /PR Newswire/- Angeion Group today announces a settlement
has been reached with Defendants in a product liability class action lawsuit involving all Public
Water Systems in the US that draw or otherwise collect from any water source that, on or before
June 30, 2023, was tested or otherwise analyzed for PFAS and found to contain any PFAS at any
level; and

All Public Water Systems in the US that, as of June 30, 2023, are (i) subject to the monitoring
rules set forth in the U.S. EPA’s Fifth Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule (“UCMR 57)
(i.e., “large” systems serving more than 10,000 people and “small” systems serving between 3,300
and 10,000 people), or (ii) required under applicable state or federal law to test or otherwise
analyze any of their water sources or the water they provide for PFAS before the deadline of
sample collection under UCMR 5.

Public Water System means a system for the provision of water to the public for human
consumption through pipes or other constructed conveyances if such system has at least fifteen
(15) service connections or regularly serves at least twenty-five (25) individuals. A “Public Water
System” shall include the owner and/or operator of that system and any public entity that is legally
responsible for funding (by statute, regulation, other law, or contract), other than a State or the
federal government, a Public Water System described in such Paragraph or has authority to bring
a claim on behalf of such a Public Water System.

What does the Settlement provide?

The Settling Defendants have agreed to pay $1,185,000,000, subject to final approval of the
Settlement by the Court and certain other conditions specified in the Settlement Agreement. In
no event shall the Settling Defendants be required to pay any amounts under the Settlement
Agreement above the Settlement Amount. Any fees, costs, or expenses payable under the
Settlement Agreement shall be paid out of, and shall not be in addition to, the Settlement
Amount. Each Settlement Class Member who has not excluded themself from the Class will be
eligible to receive a settlement check(s) from the Claims Administrator based on the Allocation
Procedures developed by Class Counsel, which are subject to final approval by the Court as fair
and reasonable and which are under the oversight of the Special Master.

How do I get a payment from the Settlement?

You must file a Claims Form to be eligible to receive a payment under the Settlement. You can
submit your Claims Form online at www.PFASWaterSettlement.com, or you can download,
complete and mail your Claims Form to the Claims Administrator at AFFF Public Water System
Claims, PO Box 4466, Baton Rouge, LA 70821. The deadlines to submit a Claim Forms are
illustrated below. Regardless of whether you file a Claims Form or receive any distribution
under the Settlement, unless you timely opt out as described below, you will be bound by any





judgment or other final disposition of the Released Claims, including the Release set forth in the
Settlement Agreement, and will be precluded from pursuing claims against the Settling
Defendants separately if those Claims are within the scope of the Release.

What are my rights?

If you are a Class member and do nothing, you will be bound by the Settlement and will give up
any right to sue The Chemours Company, The Chemours Company FC, LLC, DuPont de
Nemours, Inc., Corteva, Inc., and E.I. DuPont de Nemours and Company n/k/a EIDP, Inc. in a
separate lawsuit related to the legal claims in this lawsuit. If you want to keep your right to
separately sue The Chemours Company, The Chemours Company FC, LLC, DuPont de
Nemours, Inc., Corteva, Inc., and E.I. DuPont de Nemours and Company n/k/a EIDP, Inc. you
must exclude yourself from the Settlement by DECEMBER 4, 2023. If you do not exclude
yourself, you may object to the Settlement and/or ask for permission to appear and speak at the
Fairness Hearing but only if you do so by NOVEMBER 4, 2023. Complete information is
available at www.PFASWaterSettlement.com.

The Court’s hearing.

The Court will hold the Final Fairness Hearing in Hon. Sol Blatt, Jr., Courtroom of the United
States District Court for the District of South Carolina, located at 85 Broad Street, Charleston,
South Carolina 29401, on December 14, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. At that time, the Court will
determine, among other things, (i) whether the Settlement should be granted final approval as
fair, reasonable, and adequate, (ii) whether the Released Claims should be dismissed with
prejudice pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, (iii) whether the Settlement Class
should be conclusively certified, (iv) whether Settlement Class Members should be bound by the
Release set forth in the Settlement Agreement, (v) the amount of attorneys’ fees and costs to be
awarded to Class Counsel, if any, and (vi) the amount of the award to be made to the Class
Representatives for their services, if any. The Final Fairness Hearing may be postponed,
adjourned, or continued by Order of the Court without further notice to the Class.

For more information, visit www.PFASWaterSettlement.com or call toll-free 1-855-714-4341.

Media Contact:

Angeion Group

Shiri Lasman

(215) 563-4116

SOURCE: ANGEION GROUP





Aqueous Film-Forming Foam (AFFF) Product Liability Litigation (MDL 2873)
(https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/)

DISTRICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA, MASTER DOCKET NO. 2:18-MN-2873-RMG

M
-

Frequently Asked Questions (DuPont)

FAQs
= 1.What is the Purpose of the Notice?

The purpose of the Notice is (i) to advise you that a proposed settlement (referred to as the “Settlement”) has

been reached with the defendants The Chemours Company, The Chemours Company FC, LLC, DuPont de
Nemours, Inc., Corteva, Inc., and E.I. DuPont de Nemours and Company n/k/a EIDP, Inc. (each, a “Settling
Defendant” and collectively, “Settling Defendants”) in the above-captioned lawsuit (the “Action”) pending in
the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina (the “Court”); (ii) to summarize your rights in
connection with the Settlement; and (iii) to inform you of a Court hearing to consider whether to grant final

approval of the Settlement, to be held on December 14,2023 at 10:00 AM EST, before the Honorable Richard

M. Gergel, United States District Judge of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina,
located at 85 Broad Street, Charleston, South Carolina 29401.

If you received this Notice about the proposed Settlement in the mail, then you have been identified as a

potential Settlement Class Member according to the Parties’ records. Please read this Notice carefully.

= 2.What is the Action about?

Class Representatives are Public Water Systems that have filed actions against Settling Defendants and other
defendants, which actions are currently pending in the above- captioned multi-district litigation, In Re:

Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Products Liability Litigation, MDL No. 2:18-mn-2873 (D.S.C.) (the “MDL").



https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/



Class Representatives have alleged that they have suffered harm resulting from the presence of PFAS in
Drinking Water and/or are required to monitor for the presence of PFAS in Drinking Water and that Settling

Defendants are liable for damages and other forms of relief to compensate for such harm and costs.

In addition to the MDL, certain other cases are pending against Settling Defendants asserting Released
Claims (collectively with the MDL, all pending litigation brought by or on behalf of a Releasing Person against

a Released Person involved Released Claims shall be referred to as the “Litigation”).

There are numerous defendants in addition to Settling Defendants in the MDL and the cases comprising the
Litigation. Those other defendants are not part of this Settlement Agreement. The Class Representatives and
Settlement Class Members will remain able to seek separate and additional PFAS-related recoveries from
those other defendants in addition to the Settlement Amount here. The Parties agree, and Class Counsel have
a reasonable basis to believe, that the Settling Defendants collectively comprise a very small share of MDL

defendants’ total alleged PFAS-related liabilities, on the order of approximately 3-7% or less.

The Settling Defendants deny the allegations in the Litigation and all other allegations relating to the
Released Claims and deny that they have any liability to Class Representatives, the Settlement Class, or any
Settlement Class Member for any Claims of any kind, and would assert a number of legal and factual defenses
against such Claims if they were litigated to conclusion (including against certification of any purported class

for litigation purposes).

This Notice should not be understood as an expression of any opinion by the Court as to the merits of the

Class Representatives’ claims or the Settling Defendants’ defenses.

= 3.Who is Part of the Proposed Settlement?

The Class Representatives and Settling Defendants have entered into the Settlement Agreement to resolve
Claims relating to PFAS contamination of Public Water Systems. The Court has preliminarily approved the
Settlement Agreement as fair, reasonable, and adequate. The Court will hold a Final Fairness Hearing, as

described below, to consider whether to make the Settlement final.

The Settlement Class consists of each of the following:

(a) ALL Public Water Systems in the United States of America that draw or otherwise collect from any
Water Source that, on or before June 30, 2023, was tested or otherwise analyzed for PFAS and found to

contain any PFAS at any level;





ND

(b) ALl Public Water Systems in the United States of America that, as of June 30, 2023, are (i) subject to
the monitoring rules set forth in UCMR 5 (i.e., “large” systems serving more than 10,000 people and
“small” systems serving between 3,300 and 10,000 people), or (ii) required under applicable state or
federal law to test or otherwise analyze any of their Water Sources or the water they provide for PFAS

before the UCMR 5 Deadline.

Not all Public Water Systems are potential Settlement Class Members: specifically, Public Water Systems that

are owned and operated by a State or the federal government, and cannot sue or be sued in their own name,

as well as certain other systems set forth below, are expressly excluded from the Settlement Class. In

addition, Public Water Systems that do not fall within the Settlement Class definition set forth above are not

Settlement Class Members.

The following are excluded from the Settlement Class:

a) Any Public Water System that is located in Bladen, Brunswick, Columbus, Cumberland, New Hanover,
Pender, or Robeson counties in North Carolina; provided, however, that any such system will be

included within the Settlement Class if it so requests.

b) Any Public Water System that is owned and operated by a State government and cannot sue or be

sued in its own name, as listed in Exhibit | to the Settlement Agreement.

c) Any Public Water System that is owned and operated by the federal government and cannot sue or

be sued in its own name, as listed in Exhibit J to the Settlement Agreement.

d) Any privately owned well or surface water system that is not owned by, used by, or otherwise part of,

and does not draw water from, a Public Water System within the Settlement Class.

“UCMR 5” means the United States Environmental Protection Agency’s (“U.S. EPA") fifth Unregulated

Contaminant Monitoring Rule, published at 86 Fed.Reg. 73131.

“UCMR 5 Deadline” means (i) December 31, 2025, or (ii) such later date to which the deadline for completion

of sample collection under UCMR 5 may be extended by the U.S. EPA.

“Water Source” means any groundwater well, surface water intake, and any other intake point from which a

Public Water System draws or collects Drinking Water, including water it provides or collects, treats or stores

for distribution to customers or users.





= 4.What are the Key Terms of the Proposed Settlement?

The key terms of the proposed Settlement are as follows:

1. Settlement Amount. Settling Defendants have agreed to pay the total and maximum dollar amount of

one billion one hundred eighty-five million dollars ($1,185,000,000) (the “Settlement Amount”), subject to
final approval of the Settlement by the Court and certain other conditions specified in the Settlement
Agreement. In no event shall the Settling Defendants be required under the Settlement Agreement to pay
any amounts above the Settlement Amount. Any fees, costs, expenses, or incentive awards payable under

the Settlement Agreement shall be paid out of, and shall not be in addition to, the Settlement Amount.

2. Settlement Benefit. Each Settlement Class Member who has not excluded itself from the Settlement

Class will be eligible to receive a settlement check(s) from the Claims Administrator based on the
Allocation Procedures developed by Class Counsel, which are subject to final approval by the Court as fair
and reasonable. Each Settlement Class Member’s settlement amount will be based on information
submitted by Settlement Class Members in their Claims Forms and will depend on each Impacted Water
Source’s flow rate and level of concentration as compared to all other Settlement Class Members’
Impacted Water Sources. The allocation process is described below. Precisely how much each Settlement
Class Member will receive is unknown at this time because it depends on all the information submitted by

all Settlement Class Members.

3. Settlement Administration. The Court has appointed a Special Master and Claims Administrator

pursuant to Rule 53 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure (FRCP) to oversee the allocation of the
Settlement Funds. They will adhere to their duties set forth herein and in the Settlement Agreement. The
Special Master will generally oversee the Claims Administrator and make any final decision(s) related to
any appeals by Qualifying Settlement Class Members and any ultimate decision(s) presented by the Claims
Administrator. The Claims Administrator will perform the actual modeling, allocation and payment
distribution functions. The Claims Administrator will seek assistance from the Special Master when
needed. The Claims Administrator may seek the assistance of the Plaintiffs’ Executive Committee (“PEC”)

consultants who assisted in providing guidance in designing the Allocation Procedures.

Allocation Procedures Overview





The Allocation Procedures were designed to fairly and equitably allocate the Settlement Funds among
Qualifying Settlement Class Members to resolve PFAS contamination of Public Water Systems in such a way
that reflects factors used in designing a water treatment system in connection with such contamination. Both
the volume of contaminated water and the degree of contamination are the main factors in calculating the
cost of treating PFAS contamination; the Allocation Procedures use scientific and EPA- derived formulas to
arrive at Allocated Amounts that proportionally compensate Qualifying Settlement Class Members for PFAS-

related treatment. The Allocation Procedures are appended as Exhibit C to the Settlement Agreement.

1. Claims Form Process. The Claims Administrator will verify that each Entity that submits a Claims Form is

a Qualifying Settlement Class Member and will confirm the category into which the Settlement Class

Member falls.

 Settlement Class Members fall into one of two categories: Phase One Qualifying Settlement Class
Members or Phase Two Qualifying Settlement Class Members. Phase One Qualifying Settlement Class
Members will be allocated 55% of the Settlement Funds and Phase Two Qualifying Class Members will

be allocated 45% of the Settlement Funds.

> A Phase One Qualifying Settlement Class Member is a Public Water System that draws or
otherwise collects from any Water Source that tested or otherwise analyzed on or before June 30,
2023 and found to contain any PFAS at any level. The Claims Administrator will establish five
separate payment sources from which Phase One Qualifying Settlement Class Members may receive
Settlement Funds. Such Settlement Class Members will be eligible for compensation from at least
one and potentially more of the payment sources. These sources, and the criteria the Claims
Administrator will use to determine the amount each Phase One Qualifying Settlement Class

Member will receive from them, are described below and fully in the Allocation Procedures.

> A Phase Two Qualifying Settlement Class Member is a Public Water System that is not a Phase One
Qualifying Settlement Class Member and is subject to the monitoring rules set forth in UCMR 5 or
other applicable state or federal law. The Claims Administrator will establish five separate payment
sources from which Phase Two Qualifying Settlement Class Members may receive Settlement Funds.
Such Settlement Class Members will be eligible for compensation from at least one and potentially
more of these payment sources, one of which will be to offset the costs of PFAS testing. These
sources, and the criteria the Claims Administrator will use to determine the amount each Phase Two
Qualifying Settlement Class Member will receive from them, are described below and fully in the

Allocation Procedures.





The initial step for establishing Settlement Class Membership and eligibility for compensation from any of
the Settlement Funds is the completion of the Claimant Information Form. After a Person completes the
Public Water System Settlement Claims Form, the Settlement Class Member will be provided with additional
relevant Claims Form(s) for the payment sources for which the Settlement Class Member may be eligible. The

term “Claims Form” may refer to any of seven separate forms:
1. Phase One Public Water System Claims Form,;
2.Phase One Supplemental Fund Claims Form;
3.Phase One Special Needs Fund Claims Form;
4. Phase Two Testing Claims Form;
5. Phase Two Public Water System Claims Form;
6. Phase Two Supplemental Fund Claims Form; and
7.Phase Two Special Needs Fund Claims Form

These Claims Forms will be available online and can be submitted to the Claims Administrator electronically
or on paper. The Claims Forms will vary depending on the applicable Settlement Class Membership category
(Phase One or Phase Two) and on the specific sources from which compensation is sought. The Claims Forms

are appended as Exhibit D to the Settlement Agreement.

The Claims Administrator will review each Claims Form, verify the completeness of the data it contains, and
follow up as appropriate, including to notify Settlement Class Members of the need to cure deficiencies in
their submission(s), if any. Based on this data, the Claims Administrator will then confirm whether each
Settlement Class Member is a Phase One Qualifying Settlement Class Member or Phase Two Qualifying
Settlement Class Member and determine the amount each Settlement Class Member is owed from each
payment source from which the Settlement Class Member seeks compensation. Should any portion of the
Settlement Funds remain following the completion of the Claims process, they will be distributed to certain
Qualifying Settlement Class Members in a pro rata fashion in proportion to their respective Allocated

Amounts. None of any such remaining Settlement Funds shall be returned to the Settling Defendants.

4. Payment of Settlement Amount. Within ten (10) Business Days after Preliminary Approval, Settling

Defendants shall pay or cause to be paid the Settlement Amount in full, in accordance with the payment

terms set forth in the Settlement Agreement. If the Settlement does not become final, Settling Defendants are





entitled to a refund of the unused Settlement Funds, and no distribution to Settlement Class Members will

occur.

5. Release. All Settlement Class Members who have not excluded themselves from the Settlement Class will
release certain Claims against the Settling Defendants, their affiliates, certain predecessors and successors,
and other persons as set forth in the Settlement Agreement. This is referred to as the “Release.” Generally
speaking, the Release will prevent any Settlement Class Member from bringing any lawsuit against the

Settling Defendants or making any claims resolved by the Settlement Agreement.

The Release, as set forth in Paragraphs 12.1 through 12.9 of the Settlement Agreement, will be effective as to
every Settlement Class Member who has not excluded itself from the Settlement Class, regardless of whether

or not that Settlement Class Member files a Claims Form or receives any distribution from the Settlement.

6. Attorney Fee/Litigation Cost and Class Representative Awards. The Court will determine the amounts of

attorneys’ fees and expenses to award to Class Counsel from the Settlement Amount for investigating the
facts and law in the Action, the massive amount of litigation surrounding the Action, the trial preparations,
and negotiating the proposed Settlement. Class Counsel will request an award of all attorneys’ fees and
expenses in the amounts due under the Holdback Provisions set forth in CMO No. 3. Class Counsel will make
their request in a motion for attorneys’ fees and costs in accordance with Section 11.2 of the Settlement
Agreement. Class Counsel intend to file a motion for an award of attorneys’ fees and costs that will request
that amounts due under the Holdback Provisions set forth in Case Management Order No. 3, private
attorney/client contracts, and fees of Class Counsel all be paid from the Qualified Settlement Fund. Class
Counsel intend to file such motion with the Court no later than October 15,2023 as ordered by the Court.
After the motion for attorneys’ fees and costs is filed, copies will be available from Class Counsel, the
Settlement website (www.PFASWaterSettlement.com), or from the Court docket for City of Camden, et al., v.

E.l. DuPont de Nemours and Company, et al., No. 2:23-cv-03230-RMG.

Any attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses approved by the Court will be paid from the Settlement Amount.

7. Settlement Administration. All fees, costs, and expenses incurred in the administration and/or work by the

Notice Administrator, including fees, costs, and expenses of the Notice Administrator, as well as the costs of
distributing the Notice, shall be paid from the Settlement Amount. All fees, costs, and expenses incurred in
the administration and/or work by the Claims Administrator, including fees, costs, and expenses of the Claims

Administrator, shall be paid from the Settlement Amount. All fees, costs, and expenses incurred in the





administration and/or work by the Special Master, including fees, costs, and expenses of the Special Master,
shall be paid from the Settlement Amount. Settling Defendants shall have no obligation to pay any such fees,

costs, and expenses other than the Settlement Amount.

8. Dismissal of the Litigation. If the Settlement is approved by the Court and becomes final, all pending

Litigation will be dismissed with prejudice to the extent it contains Released Claims. If the Settlement is not
approved by the Court or does not become final for any reason, the Litigation will continue, and Class

Members will not be entitled to receive any Settlement Benefit.

THE PARAGRAPHS ABOVE PROVIDE ONLY A GENERAL SUMMARY OF THE TERMS OF THE PROPOSED
SETTLEMENT. YOU CAN REVIEW THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT ITSELF FOR MORE INFORMATION ABOUT
THE EXACT TERMS OF THE SETTLEMENT. THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT IS AVAILABLE HERE

(https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/dupont-court-documents/)

= 5. How will Settlement Funds be Divided among Class Members?

1. Baseline Testing. Phase One and Phase Two Settlement Class Members must perform “Baseline Testing” -
that is, Settlement Class Members must test every Water Source they own for PFAS. By performing Baseline
Testing to determine which Water Sources have current PFAS detections, each Settlement Class Member will
be able to submit Claims Forms, have its Water Sources scored, and receive Allocated Awards based on those

scores.

Baseline Testing requires that each Water Source be analyzed for at Lleast the 29 PFAS chemicals required

under UCMR 5, using_a methodology consistent with the requirements of UCMR 5 or applicable State

requirements (if stricter). Any Water Source tested before December 7, 2021 that did not result in a PFAS

detection must retest. Any Water Source that tested before June 30, 2023 that did result in a PFAS detection

does NOT need to retest. However, you would still be required to test any other Water Sources that have not

previously had a detection.

Baseline Testing is different from what the EPA requires for UCMR 5. Under UCMR 5, a Public Water System is
required to test for PFAS only at the entry points to its distribution system, but Baseline Testing requires
Settlement Class Members to test every Water Source. Because Baseline Testing requires more testing than
UCMR 5, Phase Two Settlement Class Members will be compensated out of the Settlement Funds for the costs
of testing each Water Source to meet Baseline Testing requirements. Baseline Testing Claims Forms for Phase

Two Settlement Class Members must be received by no later than January 1, 2026.




https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/dupont-court-documents/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/dupont-court-documents/



Baseline Testing_may be performed by any laboratory accredited by a state government or federal regulatory

agency for PFAS analysis that uses any state- or federal agency-approved PFAS analytical method that is

consistent with (or stricter) than the requirements of UCMR 5.

Class Counsel has arranged for discounted testing with the following_laboratory to assist Settlement Class

Members with Baseline Testing. The listed laboratory will forward the test results to the Claims Administrator.

There is no requirement to use the listed laboratories.

Eurofins
Telephone Number: 916-374-4499

Website: https://www.eurofinsus.com/environment-testing/pfas-testing/pfas-water-provider-settlement/

(https://www.eurofinsus.com/environment-testing/pfas-testing/pfas-water-provider-settlement/)

2. Base Scores for Water Sources. The Allocation Procedures are designed to allocate money based on factors

that dictate the costs of water treatment. It is well documented in the scientific literature and well known
throughout the public water industry that the costs associated with water treatment consist of 1) capital costs
and 2) operation and maintenance costs. Capital costs are mainly driven by the Impacted Water Source’s flow
rate. Operation and maintenance costs are mainly driven by the levels of PFAS in the water. The Allocation
Procedures utilize capital costs and operation and maintenance costs to generate a score for each Impacted
Water Source. The Claims Administrator will input the flow rates and PFAS concentrations from the Claims

Forms into an EPA-derived formula that calculates a Base Score for each Impacted Water Source.

3. Adjusted Base Scores. Certain Class Members will be eligible for increased scores. Based on the Claims
Forms submitted, the Claims Administrator will determine if a Settlement Class Member is eligible for three
available enhancements to the score: the Litigation Bump, the Bellwether Bump, and the Regulatory Bump. A

Settlement Class Member may qualify for none, one, or multiple bumps.

The Litigation Bump will apply to Settlement Class Members with a pending lawsuit against the Settling
Defendants alleging PFAS contaminated Drinking Water. The Bellwether Bump will apply to the ten
Settlement Class Members that served as the Public Water Provider Bellwether plaintiffs. The Regulatory
Bump will apply when an Impacted Water Source exceeds an applicable state Maximum Contaminant Level

(MCL) or the proposed federal MCL as of March 14, 2023.

After the Claims Administrator applies the appropriate bumps to each Impacted Water Source, the Claims

Administrator will use the new Adjusted Base Scores to determine how much of the Settlement Funds each

Impacted Water Source will receive.



https://www.eurofinsus.com/environment-testing/pfas-testing/pfas-water-provider-settlement/

https://www.eurofinsus.com/environment-testing/pfas-testing/pfas-water-provider-settlement/



4. Very Small Public Water System Payments. All Phase One and Phase Two Settlement Class Members that

are listed in the Safe Drinking Water Information System (SDWIS) as Transient Non-Community Water Systems
(TNCWS) and Non-Transient Non- Community Water Systems (NTNCWS) serving less than 3,300 people may
apply for Phase One or Phase Two Very Small Public Water System Payments. Phase One Public Water System
Claims Forms for Very Small Public Water Systems are due no later than 60 days after the Effective Date, and
Phase Two Public Water System Claims Forms for Very Small Public Water Systems are due by June 30, 2026.
The Claims Administrator will issue a payment of $1,250 to the TNCWS and $1,750 to the NTNCWS serving
less than 3,300 people.

5. Allocated Amounts. The information required to calculate Allocated Amounts is not publicly available and

is only obtainable through the Claims Forms submitted by Settlement Class Members. Thus, the Allocated
Amount that each Settlement Class Member will receive is not determinable until the Claims Administrator

analyzes all the Claims Forms submitted by the Claims Form deadlines.

6. Special Needs Funds. Special Needs Funds will be established by the Claims Administrator for Phase One

and Phase Two Settlement Class Members that have expended monetary resources on extraordinary efforts to
address PFAS contamination in their Impacted Water Sources. Settlement Class Members can file a Special

Needs Fund Claims Form to be considered for reimbursement of these expenditures.

7. Supplemental Funds. The Claims Administrator will also establish Phase One and Phase Two Supplemental

Funds so that Settlement Class Members who did not initially exceed a state or federal MCL when it

submitted its Claims Form can request additional funds if it later exceeds a state or federal MCL.

= 6.Who represents the Settlement Class?

The Court has appointed the attorneys from the following law firms to act as counsel for the Class (referred to

as “Class Counsel” or “Plaintiffs’ Counsel”) for purposes of the proposed Settlement:

Scott Summy Michael A. London Paul J. Napoli
Baron & Budd, P.C. Douglas & London Napoli Shkolnik
3102 Oak Lawn Ave, Ste. 1100 59 Maiden Lane, 6th Floor 1302 Av. Ponce de Leon
Dallas, Texas 75219 New York, NY 10038 San Juan, Puerto Rico 00907





Elizabeth A. Fegan Joseph F.Rice

Fegan Scott LLC Motley Rice LLC
150 S. Wacker Dr, 24th floor 28 Bridgeside Blvd.
Chicago, IL 60606 Mount Pleasant, SC 29464

= 7.What are the Reasons for the Proposed Settlement?

Class Counsel, Class Representatives, and Settling Defendants have engaged in extensive, arm’s-length
negotiations, including negotiations facilitated by a Court-appointed mediator, and have, subject to the
Preliminary and Final Approval of the Court, reached an agreement to settle and release all Released Claims,

on the terms and conditions set forth in the Settlement Agreement.

Class Representatives and Class Counsel have concluded, after a thorough investigation and after carefully
considering the relevant circumstances, including the Claims asserted, the legal and factual defenses thereto,
the applicable law, the burdens, risks, uncertainties, and expense of litigation, as well as the fair, cost-
effective, and assured method of resolving the Claims, that it would be in the best interests of Settlement
Class Members to participate in the Settlement in order to avoid the uncertainties of litigation and to assure
that the benefits reflected herein are obtained for Settlement Class Members. Further, Class Representatives
and Class Counsel consider the Settlement set forth herein to be fair, reasonable, and adequate and in the

best interests of Settlement Class Members.

The Settling Defendants, while continuing to deny any violation, wrongdoing, or liability with respect to any
and all Claims asserted in the Litigation and all other Released Claims, either on their part or on the part of
any of the Released Persons, entered into the Settlement Agreement to avoid the expense, inconvenience, and

distraction of further litigation.

= 8.What do you need to do now?

YOU CAN PARTICIPATE IN THE SETTLEMENT. You must file a Claims Form to be eligible to receive a payment
under the Settlement Agreement. You can submit your Claims Form online at www.PFASWaterSettlement.com,
or you can download, complete and mail your Claims Form to the Claims Administrator at AFFF Public Water
System Claims, PO Box 4466, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821. The deadline for a Phase One Settlement Class
Member to submit a Phase One Public Water System Claims Form is 60 days following the Effective Date, and
the deadline for a Phase Two Settlement Class Member to submit a Phase Two Public Water System Claims

Form is June 30, 2026.






Regardless of whether you file a Claims Form or receive any distribution under the Settlement, unless you
timely opt out as described below, you will be bound by any judgment or other final disposition of the
Settlement, including the Release set forth in the Settlement Agreement, and will be precluded from pursuing

claims against the Settling Defendants separately if those Claims are within the scope of the Release.

YOU CAN OPT-OUT OF THE SETTLEMENT. If you do not wish to be a Settlement Class Member, and do not
want to participate in the Settlement and receive a Settlement Benefit Check, you may exclude yourself from
the Settlement Class by completing and mailing a notice of intention to opt-out (referred to as an “Opt-Out”).
Any Person within the Settlement Class who wishes to opt out of the Settlement Class and Settlement must
file a written and signed statement entitled “Request for Exclusion” with the Notice Administrator and provide

service on all Parties in accordance with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 5.

To be treated as valid, the Request for Exclusion must be sent via certified or first- class mail to the Notice

Administrator, Counsel for the Settling Defendants, and Class Counsel at the addresses below.

Counsel for Settling Defendants:

Jeffrey M. Wintner

Kevin T.Van Wart Michael T. Reynolds
Graham W. Meli
Kirkland & Ellis LLP Cravath, Swaine & Moore LLP
Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz
300 North LaSalle 825 Eighth Avenue
51 West 52nd Street
Chicago, IL 60654 New York, NY 10019
New York, NY 10019
Class Counsel:
Scott Summy Michael A. London Paul J. Napoli
Baron & Budd, P.C. Douglas & London Napoli Shkolnik
3102 Oak Lawn Ave, Ste. 1100 59 Maiden Lane, 6th Floor 1302 Av. Ponce de Leon
Dallas, Texas 75219 New York, NY 10038 San Juan, Puerto Rico 00907
Elizabeth A. Fegan Joseph F.Rice
Fegan Scott LLC Motley Rice LLC

150 S. Wacker Dr, 24th floor 28 Bridgeside Blvd.
Chicago, IL 60606 Mount Pleasant, SC 29464





Notice Administrator:

In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Products Liability Litigation
c/o Notice Administrator
1650 Arch Street, Suite 2210
Philadelphia, PA 19103

The Request for Exclusion must be received by the Notice Administrator no later than December 4, 2023.

The Request for Exclusion must certify, under penalty of perjury in accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, that the

filer has been legally authorized to exclude the Person from the Settlement and must provide:

« an affidavit or other proof of the Settlement Class Member’s standing;

« the filer's name, address, telephone, facsimile number and email address (if available);

« the name, address, telephone number, facsimile number, and e-mail address (if available) of the Person

whose exclusion is requested; and

The Request for Exclusion must be received by the Notice Administrator no later than December 4, 2023.

Any Person that submits a timely and valid Request for Exclusion shall not (i) be bound by any orders or
judgments effecting the Settlement; (ii) be entitled to any of the relief or other benefits provided under this
Settlement Agreement; (iii) gain any rights by virtue of this Settlement Agreement; or (iv) be entitled to

submit an Objection.

If you own or operate more than one Public Water System and are authorized to determine whether to submit
Requests for Exclusion on those Public Water Systems’ behalf, you may submit a Request for Exclusion on
behalf of some of those Public Water Systems but not the other(s). You must submit a Request for an
Exclusion on behalf of each such Public Water System that you wish to opt out of the Settlement Class. Any
Public Water System that is not specifically identified in a Request for Exclusion will remain in the Settlement

Class.

Any Settlement Class Member that does not submit a timely and valid Request for Exclusion submits to the
jurisdiction of the Court and, unless the Settlement Class Member submits an Objection that complies with
the provisions of the Settlement Agreement, shall waive and forfeit any and all objections the Settlement

Class Member may have asserted.





YOU CAN OBJECT OR TAKE OTHER ACTIONS. Any Settlement Class Member who has not successfully excluded
itself (‘opted out”) may object to the Settlement. Any Settlement Class Member who wishes to object to the
Settlement or to an award of fees or expenses to Class Counsel must file a written and signed statement
designated “Objection” with the Clerk of the Court and provide service on Counsel for the Settling Defendants
and Class Counsel at the addresses below in accordance with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 5. Objections

submitted by any Settlement Class Member to incorrect locations shall not be valid.

Clerk of the Court:
Clerk, United States District Court for the District of South Carolina

85 Broad Street
Charleston, SC 29401

Counsel for Settling Defendants:

Jeffrey M. Wintner

Kevin T.Van Wart Michael T. Reynolds
Graham W. Meli
Kirkland & Ellis LLP Cravath, Swaine & Moore LLP
Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz
300 North LaSalle 825 Eighth Avenue
51 West 52nd Street
Chicago, IL 60654 New York, NY 10019
New York, NY 10019
Class Counsel:
Scott Summy Michael A. London Paul J. Napoli
Baron & Budd, P.C. Douglas & London Napoli Shkolnik
3102 Oak Lawn Ave, Ste. 1100 59 Maiden Lane, 6th Floor 1302 Av. Ponce de Leon
Dallas, Texas 75219 New York, NY 10038 San Juan, Puerto Rico 00907
Elizabeth A. Fegan Joseph F.Rice
Fegan Scott LLC Motley Rice LLC
150 S. Wacker Dr, 24th floor 28 Bridgeside Blvd.
Chicago, IL 60606 Mount Pleasant, SC 29464

All Objections must certify, under penalty of perjury in accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1746, that the filer has

been legally authorized to object on behalf of the Settlement Class Member and must provide:





« an affidavit or other proof of the Settlement Class Member’s standing;

« the filer's name, address, telephone, facsimile number and email address (if available);

 the name, address, telephone, facsimile number and email address (if available) of the Person whose

Objection is submitted;

« all objections asserted by the Settlement Class Member and the specific reason(s) for each objection,
including all legal support and evidence the Settlement Class Member wishes to bring to the Court’s

attention;

« an indication as to whether the Settlement Class Member wishes to appear at the Final Fairness

Hearing; and

« the identity of all witnesses the Settlement Class Member may call to testify.

The deadline to submit an Objection is November 11, 2023.

Settlement Class Members may object either on their own or through any attorney hired at their own
expense. If a Settlement Class Member is represented by counsel, the attorney must file a notice of

appearance with the Clerk of Court no later than November 11,2023, the date ordered by the Court for the

filing of Objections, and serve such notice on all Parties in accordance with Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 5

within the same time period.

Any Settlement Class Member who fully complies with the provisions for objecting may, at the Court’s
discretion, appear at the Final Fairness Hearing to object to the Settlement or to the award of fees and costs
to Class Counsel. Any Settlement Class Member who fails to comply with the provisions of the Settlement
Agreement for objecting shall waive and forfeit any and all objections the Settlement Class Member may

have asserted.

= 9.What will happen at the Final Fairness Hearing?

Before deciding whether to grant final approval to the Settlement, the Court will hold the Final Fairness

Hearing in U.S. Courthouse, 85 Broad Street, Charleston, South Carolina 29401, on December 14,2023, at

10:00 AM EST. At that time, the Court will determine, among other things, (i) whether the Settlement should
be granted final approval as fair, reasonable, and adequate, (ii) whether the Released Claims should be

dismissed with prejudice pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, (iii) whether the Settlement





Class should be conclusively certified, (iv) whether Settlement Class Members should be bound by the
Release set forth in the Settlement Agreement, (v) the amount of attorneys’ fees and costs to be awarded to
Class Counsel, if any, and (vi) the amount of the award to be made to the Class Representatives for their
services, if any. The Final Fairness Hearing may be postponed, adjourned, or continued by Order of the Court

without further notice to the Class.

= 10. How can you get Additional Information about the Action, the Proposed Settlement, the Settlement Agreement, or
the Notice?

The descriptions of the Action, the Settlement, and the Settlement Agreement in this Notice are only a
general summary. In the event of a conflict between this Notice and the Settlement Agreement, the terms of
the Settlement Agreement control. ALl papers filed in this case, including the full Settlement Agreement, are
available for you to inspect and copy (at your cost) at the office of the Clerk of Court, the Settlement website,
or online through PACER. A copy of the Settlement Agreement may also be obtained from Class Counsel by
contacting them at the addresses or telephone numbers set forth above. Any questions concerning this Notice,
the Settlement Agreement, or the Settlement may be directed to Class Counsel. You may also seek the advice

and counsel of your own attorney, at your own expense, if you desire.

DO NOT WRITE OR TELEPHONE THE COURT, THE CLERK’S OFFICE, OR DEFENDANT WITH ANY QUESTIONS
ABOUT THE NOTICE, THE SETTLEMENT, OR THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT.

= 11.What are the Addresses you may need?

Counsel for E.l. DuPont de Nemours and Company, et al:

Jeffrey M. Wintner

Kevin T.Van Wart Michael T. Reynolds
Graham W. Meli
Kirkland & Ellis LLP Cravath, Swaine & Moore LLP
Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz
300 North LaSalle 825 Eighth Avenue
51 West 52nd Street
Chicago, IL 60654 New York, NY 10019

New York, NY 10019

If to the Class Representatives, Class Counsel, or Settlement Class Members:





Scott Summy Michael A. London Paul J. Napoli

Baron & Budd, P.C. Douglas & London Napoli Shkolnik
3102 Oak Lawn Ave, Ste. 1100 59 Maiden Lane, 6th Floor 1302 Av. Ponce de Leon
Dallas, Texas 75219 New York, NY 10038 San Juan, Puerto Rico 00907
Elizabeth A. Fegan Joseph F.Rice
Fegan Scott LLC Motley Rice LLC
150 S. Wacker Dr, 24th floor 28 Bridgeside Blvd.
Chicago, IL 60606 Mount Pleasant, SC 29464

If to the Notice Administrator:

In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Products Liability Litigation
c/o Notice Administrator
1650 Arch Street, Suite 2210
Philadelphia, PA 19103

If to the Claims Administrator:

AFFF Public Water System Claims
PO Box 4466
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821

= 12.What Information must be Included in any Document you send regarding the Action?

In sending any document to the Notice Administrator, Claims Administrator, the Court, Class Counsel, or
Settling Defendants’ Counsel, you must include the following case name and identifying number on any

documents and on the outside of the envelope:

In re: Aqueous Film-Forming Foams Products Liability Litigation, MDL No. 2:18-mn-2873 (D.S.C.), this
document relates to: City of Camden, et al., v. E.I. DuPont de Nemours and Company, et al., No. 2:23-cv-
03230-RMG.





You must also include your full name, address, email address, and a telephone number where you can be

reached.

= 13.What Important Deadlines do you need to know?

Deadline Description

Deadline to submit Objections

Deadline to submit Requests for Exclusions

Court’s Final Fairness Hearing

Phase One Public Water System Settlement

Claims Form

Phase One Special Needs Claims Form

Phase Two Testing Claims Form

Phase Two Public Water System Claims Form

Phase Two Baseline Testing

Phase Two Special Needs Claims Form

Phase One Supplemental Fund Claims Form

Phase Two Supplemental Fund Claims Form

Deadline Date

11/11/2023

12/4/2023

12/14/2023 at 10:00 AM EST

60 Days after the Effective Date

45 Days after the Phase One Public Water System Claims

Form Deadline

1/1/2026

6/30/2026

45 Days after receiving test results but no later than
7/1/2026

8/1/2026

12/31/2030

12/31/2030

This website is supervised by Counsel and the Court and is controlled by the Claims Administrator that handles all aspects

of the claims processing. This is the only authorized website for this litigation. Other websites may contain incorrect

information about this litigation and should not be relied upon. If you have questions, please contact the Claims

Administrator.

Privacy Policy (https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/privacy-policy/)




https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/privacy-policy/

https://www.pfaswatersettlement.com/privacy-policy/



Copyright © EisnerAmper





For illustration purposes only; not reflective of actual allocation awards

3M Public Water Provider Settlement
Estimated Allocation Range Table

Each cell in the Table represents an estimated allocation PER IMPACTED WATER SOURCE (per groundwater well or surface water source).

The Settlement Class consists of Public Water Systems, which may and often do have multiple wells or water sources, each of which would be
calculated individually and added up to arrive at the total.

A putative member of the Settlement Class may calculate a rough estimated allocation amount for each of its Impacted Water Sources (groundwater well or surface water system
with PFAS contamination) by using the 3M Estimated Allocation Range Table below. This Table allows members of the Settlement Class to access such an estimate for any
Impacted Water Source. The Table provides estimated ranges of allocated amounts based on the two factors most relevant to the calculation of the cost of PFAS treatment — flow
rates and PFAS concentration levels — which are reflected in the Allocation Procedures as Adjusted Flow Rates' and PFAS Scores.?

The 3M Estimated Allocation Range Table was derived from PFAS concentration data that was publicly available and gathered from public agencies, as well as on reasonable
assumptions as to flow rates based on population (since flow rates are not publicly available). The data gathered for this Table is likely the most exhaustive collection of PFAS
detection data that exists. But such information does not and cannot replicate the actual allocations that the Claims Administrator will calculate based on the flow rates and PFAS
concentration levels reported on submitted Claims Forms. That information is proprietary information in the possession of the members of the Settlement Class, which Class
Counsel cannot access.

Despite the tremendous amount of work that has taken place to provide the 3M Estimated Allocation Range Table, the ranges are necessarily based on data publicly available at the
time of the Settlement, reasonable assumptions, and good faith estimates. The ranges presented in this Table are not the actual settlement awards that will be allocated to each
Impacted Water Source because: certain data is not publicly available; the full extent of Impacted Water Sources is unknown; and the extent of participation in the settlement
among putative members of the Settlement Class is unknown. Absent such information, Class Counsel cannot provide assurances that the actual settlement amounts will be at or
even close to Class Counsel’s estimated allocation. Nonetheless, the estimated allocation amounts represent Class Counsel’s best effort to provide, in good faith, information to the
Class based on publicly available information. These ranges are for the Action Funds only and do not include Phase Two Baseline Testing Payments, the Special Needs Funds, the
Supplemental Funds, the Litigation Bump or the Public Water Provider Bellwether Bump.

1 Adjusted Flow Rates are calculated by first averaging the three (3) highest annual flow rates from 2013-2022. This average is then averaged with the maximum flow rate of the of the Impacted Water Source.

2 The PFAS Score is the greater of either: the sum of the maximum levels for PFOA and for PFOS or the sum of the maximum levels of PFOA and PFOS averaged with the square root of the maximum level of any
other single PFAS analyte.





For illustration purposes only; not reflective of actual allocation awards

3M Public Water Provider Settlement
Estimated Allocation Range Table

INSTRUCTIONS

STEP 1
Calculate your PFAS Score for each Impacted Water Source

PFAS Score = the higher of:
[PFOA (Max Level) + PFOS (Max Level)]

-Or-

The sum of the maximum levels of PFOA and PFOS averaged with the square root of the maximum level of any other single PFAS analyte listed on the Claims Form

STEP 2
Determine the Adjusted Flow Rate of each Impacted Water Source

Each Class Member will need to gather their flow rates, which are proprietary information. Then, they will use those flow rates to calculate an Adjusted Flow Rate for each
Impacted Water Source, by first averaging the three highest annual average flow rates drawn from the groundwater Impacted Water Source or that entered the surface-water
treatment plant. The three highest annual average flow rates can be selected from a ten-year period from 2013-2022. This average will then be averaged with the verified maximum
flow rate of a groundwater Impacted Water Source or the maximum flow rate entering a surface-water Impacted Water Source.

STEP3

Use your PFAS Score and Adjusted Flow Rate to determine an Estimated Allocation Range in the Table
Locate your Adjusted Flow Rate across the horizontal axis and your PFAS Score across the vertical axis. The cell where they meet represents your Estimated Allocation.

» If your Adjusted Flow Rate falls between two cell values on the horizontal axis, or your PFAS Score falls between two cell values on the vertical axis, your Estimated
Allocation is the range between the cells.

Page 2 of 4





Calculate a PFAS score
for each Impacted
Water Source

Calculate Adjusted
Flow Rate for each
Impacted Water
Source

Locate your Adjusted
Flow Rate and PFAS
score on the Table

For illustration purposes only; not reflective of actual allocation awards

3M Public Water Provider Settlement

Estimated Allocation Range Table

Select the higher of:
(max PFOA level + max PFOS level)

(max PFOA + max PFOS) averaged with
( v max any other PFAS listed on the Claims Form)
Add 3 highest annual average flow rates 2013-2022
+ + + 3=
I (rate 1 + rate 2 + rate 3) + 3= average

Then average this number with the max flow rate

(average + max flow rate) + 2

Adjusted Flow Rate (gpm)

S

estimate

PFAS score






For illustration purposes only; not reflective of actual allocation awards

3M Public Water Provider Settlement
Estimated Allocation Range Table

Each cell in the Table represents an estimated allocation PER IMPACTED WATER SOURCE (per groundwater well or surface water source).

The Settlement Class consists of Public Water Systems, which may and often do have multiple wells or water sources, each of which would be
calculated individually and added up to arrive at the total.

IMPACTED WATER SOURCE

means a Water Source that has a Qualifying Test Result showing a Measurable Concentration of PFAS.

See the Settlement Agreement for defined terms.

Adjusted Flow Rate (gpm)

0 100 250 500 1,000 1,500 5,000 10,000 25,000 50,000 100,000 300,000
2 $36,240 $70,013 $115,244 $189,694 $253,898 $603,369 $993,106 $1,918,881 $3,157,910 $5,196,296 $11,436,561
4 $145,785 $281,723 $463,713 $763,253 $1,021,550 $2,427,216 $3,994,261 $7,714,149 $12,687,352 $20,855,641 $45,758,953
10 $148,252 $286,489 $471,559 $776,166 $1,038,832 $2,468,269 $4,061,800 $7,844,507 $12,901,569 $21,207,290 $46,527,259
E 50 $164,724 $318,320 $523,950 $862,394 $1,154,236 $2,742,397 $4,512,775 $8,714,863 $14,331,681 $23,554,481 $51,652,815
8 100 $185,313 $358,108 $589,437 $970,176 $1,298,484 $3,085,022 $5,076,399 $9,802,456 $16,118,368 $26,485,901 $58,047,466
(%))
7 250 $247,082 $477,467 $785,890 $1,293,499 $1,731,188 $4,112,663 $6,766,639 $13,062,886 $21,472,088 $35,263,074 $77,149,868
<
& 500 $350,027 $676,390 $1,113,285 $1,832,294 $2,452,225 $5,824,623 $9,581,606 $18,489,120 $30,373,873 $49,834,987 | $108,717,963*
750 $452,968 $875,299 $1,440,643 $2,370,993 $3,173,089 $7,535,613 $12,393,952 $23,905,608 $39,249,406 $64,336,461* | $139,954,105*
1000 $555,906 $1,074,195 $1,767,967 $2,909,596 $3,893,781 $9,245,635 $15,203,680 $29,312,376 $48,098,804* | $78,768,005* | $170,863,503*

*While the available data has not revealed any Impacted Water Source with the values in the shaded cells, and any such Impacted Water Source would be an anomaly, the Table is

designed to account for and estimate any scenario that could occur as a result of the Allocation Procedures.






City of Stoughton, 207 South Forrest Street, Stoughton WI 53589

RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE
STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL

Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to take no action and remain a member of the
settlement classes under Master Docket No. 2:18-MN-2873-RMG of the United States District Court
for the District of South Carolina.

Committee Action:  Utilities Committee recommended Common Council approval 5 - 2 on November

20, 2023.
Fiscal Impact: To be determined
File Number: R-xxx-2023 Date Introduced:  November 28, 2023

WHEREAS, in September 2023, Stoughton Utilities received notices of class action settlements
regarding Aqueous Film Forming Foams Product Liability Litigation; and

WHEREAS, water utilities across the United States filed lawsuits against 3M and Dupont for
contaminating drinking water sources with PFAS, and these cases were consolidated into a single docket
before the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina, commonly referred to as multi-
district litigation cases (“MDL”).

WHEREAS, notices were received for individual settlements with 3M (Case No. 2:23-cv-03147-RMG)
and Dupont (Case No. 2:23-cv-03230), with both settlements being part of Master Docket No. 2:18-MN-
2873-RMG of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina; and

WHEREAS, the current settlement agreements are both Class Action settlements designed to resolve
claims for PFAS contamination in Public Water Systems’ Drinking Water, as those terms are defined in
the respective agreements, which are with two groups of Settling Defendants on behalf of:

(1) the 3M Company (“3M”); and

(2) E.I. Du Pont de Nemours and Company (n/k/a EIDP, Inc.), DuPont de Nemours Inc., The
Chemours Company, The Chemours Company FC, LLC, and Corteva, Inc. (collectively,
“DuPont”);

WHEREAS, both of these settlements are designed to resolve claims for PFAS contamination in Public
Water Systems’ Drinking Water, as those terms are defined in the respective agreements; and

WHEREAS, both of the proposed settlements are still subject to final approval by the MDL Judge, the
Honorable Richard M. Gergel of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina; and

WHEREAS, the proposed 3M settlement is divided into two categories: (1) phase one class members are
public water systems with any detection of PFAS; and (2) phase two class members are public water
systems that have not detected PFAS but which are conducting (or will conduct) PFAS testing under the
EPA-required unregulated contaminant monitoring program, UCMRS5; with both categories excluding
transient public water systems or non-transient non-community public water systems that serve fewer than
3,300 people, and

WHEREAS, the proposed DuPont settlement amount is divided into two categories: (1) public water
systems that draw or collect from any water source that has a detection of PFAS; and (2) public water





systems that are subject to the monitoring rules set forth in UCMR5 or are required under applicable
federal or state law to test or otherwise analyze any of their water sources or the water they provide for
PFAS before the UCMRS5 deadline; with both categories including public water systems that have at least
15 service connections or regularly serve at least 25 individuals, including community water systems, non-
transient non-community water systems, and transient non-community water systems, and

WHEREAS, under the terms of each settlement, Stoughton Utilities falls into the criteria set forth in the
first category; and

WHEREAS, if the court approves the settlements as presented, the settlements will collectively provide
$13.6 billing (3M: $12.500 billion, DuPont: $1.185 billion) in funding to address the companies” liability
for public water systems affected by PFAS contamination in their drinking water; and

WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has previously completed baseline testing for PFAS and this prior testing
has indicated that we would be a Phase One Qualifying Class Member unless it chooses to exclude
ourselves from the settlement class; and

WHEREAS, Phase One Qualifying Class Members can make claims to recover some of the costs of
addressing PFAS contamination in their drinking water systems; and

WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities staff has used the Estimated Allocation Range Tables published by the
Plaintiff’s Executive Committee to calculate the PFAS score and adjusted flow rate used to determine an
estimated allocation range, calculating a PFAS score of 2 and an adjusted flow rate falling between 1,000
and 1,500 gpm; and

WHEREAS, 3M and DuPont have proposed these settlement agreements in order to settle certain claims,
remove themselves from this lawsuit, and prevent class members from suing in the future, and under the
settlement agreements, every settlement class member who remains in the settlement agreement thereby
agrees to “expressly, intentionally, voluntarily, fully, finally, irrevocably, and forever release, waive,
compromise, settle, and discharge” these companies from certain claims, including any claim related to
PFAS in drinking water or the public water system that has arisen or may arise in the future; and

WHEREAS, if the City does not opt out, the City will have released these companies from liability and,
therefore, cannot bring any lawsuit against either 3M or DuPont related to the claims resolved by the
settlement agreements; and

WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has the option of opting-out of the settlement class, thereby not releasing
any future claims related to the PFAS contamination of Stoughton’s drinking water supply system, with
the deadline to submit request for exclusion as class participants being December 4, 2023 (DuPont) and
December 11, 2023 (3M); and

WHEREAS, following consultation with the Stoughton City Attorney, as well as discussions with the
attorney representing the National Rural Water Association in its PFAS contamination lawsuit (and co-
lead counsel for the plaintiffs in the master docket) and the attorney representing the Wisconsin Municipal
Environmental Group Water Division (MEG-Water), it is staff’s recommendation that Stoughton Ultilities
remain a member of the settlement class; and

WHEREAS, if Stoughton Utilities remains a member of the settlement class, staff will further recommend
(at a later date) that any funds received from the settlement be set aside in a restricted water utility fund
to be used for any future regulatory requirements for treatment of drinking water contamination that are
currently unknown; now therefore





BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
authorized and directed to take no action and remain a member of the settlement classes under Master
Docket No. 2:18-MN-2873-RMG of the United States District Court for the District of South Carolina.

Council Action: D Adopted D Failed Vote:
Mayoral Action: D Accept D Veto
Mayor Timothy Swadley Date

Council Action: D Override Vote:






DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday, November 20, 2023 — 5:30 p.m.

Stoughton, WI

Page No. 2

2. Minutes of the September 18, 2023 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting
3. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report

4. Stoughton Utilities Financial Summary — June, July, and August 2023

5. Stoughton Utilities Statistical Report

Business:

1. Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Ultilities 2024 Budget and
Five-Year (2024-2028) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)

Discussion followed.

Status of the PSCW Electric Rate Application Filing: Staff provided the committee with an update on the
electric rate application that was filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) in February
2023. The PSCW has proposed a revised increase of 3.29%, or $548,393. The actual change to individual
customers will vary based on class of service. If the application is approved by the PSCW as recommended by
PSCW staff, the average residential customer using 689 kilowatt-hours (kWh) of electricity per month will see a
monthly increase of approximately $2.79, or 3.1%.

A hearing on the application has been scheduled for Tuesday, November 28, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. The hearing
will be held by virtual meeting with a physical meeting location in the Ed Malinowski Boardroom at the Stoughton
Utilities Administration Office. Staff explained that the hearing time of 10:00 am was specified by the PSCW.
Staff further explained that if approved by the PSCW, the effective date for the new rates is planned to be January
1, 2024.. Discussion followed.

Aqueous Film-Forming Foam (AFFF) Product Liability Litigation (MDL 2873): The chair moved this item
ahead in the agenda. Although the agenda item was noted that it may move to closed session per State Statute
19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel for the governmental, the committee did not convene in closed session.

Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that in September 2023, Stoughton Utilities received notices of
class action settlements regarding Aqueous Film Forming Foams Product Liability Litigation. Water utilities
across the United States filed lawsuits against 3M and Dupont for contaminating drinking water sources with
PFAS, and these lawsuits were consolidated into a single multi-district litigation cases (MDL) that resulted in two
Class Action settlements designed to resolve claims for PFAS contamination in Public Water Systems’ Drinking
Water, as those terms are defined in the respective agreements.

Staff explained that Stoughton Utilities has previously completed baseline testing for PFAS and this prior testing
has indicated that the utility would be a Phase One Qualifying Class Member unless it chooses to exclude itself
from the settlement class. Phase One Qualifying Class Members can make claims to recover some of the costs
of addressing PFAS contamination in their drinking water systems. An exact amount that would be received as
part of the settlement class is not yet known, but the estimates currently published indicate a potential award of
between $180,000-$200,000.

It was further explained that 3M and DuPont have proposed these settlement agreements in order to settle
certain claims, remove themselves from this lawsuit, and prevent class members from suing in the future. Under
the settlement agreements, every settlement class member who remains in the settlement agreement thereby
agrees to “expressly, intentionally, voluntarily, fully, finally, irrevocably, and forever release, waive, compromise,
settle, and discharge” these companies from certain claims. This includes any claim related to PFAS in drinking
water or the public water system that has arisen or may arise in the future. The release in both agreements is
extremely comprehensive.



bhoops

Highlight



bhoops

Highlight





DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday, November 20, 2023 — 5:30 p.m.

Stoughton, WI

Page No. 3

Stoughton Utilities has the option of opting-out of the settlement class, thereby not releasing any future claims
related to the PFAS contamination of Stoughton’s drinking water supply system.

If the City does not opt out, the City will have released these companies from liability and, therefore, cannot bring
any lawsuit against either 3M or DuPont related to the claims resolved by the settlement agreements. It is staff’s
recommendation that Stoughton Ultilities remain a member of the settlement class, which requires no action from
the utility at this time.

Discussion followed. Attorney Rick Manthe of Stafford Rosenbaum, LLP, representing the Stoughton City
Attorney, fielded questions from the committee and discussed the extent of the liability release, potential risks
from remaining in or opting out of the settlements, what actions his firm has observed other municipalities take
regarding the settlements, and more. When asked to provide a recommendation, Manthe stated that opinions
within his firm are divided, and he would defer to staff’'s recommendation.

Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Jensen, to approve taking no action and remaining a member of the
settlement classes under Master Docket No. 2:18-MN-2873-RMG of the United States District Court for the
District of South Carolina, and recommend the same to the Stoughton Common Council at their November 28,
2023 meeting. The motion carried 5 to 2, with Chenoweth and Payton voting No.

Presentation by WPPI Energy: Leading with Purpose: Stoughton Utilities staff introduced Ms. Valy
Goepfrich, Vice President of Operations at WPPI Energy, who provided a presentation about general information
and updates on WPPI Energy, including power supply, sustainability efforts, wholesale costs, industrywide
challenges, and more. Discussion followed.

Scheduling of the Utilities Committee Regular Meeting in December: Stoughton Utilities staff informed the
committee that a potential new business item had arisen in recent days and there may be a need for a meeting
in December. It was recommended that the December regular meeting remain on the schedule for December
18, and a cancellation will be sent out closer to the meeting date if it is determined there is not a need to hold
the meeting. Discussion followed. The committee took no action.

Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items: Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that a requested
to release a utility easement will be presented at a December or January meeting, and February items will include
the annual delinquent account write off list, presentation of the annual year in review report, and presentation of
a publication to customers focused on rate education and transparency. The committee requested that additional
discussions be held regarding the promotion of the Stoughton Utilities Choose Renewable program. Discussion
followed

Adjournment: Being no further business before the committee, the chair adjourned the meeting at 7:24 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Brian R. Hoops
Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director



bhoops

Highlight





		13. R-187 -2023 4.9- PFAS Settlement - Resolution

		13a  PFAS Settlement - Council Packet

		4.8- PFAS Settlement - Estimated Allocation Range Table.pdf

		3M page 3 of 4.pdf

		Slide Number 1







		13b  November Draft Regular UC Minutes - 4 - PFAS Settlement



